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Definitions

B

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following
meanings:

RAFHR - RXESBED - THFARABUTIES !

“Acting in Concert Parties” Mr. Liu Xujun and Mr. Huang Yunjian, both executive Directors, and Mr. Wang
Yong, a member of the senior management of the Company

[—3TEAL HITESZELEREERAEURA DA SREEERELE L

“AGM” the annual general meeting of the Company to be convened and held on 7 June
2016, or any adjournment thereof

[RFBAFRE ] AARBR=B—REXALBRETRRBFASSHIES

“Articles of Association” the articles of association of the Company

NGRS RARNAESERME

“associate(s)” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

[BEEEA BB L mRAETZANEE

“Beijing OriginWater” Beijing OriginWater Technology Co., Ltd.* (1t REKERHZRHERAF]), a limited

liability company established in the PRC, the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300070)

[EE KR EREBKRERERDERAE - RABERIHROBERAT  EROERIESRKS
Fir £ (B2 4K355% - 300070)

“Board” or “Board of Directors” the board of Directors of the Company

[EEE KARMNESE
“Company”, “our Company” or Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited* (EFEKEIRER B ER D F), a joint stock
“Yunnan Water” limited liability company established in the PRC, the H Shares of which are listed

on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6839)

[ A7) IR Er K ERABIRERDERAR - RHPBEEMAZHRDERAR - HHREEZIER
£ (RGP 1 6839)

“connected person(s)” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

[BEEAL A LTRABTFZANER

“controlling shareholder(s)” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

[EZERRR ] AR LETHRIEBTFZANER

“Corporate Governance Code” the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report, as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

[exEsa<eall LHRAM SR+ SN EREEFRREEERERE

EEABREROBERDA
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Definitions

B

“Director(s)”

&%

“Domestic Share(s)”

[RER ]

“Group” or “our Group”

[AEH ]
“H Share(s)”

[HE ]
“HK$”
[l

“HKFRS”

[ERIERELER ]

“Hong Kong”
(&8 ]
Hlpoﬂ

[BRAFRBE]
“Listing Date”

[ LB
“Listing Rules”
[ EmRa ]
“Model Code”

[EEF A

“ PRC”

[E

“Prospectus”

[ARER ]

the director(s) of our Company
RARES

the issued ordinary shares at the nominal value of RMB1.00 per share in the share
capital of the Company which are subscribed for or credited as paid up in RMB

UARBZBRIMEMENARRAREAHEREABEARE1.00 THEBTERR
the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time
RA B REREFRIFTE D F)

the issued ordinary shares at the nominal value of RMB1.00 per share in the share
capital of the Company which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

EBRXAERLTNAQRTRATEREEARE 1.00 THERTEBER

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong

EBEEERET

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, including Hong Kong Accounting

Standards and Interpretations promulgated by the Hong Kong Accounting
Standard Board

ERPBHREED - BEEESFTEAREBS LN ZESRAHNRE
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
HEIEBSRITHE

the initial public offering of the Company’s Shares through the Stock Exchange in
May 2015

—E-HFRARATRGEBHRFHDERARRE

27 May 2015, being the date on which the H Shares were listed and from which
dealings in the H Shares of the Company commenced on the Stock Exchange

TE-AFREASTEH HBRRBRAM LM RAREERN A
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
AR 5 E AR Al

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

LR RIS FEN EHBITAESETES RS NWEESTE

the People’s Republic of China, and for the purpose of this report only, excluding
Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China and Taiwan

hEARLNE - EAREMS - TEESE  PEARZNBERMFHITHREREE

the prospectus of the Company dated 13 May 2015, issued in relation to the IPO
and listing of H Shares on the Stock Exchange

AA-Z-AFAR+t=AAMBERAMABRERHRREXF ETHNARRBRE

2
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“Reporting Period”
[R5

“RMB”

[ARE |

“SFO”

[ 325 R HE %A
“Share(s)”

[BR17
“Shareholder(s)”
[BRER

“Stock Exchange”
[ B3 |
“subsidiary(ies)”
[FIEBE ]
“Supervisor(s)”

&%

“Supervisory Committee”

[BEEZEEE ]

“Undertaking Shareholders”

[ AR ]
“Y™mMCI”

[ErREREE ]

“Yunnan Province Water”

[EREKE]
“oy”
%]

*

o B

Definitions

B

the 12-month period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015
H-ZE-AF5-—A-BREZZE-AF+ZA=+—-HLE+ZEAAHHE
Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

HENEEEB AR

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
EBEBISE 571 (R E R ERA)

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of our Company with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each, including the H Shares and Domestic Shares

AARRAFEREAEBARE1.00THNERR  BREHRRAER
holder(s) of the Share(s)

REEEA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EBHMAERSMARAF

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EmRBETZANEE

supervisor(s) of the Company

RRBNES

the supervisory committee of the Company
RRBNESEES

namely YMCI, Yunnan Province Water and Beijing OriginWater
AEEHRER - EMEKBRIEREKR

Yunnan Metropolitan Construction Investment Co., Ltd (EMEH T ERIREE
E A PR AT ) a limited liability company established in the PRC and is the sole
shareholder of Yunnan Province Water, the Company’s controlling shareholder and
one of the Undertaking Shareholders

EFERTERREEEBRAT - RPERLNEREELARERGEKIEHIME—
BT BARFERRREHED - BEEHEHRR

Yunnan Province Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd.* (EE&KEEZRERRE L
Fl), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC

EMEKEEXEREBRAT » RAPBEMAZNEREELDTF
per cent

Bt

For identification purposes only
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Financial Highlights

The Board is pleased to announce the following financial highlights:

EEEM

AREMTIMHERE :

Year ended 31 December

BE+_B=1+—HLEE

2015 2014 Percentage

—E-1f —ZE—F Change

RMB’ 000 RMB’000 Bkt

AR®F ARBTT 28

Revenue Wz 1,558,394 1,100,761 41.6%

Gross profit EF 507,622 333,637 52.1%

Profit before income tax TSR A R 382,869 226,157 69.3%
EBITDA (Note) BRAE - BIE - FER

1 58 B B | ) 498,202 315,256 58.0%

Profit for the year F A= F 317,443 187,896 68.9%

Return on shareholders’ equity (%)  BRERELEHR=E (%) 6.42% 6.90% N/ATERA

Basic earnings per share (RMB) BREFRBRA(ARET) 0.270 0.206 31.1%

Note: EBITDA is the profit for the year before deduction of interest, taxation,
depreciation and amortisation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s audited profit attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to approximately RMB285.9 million.

Basic earnings per share for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMBO0.270 (for the year ended 31 December 2014: approximately
RMBO0.206), the calculation of such basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit attributable to Shareholders, and the weighted
average number of Shares of approximately of 1,058,932,000 (2014:
806,551,000) in issue during the Reporting Period.

The Board recommended the payment of the final dividend of RMBO.1
per Share for the year ended 31 December 2015. The Company did
not declare or pay any interim dividend or special dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Pursuant to the resolution of the Shareholders’ meeting of the
Company on 1 November 2014, the Company had declared and paid
cash dividends of RMB110,500,000 in 2014.

The AGM will be held at 10:00 a.m. on Tuesday, 7 June 2016 at
conference room 1503, 15th Floor, Block A, He Cheng International,
1088 Haiyuan Zhong Road, Gaoxin District, Kunming, Yunnan Province,
the PRC. The proposed final dividend is subject to consideration and
approval by the Shareholders at the AGM.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

MiE : BRFIS - BR - ITERBHENEFD
MERFE - BE - ERBHEA2E
FERRF -

RABERR » AEEEEZADAE
BABEBNBHIARE 285988 °

BREHRERERBINABNYARE0.270
T(BE-Z—NF+=ZA=1+—HILHF
E:EREMNNARK0.2067T) » ZE
BREABANESEDNRAQNAEL BESHE
BAEMSFRRERHANC BITHIE
TR 15 #91,058,932,000 % (= & — I
F 1 806,551,000 f%) P BEEE -

EEEeERREEE-_SE-—HE+=A8
St-HLEFENREBRESRARYE
Ol -BE=ZE—HAF+=A=+—8
IEFE » KR FREIRS XA ETHH

RERBRIRE -

BREARTAR-_F-—NFE+-A—H
BRAENRBR F2FR-R
—MEEERREKNTREEREARY
110,500,000 7T °

BREFAEENR-ZZE—~"E~BLH
(B D) EFTRBERERHREEEE
BB Th = 31 &R 5 % 1088 55 F1 AR BRI BR A
FE15#2 1503 R ERT - BEARIRE
BERRNABRBEAEEZBBER
AEE °
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

Chairman £&
Xu Lei £ &

In this vibrant spring, Yunnan Water has ushered in the release of HEEBYEE  tHBANEX EF
its first annual report after the IPO. On behalf of all my colleagues  KEME T EH A AHBREEZEHFRN
in Yunnan Water, | would like to take this opportunity to extend my % - S KA KREFEKELE
sincere gratitude to all Shareholders and members of the community  E{= ' HEBRHSURRMNLEA LR
for their long-term care and support to Yunnan Water! B LARET E K G RVEE O B S 45

The IPO of Yunnan Water was highly recognized by the international ~ ERKEE X AFHBERBHEBERT
capital market. Many renowned international investment institutions T EEwl REERERRERBR
have became the Company’s Shareholders and a group of excellent AEAQATREK » —EFTREEXBAX
investors have became the Company’s partners. This has positive R ESEBH EHEF KBRS HE
and profound significance for Yunnan Water to improve its corporate ~ &E3A/KF - BER B EXREEEREEM
governance level and achieve sustainable development. RENERE °

EEABREROBERDA

2015 £ 3§
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Chairman’s Statement

EREW|E

2015 was a milestone year for Yunnan Water which was successfully
listed on the Stock Exchange with its H Shares being selected as
one of the constituents of the “MSCI Global Small Cap Indexes” in
November 2015 and was positioned as an “urban environmental
integrated services provider”. Yunnan Water continued to expand
its influence in the environmental protection industry of the PRC and
kept expanding its market share in the environmental water industries.
Meanwhile, it actively expand the environmental solid waste treatment
sectors such as waste incineration, hazardous waste and medical
waste to comprehensively develop urban environmental management.
Yunnan Water has gradually entered a new development phase. With
the full support of all Shareholders, the management team and all my
colleagues in Yunnan Water made strenuous efforts and went all out to
produce the first high-growth annual report.

During the Reporting Period, our Group rapidly expanded by gaining
27 new projects, with the total number of projects and the investment
amount hitting historical highs. For the relevant water projects, the
annual designed capacity increased from approximately 1,598,000
tonnes at the beginning of the Reporting Period to approximately
1,895,000 tonnes, representing an increase of approximately 18.6%.
For solid waste disposal projects, the annual designed capacity
increased from approximately 146,000 tonnes at the beginning of
the Reporting Period to 703,000 tonnes, representing an increase
of approximately 381.5%. Starting as a local enterprise in Yunnan
Province, our Group has surpassed its own limitations to successfully
establish a nationwide presence currently covering 7 provinces in
the PRC and managed to expand its international operations. By
establishing a presence in Southeast Asian countries such as Thailand,
our Group has successfully advanced towards a new historical starting
point.

During the Reporting Period, our Company further exploited its
internal management potentials and increased industrial mergers and
acquisitions to maintain the continual increase in operating revenue.
Our Company recorded profit attributable to Shareholders amounting
to approximately RMB317.4 million, representing an increase of
approximately 68.9% (2014: approximately RMB187.9 million) as
compared to the last year, which sustained a high growth trend.

Given our Group’s strong operating results and financial position and
taking into account the Group’s long-term sustainable development,
the Board proposes to pay a final dividend of RMBO0.1 per Share to the
Shareholders to reward their long-term support and contribution to our
Company.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

“E-REREMABHERR R
REZFED  HRR=Z-HF+—A
ARBERTAANERBBRZRNER
BH - PE IR EQRE IR
BEEREE | AHERREXDEHE
BABCHEED  BERRKBER
THREATEDE - BAREEHRRELR
e Y - BEEYSRRERE
REEE  2EBRATRERE &
FABEBRLEAHMNBEREER - £2
BRRWBOZET  EEMKBHNEE
BEMzEECEREA  2HNER
RETEDSERAFR

EEREHR > AEBIERAR Y
27E%IEE c BHANERESHEARE
S HBKBEERREBINE
RTEEEXN150.8BHE R E4189.5
BN ER418.6% @ EEEREEAR
MERVNERTEEEN 14.6 BNIIE
REHN70.3EM » 2R 381.5% ° RE
Bt —EAZEEEAtE REESR
Fl o RINMEEEE BAEKESEEET
9 URWECBEE  EEESERE
DEXRGR AEEXDERQHFNESL
HEE o

CIEEREHA - ARAE-SHBERE
EEMNED  UMRERMKFE  REL
EWRSERA - AR ERRREMNS
BRYAREIITAEEL  REFER
H68.9%(ZE—MF : YAR®187.9
BER) FE-EASERNESD -

ERAEBRENELEZER IR
noERIAEENRYPAUSERE
EFTSRORRRERBREERAR
W01 UERKERBEARFMX
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I would like to express my sincere gratitude to the management and
all my colleagues of our Group for the achievements they made in
2015 and would like to extend my heartfelt thanks to all Shareholders,
members of the Board, all sectors of communities from the Mainland
and Hong Kong and all departments for their full support. The Company
will continue to work hard to constantly generate better returns for the
Shareholders and constantly make contributions to the sustainable
development of the society and environment.

Xu Lei
Chairman

%r/f?

Kunming, the PRC
30 March 2016

Chairman’s Statement
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

TTHRARRRE

As the chief executive officer of Yunnan Water, | am deeply honored to
present to all Shareholders the annual report of our Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

With the nation’s “12™ Five-year Plan” close to its late stage, the
Company, by virtue of a clear development strategy, further developed
the environmental industry to build the whole industrial chain mode of
operation with full efforts, which further enhanced the corporate value.
2015 was the Company’s first year of listing on the Stock Exchange
and was also the first year for the Company to concentrate its efforts
on becoming an “integrated urban environmental services provider”
and was the starting year of a new round of development.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

Chief Executive Officer
THAR
Yu Long F#

EAERKBNITEAR  ElARQ
REREAEEERE_Z-0F+=A
=T-HUEFEZFR  RRBKE -

BEEX+-ARE ISR A1
AREBWHNERER  RARRRE
EX 2HEZEXRBEFEN &
—SRATEXEE - —T-HFER
RARBEXFFLETHESE - FRALQF
BORBHTREGFESREE EEW
B—F R -—WBROERZF -
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During the Reporting Period, under the leadership of the Board,
the Company actively seized the policy opportunity to optimize the
industrial structure by focusing on the annual operating plan, effectively
promote the construction of environmental protection projects,
deepen the reform and improve the overall management standard,
which resulted in a steady operation of all business departments.
The operating results showed a development trend of stable growth.
Total revenue for the full year was approximately RMB1,558.4 million,
representing an increase of approximately 41.6% as compared to
approximately RMB1,100.8 million for the previous year. Profit for the
year was approximately RMB317.4 million, representing an increase of
approximately 68.9% as compared to approximately RMB187.9 million
for the previous year.

On 27 May 2015, the Company was successfully listed on the Stock
Exchange. The issue price of the Shares was HK$5.8 per Share and
the issue size was 33,064.9 million Shares (after the exercise of the
over-allotment option). A total of HK$1.918 billion (before deduction of
expenses) was raised through the IPO. The Company has became the
first state-controlled enterprise in Yunnan Province independently listed
on the Stock Exchange.

The Company created a plurality of “number one” in the Hong Kong
capital market on the Listing Date:

€ water and environmental protection company with the greatest
amount of funds raised in the Hong Kong IPO market tranche

€ water and environmental protection company with the highest
over-subscription rate for the Hong Kong public offer tranche

€ water and environmental protection sector IPO with the highest
over-subscription rate for the international placing tranche

€ IPO with the highest issue valuation in the water and
environmental protection sector

Chief Executive Officer’s Report

ITHRARERE

RBEHARN XA EEETEHNEE
T BEREEHREEE BREEFE
KETHE BILLEXER ERRERE
XEEE BRHERRERER &
tRE 2HEABTEKE BRTE
(¥BBPANBEEE  KLEXEZRE
ERERNBERES -BRE2FHANEY
AR#¥1558488 Rk EFHAR
¥ 41,1008 BB TR 41.6% ; FARE
FHN317485E T BEEEFHYARE
1879 BETIER#68.9% °

“E-RAFREAZ-t+EH ARFRY
EEXERNSE  ROBRTERSS
fr5.878 T BITHK R33,064.98 K
ROTEBRESER) BBEXA
REaELEER10.18RBT(HIKRER
Bl) e ARBRBTEEEE —REBX
Fr@s £ VB AR RS

AAARETEREEBEATSAIE
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report
THRARBRE

CORE COMPETITIVENESS

Resource Advantages and Specialized Technology

The Company has timely launched the objective based on
the protection of Erhai in Yunnan Province and focusing on
the protection of water resources in Erhai and fully leveraged
professional advantages and capabilities such as water
investment and construction, operation and management and
technical services in water-related areas such as raw water
storage, water source protection and treatment, urban and
rural water supply, sewage treatment and use of recycled water
to realize the “Grand Water” Model of whole industrial chain
operation from water source protection to sewage treatment
and from project construction to project operation and the
unified management of water sources, unified construction,
unified production, unified water supply and drainage and unified
operation and management. With advanced technological
processes, the water quality of sewage effluent treated using the
3AMBR technology is far better than the highest national standard
(Grade 1A discharge standard of GB18918-2002) required by the
national sewage treatment industry and various indicators have
reached Surface Water Standard Class IV. Tail water can meet
the needs of a variety of systems for the reuse of reclaimed water
and there are five advanced “three in one” PVDF hollow fiber
membrane production lines.

In the future, by virtue of its specialized technology and brand
advantages in areas such as sewage and garbage treatment, the
Company will aim at the development of Southeast Asia based on
the southwest of China and provide more advanced technologies,
product services and equipment in the aspects of water pollution
control, sewage reclamation and raw water protection for the nine
major plateau lakes, the Three Rivers Basin and the Basin along
the Mekong River in Yunnan Province and launched relevant
technologies, products and filings to overseas markets by
leveraging the geographical advantage of Yunnan Province as an
important bridgehead open to South Asia and Southeast Asia and
policy advantages.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

— RLHED
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ERRIE - WK  STKEEF
BAKNBE S KERE  TH8
BEKKRERR  BEEE - Ky
REEEXEZREEN > BEMAK
TFRREZDSKEE RIEERE
HEHEBENEZELHEENKRS
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—MABEMIZE) - MBS IEIEEE
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Excellent Industrial Value Chain Extension Capability

With the rapid development of the Company’s operations, it will
strive to extend the industrial value chain while maintaining the
original capital and investment advantages to gradually improve
the whole industrial chain pattern of our Company. Currently, the
Company has successfully set foot in the water and solid waste
sectors.

Modern Enterprise Management Mechanism of Market-
oriented Innovation

The Company has consistently promoted the innovation and
reform of enterprise management. Being confronted with intense
market challenges and international competition, the Company
has established a modern enterprise management system
with its own characteristics in line with international practices
and gradually formed an operation and management system
combining internationalization with localization. The Company
has continuously undertaken the optimization of the internal
control system since 2014, further improved the internal control
evaluation system in 2015 and achieved a multi-faceted, multi-level
and multi-system upgrade in the level of enterprise management.

Prominent Industrial Consolidation Capability

With comprehensive technical reserves and a high-quality
technical talent pool, the Company has achieved strong industrial
consolidation capabilities and are able to effectively consolidate
all kinds of the resources of enterprises controlled and invested
by it and can provide resource support to them in various aspects
such as technology, management, manpower, capital, market
development, corporate culture and so on based on different
needs. The Company cooperates with outstanding domestic and
foreign partners which will provide specialized technical support
and assistance to the Group and share advanced international
water technologies and management practices and experience.
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Il. INDUSTRY COMPETITION LANDSCAPE AND
DEVELOPMENT TREND

1. Competition Landscape and Challenges facing the Company’s
Future Development

(1) Diversified competition in the industry and increased
regional competition: In recent years, to further seize and
consolidate the domestic water market, water companies
have accelerated industrial distribution one after another to
occupy key areas. Some large water projects have attracted
wide attention. Merger and acquisition projects, small urban
projects and village and town projects have also gradually
drew the attention of the companies in the water industry
with the implementation of urbanization and environmental
protection policies. Some local governments also regulate
the local markets by way of investing in the establishment
of regional water companies to participate in market
competition. Meanwhile, there are cases where enterprises
from other sectors undergoing transformation and entering
the water and environmental protection market. As a result,
competition in the industry tends to be complicated and
diversified.

(2) Water enterprises face the challenge of transformation and
emerging industries cause market concern: During the “12t%
Five-year Plan” period, the state guided water enterprises to
change their respective strategic positioning to integrated
environmental service provider or system solution provider
through the promulgation of policies. This transformation
is also being recognized by the market and more and more
enterprises. In recent years, emerging industries such
as solid waste treatment, sludge disposal, desalination,
recycling of reclaimed water, disposal of food waste,
landscape water treatment have gradually became hot spots
for investment considered thoroughly by environmental
protection enterprises. The industry competition pattern
has evolved from competing for single water projects to
developing diversified areas in the environmental protection
industry.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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(8 Enhanced government regulation and increased industry
standards bring both opportunities and challenges. During
the “12"" Five-year Plan” period, the state strategically
introduced a series of policies supporting water industry
development. With the implementation of new environmental
protection laws, the introduction of “Ten Measures” and the
promotion of the Public-Private-Partnership (“PPP”) model,
the policy incentives will have a profound impact on the
water industry, which will drive the water industry to enter
a golden development stage. In the foreseeable future, the
supervision of the implementation of industry standards
and the continued improvement of industry regulations
will become one of the major tasks of the government in
monitoring the water industry. Therefore, the reform to
raise standards will become an important task of water
enterprises having projects in stock in the recent few years.
This represents an important test for both the technological
upgrade capability and the operation, management and
control capabilities of enterprises. Meanwhile, a large
number of equipment upgrade and manufacture and
technological reform services are also bound to create
market opportunities, which will provide a certain profit
margin for companies with the appropriate technological
capability.

Prospects for the Development of the Industry

The environmental pollution is becoming increasingly severe in
China. The state is putting increasing emphasis on environmental
protection and investment in the environmental protection
sector has been increasing year after year. During the “9* Five-
year Plan”, approximately RMB351.6 billion was invested in
such sector; during the “10" Five-year Plan”, approximately
RMB839.5 billion was invested in such sector; during the “11t
Five-year Plan”, approximately RMB1.4 trillion was invested in
such sector; and during the “12" Five-year Plan”, approximately
RMB3.4 trillion was invested in such sector. The policy guidance
of the government has facilitated the rapid development of the
environmental protection industry in the PRC. As estimated by the
Academy of Planning of the Ministry of Environmental Protection,
it is anticipated that investment in environmental protection will
be increased to around RMB?2 trillion each year during the “13t®
Five-year Plan”. Total investment in environmental protection
is expected to exceed RMB17 trillion during the “13" Five-year
Plan”.
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With the contradiction between economic development and the
resource environment becoming increasingly prominent in the
PRC, developing the green economy vigorously has become the
general consensus of the whole society. The concept of green
development is also gradually winning support from people
with the introduction of the relevant policies. The development
of the green economy will certainly require the support of the
environmental protection industry. Standing at a new starting
point, the Company will actively grasp the historical development
opportunity of the state’s initiative of advocating green
environmental protection. Based on the current core advantages,
the Company will drive Grand Water whole industrial chain
construction in respect of water supply and sewage, develop
the solid waste industry sector, reinforce the two supporting
points of capital and technology, explore new business models
and seek new growth points so as to further increase its core
competitiveness. While continuing to strengthen the leading
industry position in Yunnan Province, the Company will actively
implement industrial distribution in regions enjoying a competitive
edge by leveraging the power of the international capital market
and targeting the whole country, South Asia and Southeast Asia.
The Company will endeavor to make positive contributions to
the “Vanguard of Ecological Civilization Construction in Yunnan”
and make use of the Group’s technology and funds to create
environmentally friendly cities so as to strive to become a leading
integrated services provider in urban environmental services in the
PRC.
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DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

The Company will firmly grasp the opportunity of the
implementation of the state’s “One Belt, One Road” strategy and
the promotion of the “PPP investment and financing model” by
leveraging its own advantages and taking into account the actual
situation of Yunnan Province and closely combining the water
industry policy of the state with that of Yunnan Province to focus
on the strategic objective of a strong province in green economy
and ethnic culture and a bridgehead of the PRC open to the
southwest, with adjusting the economic structure and changing
the developing mode as the mainline, stepping up efforts in
supporting the industry and expediting industry development as
the focus, reform and opening up and technological innovation
as the driving force and improving people’s livelihood as the goal.
The Company will further optimize the regional economic layout,
accelerate the overall implementation of social construction,
enhance ecological construction, environmental protection
and actively develop the international market, acquire core
management and technology, and reinforce development
capabilities. The Company will further expand the industry chain
continuously through mergers and acquisitions and strategic
cooperation and proceed with synchronous development to
generate synergies and expand the competitive advantages.

In 2016, the Company will further implement the development
strategy of becoming an “urban environmental integrated services
provider” with core technologies, strong investment and financing
capabilities, core competitiveness and social influence which is
based in Yunnan Province, serves the whole country and moves
towards South Asia and Southeast Asia. Meanwhile, the Company
will accelerate distribution in the water and solid waste treatment
sectors and plan to steadily increase the profitability of the
Company through investment in regions and countries such as
Zhejiang, Fujian, Xinjiang, Heilongjiang, Inner Mongolia, Thailand,
Malaysia and Indonesia to endeavor to create greater value for the
Shareholders.
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IV.

OPERATING PLAN

In 2016, the Company will firmly grasp the market opportunities of
PPP projects and small town projects that are currently emerging
and the favorable opportunity of accelerating development in
the environmental protection market. The Company will actively
participate in tender project activities in the market and extend
the environmental protection industry chain further through multi-
channel research and increasing investment in environmental
protection businesses such as water and solid waste treatment to
endeavor to expand the overseas market. Apart from increasing
the operation and management standards of the Company’s own
projects and continuing to improve the Company’s group-oriented
management and the construction of the relevant network
platform, the Company will save part of the costs through the
overall planning of the existing resources of various subsidiaries
and will deeply tap the potential to increase the profit level. With
regard to internal management, the Company will enhance the
capabilities of investment, operation, engineering, technology and
equipment and mutual coordination and achieve the fast, efficient
and steady development of our Company by mastering the
relationship between scale and quality and between speed and
effectiveness to create higher value for all Shareholders.

CAPITAL PLAN

While maintaining the current operations and meeting the needs
of capital required by investment project companies under
construction, the Company will actively explore multi-channel
low-cost financing packages in accordance with the Company’s
development needs and optimize the debt structure to improve
capital efficiency, providing effective capital support for the
development of the Company.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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VL.

POSSIBLE BUSINESS RISKS

(1)

Market expansion and investment risks: the nation’s market-
oriented reform of water industry has gone through more
than 10 years. The domestic water industry has achieved
remarkable results in market orientation. However, it
also means prime water project resources are gradually
decreasing. In recent years, the domestic water market
has shown the characteristics of intensifying mergers,
acquisitions and reorganizations and an increasing number
of small and medium projects. Limited market space and
the diversified ways of obtaining projects will bring new
challenges and obstacles to the further expansion of the
Company’s business. Water projects, while attracting
attention from the community, have caused the purchase
and sale advantages to shift towards the seller, which
has to a certain extent increased the Company’s costs
in participating in bidding for water projects. Meanwhile,
some factors inherent in China’s water industry that
are unfavorable to the market-oriented reform such as
geographical segmentation and local protectionism still
exist, making it more difficult for the Company to enter
emerging water markets and affecting the pace of the
Group’s business expansion.

Countermeasures: in line with the market development trend,
the Company will enhance the specialized equipment of
marketing staff, increase the coverage and depth of market
expansion and keep track of frontier market information
in a timely manner, and at the same time, further enhance
investment evaluation criteria control and scientific decision
making management to step up efforts in project risk
management and control. While striving to promote and
expand the Company’s project investment in the relevant
sectors, the Company will seek a balance between market
share and investment income.
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Operation and management risks: the Company
currently holds and has invested in 85 companies
which distribute over all provinces, cities and
autonomous regions in China and overseas. The
Company has formed a relatively complete risk
management and internal control system and improve
it every year. However, due to the differences in
the Company’s branches in terms of geographical
distribution, humanistic features and corporate culture,
certain management and supervision risks may arise.

Countermeasures: Combined with the establishment
of the internal control system, the Company has
further improved the operation and management
system and the business process, established and
advocated a unified corporate culture conforming to
the features of the water industry and possessing the
characteristics of Yunnan Water, and strengthened the
cultural construction of subsidiaries. The Company
will constantly train middle management and bring its
philosophies of management, operation and culture to
subsidiaries in different localities through constantly
replenishing the backbone. Meanwhile, the Company
will enhance the overall cohesion and solidarity
through mutual assistance and communication among
subsidiaries.

Cost control risks: In recent years, prices of energy,
labor and raw materials have been continuously
increasing, leading to greater inflation pressure.
Most of the Company’s projects are new projects.
Therefore, the Company will further strengthened its
efforts in managing issues such as project cost control,
operation management and investment income.
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Countermeasures: On one hand, the Company will
put emphasis on talent reservation and cultivation.
With the rapid development of its operations,
professional and efficient technical personnel have
become a strong support for the Company on the
road ahead. On the other hand, the Company will
improve internal management, enhance the Company’s
management capability, strictly implement dynamic
cost management during the stage of project
implementation, endeavor to extend the management
aspect forward and enhance project cost management
support. Focusing on regulating management, the
Company will enhance the management of and
control over companies invested and controlled by the
Company and adopt measures such as supervision,
inspection and training to strive to drive operation and
management efforts.

Policy risks: Environmental protection projects such
as water and solid waste are characterized by their
public welfare nature and long investment cycles.
Given the fact that the country’s economic growth
is subject to cyclical changes with differences in the
specific situations of different localities and that the
time and extent for the adjustment of water prices are
also subject to certain uncertainties, water investments
are subject to certain policy risks as well as restrictions
from laws, policies and local regulations.
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Countermeasures: Environmental protection is a key
basic industry supported by the state. In recent years,
the state has introduced various policies to provide
support. With the demand for environmental protection
becoming increasingly urgent, the overall policy for
the environmental protection industry will be positive
over a long period of time. The Company will pay close
attention to changes in the state’s macroeconomic
policies and take full advantage of the preferential
policies provided by the state to enhance the collection,
study and analysis of market and industrial policy
information. Through adjusting the internal business
structure, the Company will improve the standard of
scientific decision making of its management, enhance
the Company’s resilience and the ability to resist policy
risks.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

In 2015, the rapid growth of our Company relied on loyal employees
who had made relentless efforts in contributing to the development
of the Company and the support and assistance provided by the
Shareholders to the Group. On behalf of the management, | would like
to express my deep appreciation to employees of all departments for
their contribution and would also like to express by heartfelt gratitude
to the Shareholders and business partners for their long-term support
and trust. The Company will strictly abide by the Listing Rules, grasp
development opportunities to improve operation and management,
reward the Shareholders with even better performance for their trust
and make contribution to the community.

Yu Long
Chief Executive Officer

T

Kunming, the PRC
30 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The development plan for “Building a Beautiful China” by the
18th National Congress of the Communist Party of China has
revolutionized China’s environment protection industry to an
unprecedented development. After the official implementation of
the most stringent amendments to the Environmental Protection
Law of the PRC (FZE A RHEMEIRIZEREL)) on 1 January 2015,
the pressure on local governments in terms of environmental
performance assessment has been increased and the requirement
for environmental governance has been strengthened. According
to the Comprehensive Scheme on Energy Saving and Emission
Reduction during the 12th Five-Year Plan Period (+ = & | &
BER BE 4R & 1 I 1E 75 &), the performance assessment result of
emission reduction will be referred to as an important basis for a
comprehensive evaluation and the selection and appointment of
the management team and members of state-owned enterprises.
For the purpose of satisfying such performance assessment,
it is anticipated that the local governments will emphasize the
development of environmental protection industry such as water
industry and solid waste treatment industries, and will promulgate
more preferential policies for these industries.

The State Council of the PRC and the relevant ministries have
successively issued the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention
Action Plan (KX & 55 3 B & 17 B 5 2l ), the Water Pollution
Prevention Action Plan {7k 55 # B5 & 47 8 5t &l )), and major
pollution prevention plans such as the forthcoming Soil Pollution
Prevention Action Plan (L 3£ 55 % & ¥ 17 8 5+ #| )) and the
Pollutant Emission Standards for Sewage Treatment Plants in
Towns and Counties (K3 $85 7K 52 ¥ i )5 2 ¥ HE iR %)) which
guide enterprises to strictly control emission standards, introduce
advanced technology and promote diversified investments,
including the introduction of social capital, increasing government
funding allocation and further strengthening of supervision and
strict environmental law enforcement. In light of the above, it is
expected to bring huge market opportunities and development
potential for China’s water and solid waste treatment related
environmental protection industries.

Driven by national strategies, water and solid waste treatment
enterprises will benefit from the rapid acceleration of the
urbanization process in the PRC and the policy support of the
Chinese government for the environmental protection industry.
The Board expects the business scale of such enterprises will
be further expanded and the investors in the capital markets will
also gradually pay more attention to the environmental protection
industry.
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DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES AND PROSPECT

The Group is one of the leading enterprises in investing and
operating urban sewage treatment, water supply and solid waste
treatment facilities in the PRC. The Company has a solid base of
shareholders comprising state-owned and private enterprises,
and has unique competitive advantages in the development of
wastewater treatment, water supply and solid waste treatment
projects as well as identifying suitable targets for investment
and acquisition in the PRC and Southeast Asia. The Group has
extensive experience in the design, investment, construction
and operation of raw water supply, tap water supply and
wastewater treatment and solid waste treatment projects, and has
accumulated extensive technical expertise, enabling the Group
to implement appropriate measures according to preliminary
assessment of the projects and to fully satisfy customers’
requirements by timely selecting a precise technical process and
utilizing professional and systematic management.

The Group strives to become a leading municipal environmental
protection integrated services provider, and aims to strengthen
its industry position in Yunnan Province persistently through
geographical expansion to favorable regions in the PRC where
the Group has competitive advantages, in particular northern,
eastern, northwestern and southwestern regions of the PRC.
The Group will pay close attention to certain overseas markets
such as Southeast Asia. The Group will capture the opportunities
arising from the environmental protection industry and combine
with practical experience gained in the PPP mode of cooperation
between government and social capital to acquire suitable
projects which are complementary to its existing businesses,
and further increase its market share. The Group will continue to
enhance its technological and project management standards
to further improve operational efficiency, and will seize the
opportunities to develop signature projects to further strengthen
its market presence and gain wider recognition effectively.

The Group will continue to adopt the Build-Operate-Transfer
(“BOT”), Build-Own-Operate (“BO0O”), Transfer-Own-Operate
(“TOO”), Transfer- Operate-Transfer (“TOT”), Build and Transfer
(“BT”), Engineering- Procurement-Construction (“EPC”) and
Operation and Maintenance (“O&M”) models as well as licensed
operation models to provide turnkey solutions of raw water and
tap water supply, wastewater treatment, solid waste treatment
as well as system integration services of core technologies to
customers, and increase the integrated treatment capacities of
the Group, laying the foundation for realizing its development
plans.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2015 is the first year for listing of the Company on Stock
Exchange. The successful IPO has not only strengthened the
shareholders base of the Group, but also further enhanced the
Group’s financing capability and increased its brand awareness
and reputation. During the Reporting Period, the Group continued
to steadily develop its various business segments. Due to
the support of the relevant favorable policies in the PRC and
Southeast Asia and the growing market demands, in addition
to consolidating and expanding the achievements gained in the
existing water business, the Group continued its expansion in
industrial hazardous wastes, medical hazardous wastes, waste
power generation and other areas of solid waste treatment,
striving to maintain its leading position in a highly competitive
market environment and achieving excellent results.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group mainly adopts the BOT, BOO, TOO, TOT, BT, EPC,
O&M and licensed operation models in its businesses to provide
customized and integrated turnkey solutions for raw water and
tap water supply, wastewater treatment and solid waste treatment
as well as system integration services of core technologies to
customers.

The Group’s businesses are carried out in various provinces
within the PRC and several major cities in Thailand. The Group’s
principal businesses comprise five major segments, namely,
wastewater treatment, water supply, solid waste treatment,
construction and equipment sales, and others (including O&M
projects for wastewater treatment, water supply and municipal
waste disposal projects entrusted operation, and consultancy
services). The Group’s relevant water projects have the total
daily treatment capacity amounted to approximately 1,895,000
tonnes as at 31 December 2015, representing an increase of
approximately 18.6% compared to the total daily treatment
capacity amounted to approximately 1,598,000 tonnes as at 31
December 2014. The Group’s relevant solid waste treatment
projects have the total annual solid waste treatment capacity
amounted to approximately 703,000 tonnes as at 31 December
2015, representing an increase of approximately 381.5%
compared to the total annual capacity amounted to approximately
146,000 tonnes as at 31 December 2014.
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Wastewater Treatment Projects

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 52
concession wastewater treatment projects under construction and
in operation, including 5 BOO projects, 38 BOT projects, 2 TOO
projects and 7 TOT projects, with total daily wastewater treatment
capacity of approximately 1,024,000 tonnes, representing an
addition of 3 BOT projects and 2 TOT projects year-on-year,
and an increase in total daily wastewater treatment capacity of
approximately 155,000 tonnes compared with the year ended
31 December 2014, representing a growth rate of approximately
17.8%.

During the Reporting Period, concession projects which
commenced commercial operation had a total daily wastewater
treatment capacity of approximately 769,000 tonnes, representing
an addition of 2 new BOT projects and 2 TOT projects year-on-
year which commenced commercial operation, and an increase
in total daily wastewater treatment capacity of approximately
125,000 tonnes compared with the year ended 31 December
2014. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s effective
wastewater treatment utilization rate was approximately 69.2%,
and the average unit charge of wastewater treatment was
approximately RMB1.06 per tonne.

As at 31 December 2015, 8 concession projects had not
commenced commercial operation with a total daily wastewater
treatment capacity of approximately 255,000 tonnes, representing
an addition of 1 new BOT project year-on-year and an increase in
total daily wastewater treatment capacity of approximately 30,000
tonnes compared with 31 December 2014.

With an outstanding track record for project operation, the Group
has established a good reputation as a professional services
provider of wastewater treatment. This will enable the Group to
secure future projects arising from active market development
and existing customers.

Water Supply Projects

During the Reporting Period, the Group had 23 water supply
concession projects with total daily capacity of approximately
646,000 tonnes, representing an addition of 6 new BOT projects
and 1 new BOO project year-on-year, and an increase in total
daily capacity of approximately 125,000 tonnes compared with 31
December 2014.
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During the Reporting Period, concession projects which
commenced commercial operation had a total daily capacity of
approximately 365,000 tonnes, representing an addition of 2 new
BOO projects which commenced commercial operation year-
on-year and an increase in total daily capacity of approximately
50,000 tonnes compared with the year ended 31 December 2014.
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s effective water supply
utilization rate was approximately 65.1%, and the average unit
charge of water supply was approximately RMB2.35 per tonne.

As at 31 December 2015, 10 concession projects had not
commenced commercial operation with a total daily capacity of
approximately 281,000 tonnes, representing an addition of 6 new
BOT projects pending for operation with a total daily capacity of
approximately 105,000 tonnes, and 1 BOO project with a total
daily capacity of approximately 20,000 tonnes compared with 31
December 2014. As at 31 December 2015, 2 BOO projects had
commenced commercial operation with a total daily capacity of
approximately 50,000 tonnes.

Solid Waste Disposal Projects

During the Reporting Period, the Group had successfully
expanded its business to cover solid waste treatment and had 4
solid waste treatment projects with annual treatment capacity of
approximately 557,000 tonnes. As at 31 December 2015, 3 solid
waste treatment projects with total annual treatment capacity of
approximately 301,000 tonnes were under commercial operation
and 1 solid waste treatment project with annual treatment
capacity of approximately 256,000 tonnes was pending to
commence commercial operation. During the Reporting Period,
the Group’s effective utilization rate of solid waste disposal
projects was approximately 85.7%.

Construction and Equipment Sales

The Group’s construction and equipment sales segment
comprises BT projects, EPC projects and equipment sales. As at
31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 9 BT projects, which
were either under construction and/or completed, among which
income of 7 BT projects were recognised during the Reporting
Period, representing an addition of 6 new BT projects under
construction as compared with 31 December 2014.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 5 EPC
projects, representing an addition of 2 EPC projects as compared
with 31 December 2014.
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Iv.

The Group engages in the production, sales and installation of
equipment necessary for wastewater treatment, water supply
and solid waste treatment facilities. The major category of water
equipment in the Group’s production is membrane products. All
of the membrane products are produced by the own plant of the
Group.

Others

During the Reporting Period, the Group also undertook O&M
projects for wastewater treatment, tap water supply and solid
waste treatment facilities owned by third parties, as well as
provision of technical and consultancy services in relation to
environmental protection. As at 31 December 2015, the Group
had 26 O&M projects, including 1 solid waste treatment project
with annual treatment capacity of approximately 146,000 tonnes,
1 tap water project with daily capacity of approximately 5,000
tonnes and 24 wastewater treatment projects of daily wastewater
treatment capacity of approximately 221,000 tonnes, representing
an addition of 3 new wastewater treatment O&M projects and an
increase in total daily capacity of approximately 17,000 tonnes as
compared with 31 December 2014.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of Operation

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB1,558.4 million, representing an increase
of approximately 41.6% compared with the year ended 31
December 2014. During the Reporting Period, the Group realized
a net profit of approximately RMB317.4 million, representing
an increase of approximately 68.9% compared with the year
ended 31 December 2014. Profit attributable to the owners of the
Company was approximately RMB285.9 million, representing an
increase of approximately 71.6% as compared with 31 December
2014. Earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2015
was approximately RMBO0.27.

Revenue

Revenue of the Group increased from approximately RMB1,100.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately
RMB1,558.4 million for the Reporting Period, representing an
increase of approximately 41.6%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In respect of the business segments of the Group, revenue from
wastewater treatment increased by approximately 9.5% from
approximately RMB383.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 to approximately RMB420.0 million for the Reporting
Period. Revenue from water supply increased by approximately
110.5% from approximately RMB216.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2014 to approximately RMB454.6 million for the
Reporting Period. Revenue from solid waste treatment increased
from nil for the year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately
RMB8.2 million for the Reporting Period. Revenue from
construction and equipment sales increased by approximately
27.0% from approximately RMB470.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2014 to approximately RMB597.0 million for the
Reporting Period. Revenue from other business increased by
approximately 153.5% from approximately RMB31.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately RMB78.6
million for the Reporting Period. The breakdown of revenue by
business segments of the Group are as follows:
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According to the chart above, the increase in revenue from the
wastewater treatment segment was mainly attributable to (i) the
increase in wastewater treatment capacity and the unit price of
wastewater treatment charged by some sewage treatment plants,
and (ii) the wastewater treatment projects acquired in 2014 which
realized a full-year revenue during the Reporting Period, and some
concession projects having commenced commercial operation
which were previously under construction in 2014.
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The increase in revenue from the water supply segment was
mainly attributable to (i) the BOO projects acquired in 2014
which realized a full-year revenue during the Reporting Period,
and (ii) the increase in construction revenue and finance revenue
generated from certain water supply projects, which were
previously under construction.

The increase in revenue from the solid waste treatment segment
was mainly attributable to the commencement of the Group’s
solid waste treatment business during the Reporting Period and
the acquisitions of certain solid waste treatment projects, which
were under commercial operation.

The increase in revenue from the construction and equipment
sales segment was mainly attributable to (i) the expansion of EPC
and equipment sales business, and (ii) the 7 BT projects including
those newly acquired during the Reporting Period.

The increase in revenue from other business segment was mainly
attributable to the addition of certain O&M projects.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales of the Group for the Reporting Period was
approximately RMB1,050.8 million, representing an increase of
approximately 37.0% as compared with approximately RMB767.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2014. The increase was
primarily due to (i) increase in construction cost due to more
projects were under construction; (ii) increase in operating costs
due to increase in projects under operation; (iii) certain newly
acquired solid waste treatment projects; and (iv) increase in sales
scale of EPC and equipment.

Gross Profit Margin

For the Reporting Period, gross profit margin of the Group was
approximately 32.6%, representing a slight increase compared
with approximately 30.3% for the year ended 31 December 2014.
The increase was primarily due to (i) increase in per unit price
water supply in certain projects, and (ii) increase in gross profit
margin of concession project construction by providing equipment
and system integration services to the Group’s own wastewater
and tap water supply projects.
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Other Income and Other gains - net

For the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other income
and other gains-net of approximately RMB110.0 million in
aggregate as compared with approximately RMB52.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014, representing an increase
of approximately 110.3%. The amount for the Reporting Period
comprised government subsidy of approximately RMB68.6
million. The increase was primarily due to (i) the increase of
government subsidy granted for BOO projects, (ii) the increase in
interest income generated from bank deposit, and (iii) recognition
of a negative goodwill from acquisition.

Selling Expenses

For the Reporting Period, selling expenses of the Group was
approximately RMB17.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately 27.4% from approximately RMB13.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014. The increase was due to newly
acquired projects in 2014 were in operation throughout the year in
2015.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by RMB55.4
million from approximately RMB125.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2014 to approximately RMB181.2 million for the
Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately
44.0%. Increase in administrative expenses was primarily due to
(i) the expansion of the Group’s business, which resulted in the
increase in employee benefit expenses, office expenses, travelling
expenses, accommodation expenses and operating lease rental
expenses, and (ii) the expenses incurred in connection with the
IPO.

Finance Costs - net

Net finance costs increased by RMB9.7 million from
approximately RMB31.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 to approximately RMB41.2 million for the Reporting Period,
representing an increase of approximately 30.8%. Increase in
net finance costs was primarily due to the larger scale of debt
financing.

The average interest rate on borrowings of the Group for
the Reporting Period was approximately 6.36% per annum,
representing a marginal decrease compared with approximately
6.84% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Profit Before Income Tax

As a result of the above factors, the Group recorded profit before
income tax of approximately RMB382.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2015, representing an increase of approximately
69.3% as compared with approximately RMB226.2 million
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses increased by RMB27.1 million from
approximately RMB38.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 to approximately RMB65.4 million for the Reporting Period,
representing an increase of approximately 70.8%. Increase in
income tax expenses was in line with the increase in profit before
income tax.

Profit and Net Profit Margin for the Reporting Period

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the Reporting Period
increased by RMB129.5 million from approximately RMB187.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately
RMB317.4 million for the Reporting Period, representing an
increase of approximately 68.9%. Net profit margin increased
from approximately 17.1% for the year ended 31 December 2014
to approximately 20.4% for the Reporting Period.

Receivables under Service Concession Arrangements

The Group’s receivables under service concession arrangements
increased by RMB499.0 million from approximately RMB1,454.3
million as at 31 December 2014 to approximately RMB1,953.3
million as at 31 December 2015, representing an increase of
approximately 34.3%. Such increase was primarily due to the
additional investment in BOT and TOT projects by the Group
which led to an increase in the outstanding receivables under the
service concession arrangements.
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Trade and Other Receivables

The Group’s trade and other receivables increased by RMB986.6
million from approximately RMB983.7 million as at 31 December
2014 to approximately RMB1,970.3 million as at 31 December
2015, representing an increase of approximately 100.3%. Such
increase was primarily due to (i) the increase in trade and other
receivables of the projects newly acquired by the Group, (ii)
increase in EPC services and equipment sales, and (jii) increase in
deposit for proposed projects.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Group’s total cash balance of increased by RMB1,079.1
million from approximately RMB612.6 million as at 31 December
2014 to approximately RMB1,691.7 million as at 31 December
2015 (comprising cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB1,672.1 million and restricted cash of approximately
RMB19.6 million), representing an increase of approximately
176.2%. Such increase was primarily due to the fund raised from
the IPO and increased scale of debt financing.

Trade and Other Payables

The Group’s trade and other payables increased by RMB252.2
million from approximately RMB876.7 million as at 31 December
2014 to approximately RMB1,128.9 million as at 31 December
2015, representing an increase of approximately 28.8%. Such
increase was primarily due to (i) increase in trade payables
of newly acquired projects; (ii) increase in purchasing cost of
construction and equipment sales, operation in wastewater
treatment and water supply facility; and (iii) the remaining
considerations to be paid for new acquired projects.
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Borrowings

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had borrowings of
approximately RMB3,064.3 million (31 December 2014:
approximately RMB1,139.3 million), out of which approximately
RMB2,076.3 million (31 December 2014: approximately RMB837.3
million) was at fixed interest rates and approximately RMB988.0
million (31 December 2014: approximately RMB302.0 million) was
at floating interest rates.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had unsecured borrowings
of approximately RMB2,250.9 million (31 December 2014:
approximately RMB650.0 million) and recurred borrowings
of approximately RMB813.4 million (31 December 2014:
approximately RMB489.3 million).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had borrowings of
approximately RMB153.9 million which were secured by land use
rights and properties of the Group, non-controlling interests and
external parties (31 December 2014: borrowings of approximately
RMB100.0 million secured by land use rights). As at 31 December
2015, the Group had borrowings of approximately RMB659.5
million (31 December 2014: approximately RMB362.3 million)
which were secured by right of charges from concession projects
of tap water supply and wastewater treatment.

Capital Commitments

The Group’s capital commitments increased by RMB574.9 million
from approximately RMB323.8 million as at 31 December 2014
to approximately RMB898.7 million as at 31 December 2015,
representing an increase of approximately 177.5%. Such increase
was primarily due to business expansion and Group’s increased
investments in properties, plants and equipment, BT and BOT
projects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio (calculated as total borrowings divided
by total assets) increased from approximately 22.7% as at 31
December 2014 to approximately 31.9% as at 31 December
2015. The fluctuation in gearing ratio was mainly due to increase
in borrowings to finance the acquisitions during the year.

The Initial Public Offering

The H Shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange
on 27 May 2015, and 287,521,000 H Shares with nominal value
of RMB1.00 each had been issued by the Company at the
price of HK$5.8 per Share, with a total amount received from
the issuance (before deduction of expenses) of approximately
HK$1,667,621,800. On 10 June 2015, the over-allotment option
was fully exercised and 43,128,000 H Shares with nominal value
of RMB1.00 each were issued at the price of HK$5.8 per Share,
with a total amount received from the issuance (before deduction
of expenses) of approximately HK$250,142,400. After completion
of the IPO, the total number of the Company’s H Shares was
363,713,900 (including the H Shares converted from Domestic
Shares on a one-for-one basis). The proceeds from the IPO after
deducting the expenses was approximately HK$1,739 million.
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Use of Proceeds from the IPO

Net proceeds from the IPO was approximately HK$1,739
million, the utilization of which is in line with the information as
disclosed in the Prospectus. As at 31 December 2015, the Group
has utilized proceeds of approximately HK$1,438 million, and
unutilized proceeds amounted to approximately HK$301 million.
The respective utilization of the net proceeds as at 31 December
2015 was as follows:

Utilization of Proceeds

For investing in and developing
new wastewater treatment HokIEH
and water supply projects

For the acquisition of existing AR5 KEIRIEE
wastewater treatment projects

For repayment of portion of RAREZRHARITER

current bank borrowings

ARBRAERATEEEER
—MRAT AR

For funding the Company’s
working capital and
general corporate purposes

RARIRERBRINSKEER

BRALRBERSRERE

BRAAHBREMSREFENS
1,730 B BBt FIBREHAE
HAQAFAMNBREEFEEER
B BBZE=-Z-HE+=A
=t+-BAREECHERAEBRE
1,438 E BB T MAREARS
HBHI1TEEE T - BEZE=Z
—hAFE+ZRA=+—HAWFBHIE
FHESERENT -

Unutilized
Amount Utilized Amount

£ BER KREAEHE

HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
BEET BEET BEET

522 522 0
522 412 110
522 466 56
173 38 135

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed 2,005 employees
(31 December 2014: 1,739). For the year ended 31 December
2015, staff cost was approximately RMB148.3 million (for the
year ended 31 December 2014: RMB101.6 million). The Group
will strive to ensure that the remuneration level of employees is in
line with industry practices and prevailing market conditions, and
remunerations of employees will be determined based on their
performance. The remuneration package provided to employees
also include basic and floating salaries, discretionary bonus and
staff benefits. The Group also provides external and internal
training programs for its employees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group did not experience any significant labour disputes
causing any material impact on its normal business operations.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The majority of the Group’s operations are in the PRC and most
of its transactions are settled in RMB, which is its functional
currency. However, the Group is subject to foreign exchange rate
risk, as its cash and cash equivalents and borrowings are mainly
denominated in Euro, Hong Kong dollar and US dollar. The Group
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy, and the Group
manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the scale
of its foreign currency transactions and its foreign currency assets
and liabilities. If the Euro, Hong Kong dollar or the US dollar
strengthens, a foreign exchange loss will be charged to the Group
and the Group’s profit will be reduced, and vice versa. Currently,
the Group does not have any derivative financial instrument to
hedge its foreign currency risk.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Final Dividend

The Board has resolved to declare a final dividend of RMBO0.1 per
share (tax included) for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
proposed distribution of final dividend by the Company is subject
to approval at the AGM. Upon approval, the final dividend will be
paid on or before 28 July 2016.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS

— On 17 September 2015, the Company entered into an
agreement with Shandong Tengyue Chemical Hazardous
Waste Research & Treatment Co., Ltd* (1I 3R & B 1t 2
R EYMREEAFR A F) (“Tengyue”) and its original
shareholders to acquire 51% equity interest of Tengyue
through increase of registered capital at a consideration of
RMB416.3 million. Tengyue’s principal activities are chemical
hazardous waste disposal. This transaction was completed
on 2 November 2015.
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— On 21 September 2015, the Company entered into an
equity transfer agreement with an independent third party
to acquire 100% equity interest in Ningde Zhangwan Waste
Incineration and Power Generation Co., Ltd.* (88 & & &
17 3% B 452 2% E A BR 2 7)), which holds concession right of
household waste incineration and power generation project
in Ningde City at a consideration of RMB213.9 million.

— On 6 November 2015, the Company entered into an
equity transfer agreement with an independent third party
to acquire 100% equity interest in PJT Technology Co.,
Limited, which holds concession right of urban waste-to-
energy generation project in the Phuket Island, Thailand at
a consideration of USD70.0 million. This acquisition was
completed on 30 December 2015.

— On 18 December 2015, the Company entered into an
equity transfer agreement with an independent third party
to acquire 60% equity interest in Yunnan Zhengxiao
Environmental Protection Investment Co., Ltd.* (& & 1E B
B R R E EBR 2 7)), which holds medical waste treatment
project at a consideration of RMB300.0 million. This
acquisition was completed on 21 December 2015.

— On 21 December 2015, the Company entered into an equity
transfer agreement with an independent third party to
acquire 65% equity interest in Future International Group
Co., Limited, which holds water supply project in Qingzhou
Shandong Province, at a consideration of RMB292.5 million.

For details of the above-mentioned significant investments and
acquisitions, please refer to the announcements published by
the Company on 17 September 2015, 21 September 2015, 6
November 2015, 20 December 2015 and 21 December 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

VI. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 21 December 2015, the Company entered into an equity
transfer agreement with an independent third party to
acquire 65% equity interest in Future International Group
Co., Limited, which holds water supply project in Qingzhou
Shandong Province, at a consideration of RMB292.5 million.
This acquisition was completed on 8 January 2016.

On 11 January 2016, the Company entered into an equity
transfer agreement with Environmental Experts (China)
Development & Investment Company Limited and Hong
Kong Rich Investment Limited to acquire 100% equity
interest of Harbin Guo Huan Medical Solid Waste Harmless
Centralized Disposal Center Co., Ltd.* (/% 8 /& B 3R 28 /&
BEYVEESLCLEFEEFROLBRAF) (“Guo Huan”) at the
consideration of RMB290.6 million. Guo Huan’s principal
activities are harmless treatment of medical wastes and
hazardous wastes. Details of this acquisition are set out in
the announcement published by the Company on 11 January
2016.

Mr. Wen Jianping resigned from non-executive Director
effective on 17 March 2016. For details of his resignation,
please refer to the announcement published by the Company
on 17 March 2016.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Lei (“Mr. Xu”), aged 49, joined our Group in June 2011 as
Chairman and non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Xu obtained
an executive master of business administration degree from Peking
University in July 2007 and doctor of philosophy in study of industrial
economics from Wuhan University of Technology in Wuhan in June
2012. He is mainly responsible for formulating the Group’s business
development strategies and making major operational decisions,
supervising and examining the execution of board resolutions. Mr.
Xu has extensive senior management experience in the aspects of
urban development, urban water supply, culture and tourism, medical
services, biopharmaceuticals, financial education and hotel industry.
Mr. Xu is also the chairman of YMCI. He is also the chairman of Yunnan
Metropolitan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shanghai stock exchange, stock code: 600239), and the chairman
of Champion Property & Casualty Insurance Co., Ltd. In addition, he is
also the chairman of Caiyun International Investment Limited (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of YMCI). On 1 October 2015, Mr. Xu was appointed
as vice chairman and non-executive director of Top Spring International
Holdings Limited (its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 3688).
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Jiao Jun (“Mr. Jiao”), aged 59, is the non-executive Director of the
Company Mr. Jiao joined the Company as Director in May 2014. Mr.
Jiao obtained a bachelor’s degree in solid mechanics from Lanzhou
University in Lanzhou in January 1982, and a master’s degree in
earthquake engineering from Yunnan College of Engineering in Yunnan
in July 1987. Mr. Jiao obtained the qualification of senior engineer
in engineering management in February 1996. Mr. Jiao is mainly
responsible for formulating the Company’s business development
strategies and providing advice on audit and risk management. He has
extensive and professional working experience in environmental and
water works industry. Mr. Jiao has served as lecturers in Southwest
Forestry University and Yunnan Technology University. Mr. Jiao
held different positions in various departments of the Department
of Construction of Yunnan between 1988 and 2011, including clerk
for deputy director, clerk for director, deputy director, director of the
office of anti-earthquake command headquarters, head of the anti-
earthquake department and head of the financial planning department.
He has been the deputy general manager of YMCI since June 2011.
Mr. Jiao has been appointed as director of Yunnan Circular Economy
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Circular Economy”) (which was held by YMCI
and Yunnan Province Water) since December 2013 and was appointed
as chairman in July 2014. He has been appointed as executive director
of Kunming Future City Development Co., Ltd. since September 2014.
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Mr. Yu Long (“Mr. Yu”), aged 44, joined the Company in June 2011
as executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr.
Yu obtained a MBA degree from Guanghua School of Management,
Peking University in Beijing in July 2013. Mr. Yu won the “Yunnan
Labour Medal” awarded by Yunnan Provincial Union Federation in 2012
and 2013 and the “Yunnan 2008-2012 town wastewater and household
waste treatment facilities construction advancement - personal award”
granted by the People’s Government of Yunnan Province. Mr. Yu is
mainly responsible for the overall operation and management, strategic
planning and business development of the Company. Mr. Yu has
more than 14 years of experience in environmental and water works
industry, market development, project management, investment capital
management, and risk control management. Mr. Yu has been appointed
as part-time professor of the Urban Construction and Management
School of Yunnan University and the Environmental Science and
Engineering School of Kunming University of Technology successively
since April 2012. Mr. Yu was appointed as general manager of water
works division and deputy general manager of Beijing Tsinghua Novel
Environmental Protection Company Limited between July 2003 and
August 2007. Mr. Yu was appointed as project management director
of Kardan Water Group Limited between August 2007 and July 2008.
Between July 2008 and April 2009, Mr. Yu was appointed as the deputy
general manager of Ruoshi (Beijing) Investment Co., Ltd. Between May
2009 and October 2012, Mr. Yu was appointed as the sales director
and the deputy general manager of Beijing OriginWater. Mr. Yu has
been appointed as chairman or director of various subsidiaries of our
Company since January 2011.
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Mr. He Yuanping (“Mr. He”), aged 49, joined our Group in June
2011 as a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. He obtained a
bachelor’s degree in engineering from Nanjing University of Science
and Technology in Nanjing in July 1987. He also completed a master’s
degree in mechanical engineering in Beijing University of Science
and Technology in Beijing in February 1992 and obtained a master’s
degree in finance from the Victoria University of Wellington in New
Zealand in July 2000. He is mainly responsible for formulating the
Company’s business strategies and providing advice on audit and risk
management. He has more than ten years of management experience
in large-scale enterprises and the water works industry. Mr. He was
appointed as director, deputy general manager and chief financial
officer of Beijing OriginWater Science and Technology Development
Co., Ltd. (predecessor of Beijing OriginWater) from September 2005 to
June 2007. Mr. He was appointed as director, deputy general manager,
chief financial officer and secretary to the board of directors of Beijing
OriginWater since June 2007. He has been appointed as chairman
and director of a number of subsidiaries of Beijing OriginWater since
May 2011. Mr. He has been appointed as director of Wuhan Sanzhen
Industry Holding Co., Ltd. (a company listed and traded its shares on
the Shanghai stock exchange, stock code: 600168) since November
2013. He has been appointed as an independent director of Telestone
Technology Corporation (a company listed on Nasdaq, stock code:
TSTC) since November 2011 and independent non-executive director
of Yingde Gases Group Co., Ltd. (its shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 2168) since December 2013.

Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi (“Mr. Feng”), aged 40, joined our Group in June
2013 as non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Feng obtained
a bachelor’s degree in economics from the Central University of
Finance and Economics in Beijing in July 1997 and a master’s degree
in business administration from a joint university programme organized
by the Chinese University of Hong Kong and Tsinghua University in
Beijing in December 2005. He is mainly responsible for formulating
corporate and business strategies and providing advice on audit
and risk management. Mr. Feng has more than 15 years of senior
management experience in large-scale enterprises and the water
works industry. Mr. Feng has been appointed as director of Finergy
Guangda (Tianjin) Capital Partners (Limited Partnership) since May
2011. Mr. Feng has been appointed as general manager of Yunnan
Finergy Tongda Investment Fund Management Co. Ltd. since March
2012. Mr. Feng has been appointed as a member of the investment
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management committee of Yunnan Energy-saving Environmental
Protection Venture Capital Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership) since
December 2012. Mr. Feng has been appointed as director of Shandong
Higer Information Technology Co., Limited (1L 5 & B {5 B & i Ik 12
BPFRAF]) (shares of which listed on the New Third Board, stock code:
834482) since August 2015.

Mr. Liu Xujun (“Mr. Liu”), aged 43, joined our Group in June 2011 as
executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
and was subsequently appointed as chief engineer in December of
the same year. Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in water supply
and drainage engineering from Tongji University in Shanghai in July
1995. Later, he further obtained a master’s degree in environmental
engineering from Kunming University of Science & Technology in
Kunming in June 2009, and he currently is still pursuing research
studies for doctor of philosophy in environment engineering at Tongji
University in Shanghai. Mr. Liu was qualified as a senior engineer
specialized in water supply and drainage in September 2006 by the
Kunming Architecture Senior Engineer Certifying Committee (& B3 ™
BETITRESHNIREENFEZ). He was also qualified as a professional
manager in June 2007 by the Human Resources and Social Security
Bureau of Yunnan Province of the PRC. Mr. Liu has become a member
of the International Water Association (IWA) (B ¥ 7k #3) since January
2013. He subsequently qualified as a professorate senior engineer
specialized in water supply and drainage in November 2014 by
the Yunnan Professorate Senior Engineer Certifying Committee (£
MAEESHIENMTEZEE) M. Liu is mainly responsible for the
overall operation and management, strategic planning and business
development of the Company. Mr. Liu has more than 19 years of
technical experience in the water works industry, including 5 years of
senior management experience in water works enterprises. Mr. Liu
served as engineering staff in Kunming Municipal Sewerage Co., Lid., a
deputy director and later a director of World Bank project office between
July 1995 and October 2005. Mr. Liu worked as a procurement specialist
for the World Bank Resident Mission from December 2007 to October
2009. He was appointed as chief engineer and deputy general of Yunnan
Province Water from January 2010 to June 2011 and has been appointed
as a director of Circular Economy since December 2013.
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Mr. Huang Yunjian (“Mr. Huang”), aged 50, joined our Group in
December 2011 as Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
and was subsequently appointed as executive Director and Deputy
Chief Executive Officer of the Company in August 2012. Mr. Huang
obtained a degree in environment engineering from Kunming University
of Science and Technology in Kunming in July 1988. He obtained a
certificate for senior research studies on modern economics in 2005
and a certificate for the “Western China Environmental Infrastructure
Technologies and Projects” course in December 2005. Mr. Huang
further obtained the qualification of a Chinese career manager in
June 2006 awarded by Chinese Career Manager Coalition. He is
mainly responsible for management, strategic planning and business
development of our Group. He has more than 17 years of experience
in operation management and senior management in water works
related companies. Mr. Huang was appointed as engineer and plant
manager of the 4th plant of Kunming Municipal Sewerage Co., Ltd.
from April 1998 to June 2005. Mr. Huang was appointed as the legal
representative, executive director and general manager of Kunming
Wastewater Treatment Co. Ltd. between June 2005 and July 2008.
Mr. Huang was appointed as assistant to the general manager and
deputy general manager of Yunnan Province Water, our controlling
shareholder, between January 2010 and June 2011. Mr. Huang also
served as legal representative and director in a number of subsidiaries
of the Company. In addition, Mr. Huang was also appointed as a part-
time professor of Kunming University of Science and Technology
since January 2013. And Mr. Huang has been appointed as director
of Yunnan Fengyuan Water Co., Ltd. (which was held by YMCI) since
March 2014.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwok For Chi (“Mr. Kwok”), aged 45, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in April 2015. Mr. Kwok obtained
his bachelor’s degree in accounting and business administration from
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in November
1994, and became a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Kwok has more than 15 years of experience in
financial management and auditing, he worked in KPMG accountancy
firm from August 1994 to October 2006. Mr. Kwok was appointed as
the chief financial officer and company secretary of KFM Kingdom
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 3816), since February 2012. Prior to that, Mr. Kwok served as
the chief financial officer and company secretary of Xing Yuan Power
Holdings Company Limited from December 2010 to February 2012,
the financial controller of Beijing Huaxia Real Estate Development
Company Limited from October 2006 to December 2008, and Head
of the Group Finance and Investment Centre of Hopson Development
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 754), from April 2008 to November 2009.
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Mr. Ma Shihao (“Mr. Ma”), aged 77, joined the Group in August
2014 as independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Ma
obtained a bachelor’s degree in water supply and drainage study of civil
engineering from Tsinghua University in Beijing in January 1963. Mr.
Ma was qualified as an engineer specialized in radioactive wastewater
treatment in December 1979 by the National Cadre Bureau of Science
and Technology, and qualified as a senior engineer specialized
in wastewater treatment in August 1987 and as a senior engineer
(professor level) specialized in environmental engineering in November
1995 by the Beijing Senior Professional and Technical Personnel
Certifying Committee. He is mainly participating in making significant
decisions and providing independent advice on corporate governance,
connected transactions and matters of corporate operations. Mr.
Ma has more than 50 years of working experience in the water
industry. He worked in Beijing Environmental Protection Technology
Research Centre between January 1963 and January 1999, and was
subsequently appointed as a member of the Shandong Xiaoginghe
Wastewater Treatment Construction Technology Advisory Committee.
Mr. Ma was appointed as independent director of Beijing OriginWater
between September 2007 and April 2014. Mr. Ma is the author of the
Beijing discharge standard of water pollutants for municipal wastewater
treatment plants (DB11/890-2012) promulgated by Beijing People’s
Government in May 2012 and the second amendment of the Beijing
integrated discharge standard of water pollutants (DB11/307-2013)
promulgated by Beijing People’s Government in December 2013. Mr.
Ma was awarded by the Ministry of Environmental Protection and
the Beijing Municipal Management Committee for preparing various
feasibility reports on wastewater treatment. Mr. Ma was awarded for
his book, “The Book of Practical Water Treatment Technology” in
September 2002 published by China Petroleum & Chemical Industry
Federation.
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Mr. Ren Gangfeng (“Mr. Ren”), aged 38, joined the Group in August
2014 as independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Ren obtained a bachelor’s degree in environmental planning and
management from Kunming University of Science & Technology in
Kunming in July 2000. He is mainly responsible for making significant
business decisions and providing independent advice on corporate
governance, connected transactions, various matters of Directors
and senior management. Mr. Ren has more than 8 years of senior
management experience in water works industry. In July 2007, Mr.
Ren was appointed the engineer, project manager and the project
director of China Urban Construction Design & Research Institute
Company Limited. Since March 2010, Mr. Ren has been appointed as
the legal representative and general manager of Yunnan Hong Feng
Construction Work Company Limited.

Mr. Hu Song (“Mr. Hu”), aged 54, joined the Group in August 2014
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Hu
obtained a master’s degree in western economics from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology in Wuhan in December 2002.
He is mainly participating in making significant business decisions and
providing independent advice on corporate governance, connected
transactions, various matters of Directors and scale management. Mr.
Hu has approximately 13 years of experience as senior management
in large-scale enterprises. Mr. Hu was appointed as the director of
Shenzhen Yungong Investment Co., Ltd.* between March 2003 and
February 2009. Mr. Hu was appointed as director of Zhaomao Capital
Management Co., Ltd.* between August 2008 and November 2014.
Since July 2013, Mr. Hu has been the consultant of Mission Hills
Group.
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SUPERVISORS

Ms. Yang Chuanyun (“Ms. Yang”), aged 38, joined the Group in June
2011 as an employee representative Supervisor of the Company. Ms.
Yang obtained a bachelor’s degree in economic law in June 2000 and
a master’s degree in economic law in June 2003 from China University
of Political Science and Law in Beijing. She is currently the manager
of the bidding and procurement department of the Company. Ms.
Yang is mainly responsible for supervising the Directors, managers
and other management personnel to ensure compliance with laws
and regulations, the Articles of Association and the resolutions of
Shareholders’ meetings. Ms. Yang has more than 10 years of working
experience in large-scale enterprises. Between September 2004 and
July 2008, Ms. Yang was appointed as the legal consultant of Beijing
Municipal Investment Company Limited. Ms. Yang served in the legal
department of Yunnan Province Water, our controlling shareholder,
between December 2009 and June 2011.

Ms. Wang Shugin (“Ms. Wang”), aged 43, has been a shareholder
representative Supervisor of the Company since June 2011. Ms.
Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics and management
from Huazhong Agricultural University in June 1995, and a master’s
degree in economics from Renmin University of China in January
2002. Ms. Wang was qualified as an enterprise legal adviser certified
by SASAC in October 2006 and a senior accountant in May 2010
certified by Beijing Municipal Bureau of Human Resources and Social
Security. Ms. Wang is mainly responsible for supervising Directors,
managers and other management personnel to ensure compliance
with laws and regulations, the Articles of Association and the resolution
of Shareholders’ meetings. Ms. Wang has more than 8 years of
experience in environmental and water works industry. She has been
the manager of finance department and promoted to the deputy
chief financial officer of Beijing OriginWater, since May 2007, and the
supervisor of a number of subsidiaries of Beijing OriginWater since
August 2011.
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Ms. Li Bo (“Ms. Li”), aged 39, joined the Group in August 2014 as a
shareholder representative Supervisor of the Company. Ms. Li obtained
a master’s degree in business administration from Dalian University
of Technology in Dalian in June 2008. She is mainly responsible for
supervising the Directors, managers and other management personnel
to ensure compliance with laws and regulations, the Articles of
Association and the resolutions of Shareholders’ meetings. Ms. Li
has more than 10 years of senior management experience in water
works industry. Ms. Li was appointed as the deputy manager of the
investment and financing department of YMCI, between April 2005
and May 2010 and was promoted as manager of the investment and
financing department between May 2010 and May 2012. Since May
2012, Ms. Li has been acting as the board office director of YMCI. Ms.
Li has also been appointed as the director of a number of subsidiaries
of YMCI since January 2014.

Mr. Tan Hairui (“Mr. Tan”), aged 45, joined the Group in January
2015 as an independent Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Tan obtained
a bachelor’s degree in economics from Yunnan Finance and Trade
College (now known as Yunnan University of Finance and Economics)
in Yunnan in July 1993. Mr. Tan obtained the certificate as a registered
accountant issued by Accountant Examination Committee of Ministry
of Finance of the PRC in April 1999 and a Lawyer’s License in August
2004. Mr. Tan is mainly responsible for supervising the Directors,
managers and other management personnel to ensure compliance with
laws and regulations, the Articles of Association and the resolutions of
Shareholders’ meetings. Mr. Tan has more than 16 years of working
experience in large-scale enterprises. He was the deputy manager
of the financial department of Yunda Science & Technology Industry
Company from 2000 to December 2001. Mr. Tan joined Yunnan
Hengxin Law Firm as trainee solicitor and lawyer from January 2002
to August 2007. Mr. Tan joined the Yunnan Quzhi Law Firm as lawyer
between September 2007 and March 2009. Since March 2009, Mr. Tan
has been working in Yunnan Geyuan Law Firm as a lawyer.
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Mr. Cao Jinwen (“Mr. Cao”), aged 38, joined our Group in January
2015 as an independent Supervisor of our Company. Mr. Cao obtained
a bachelor’s degree in tourism management from Beijing Technology
and Business University in June 2001, further obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Yunnan University in January
2009, and obtained the Membership Certificate of Certified Public
Accountants in May 2013 from the Yunnan Provincial Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is responsible for supervising the
Directors, managers and other management personnel to ensure
compliance with laws and regulations, the Articles of Association and
the resolutions of Shareholders’ meetings. Mr. Cao has more than
14 years of working experience in large-scale enterprises. Mr. Cao
was appointed as an auditor of Zhong He Zheng Xin (Yunnan) CPAs
between July 2001 and August 2008, and he was later promoted as
the business manager and senior manager. Since September 2008,
Mr. Cao has been appointed as director and managing director of the
investment bank department of Hongta Securities Company Limited.
Since July 2013, Mr. Cao has been the external professor of Yunnan
University for the master’s degree course in accountancy.

Ms. Tang Shuang (“Ms. Tang”), aged 31, joined the Group in
January 2015 as an employee representative Supervisor of the
Company. Ms. Tang obtained a bachelor’s degree in management
from Yunnan University in Yunnan in July 2007. Ms. Tang obtained the
qualification as an accountant in May 2006 awarded by the Ministry
of Finance. She is responsible for supervising the Directors, managers
and other management personnel to ensure compliance with laws
and regulations, the Articles of Association and the resolutions of
Shareholders’ meetings. Ms. Tang has more than 8 years of working
experience in large-scale enterprises. Ms. Tang was an employee of
the Yunnan branch office of Ping An Life Insurance Limited between
July 2007 and June 2008, later she served as the accountant for
the Beijing branch office of Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance
Company of China Limited from July 2008 to March 2010. From March
2010 to February 2015, Ms. Tang served in the business department of
Yunnan OriginWater Technology Company Limited. Since March 2015,
Ms. Tang served in the bidding and procurement department of our
Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hu Shake (“Mr. Hu”), aged 59, joined the Group in December
2011 as deputy chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Hu was
graduated from Vocational College of Yunnan Highway Bureau in July
1984, majoring in highway engineering. He is mainly responsible for
investment projects of our Group in Yunnan, liaising and coordinating
work of projects in Dali and Nujiang areas. Mr. Hu has over 20
years of relevant senior management experience in a number of
companies and water works related companies. From March 1996 to
December 1999, Mr. Hu was appointed as the head of construction
of the construction command headquarters for the Yunnan Chuda
Expressway. From January 2000 to August 2005, Mr. Hu was
appointed as chief monitoring engineer and deputy commander of
the construction command headquarters for the Yunnan Songming
Expressway pending for repairs. From August 2005 to May 2006,
Mr. Hu was appointed as deputy general manager of Yunnan Kunmo
Expressway Company Limited. From June 2006 to April 2009, Mr. Hu
was appointed as deputy head of quality control department of Yunnan
Highway Development and Investment Company Limited. From May
2009 to June 2011, Mr. Hu was appointed as deputy general manager
of Yunnan Province Water, the controlling shareholder of the Company.
And Mr. Hu was appointed as director of a number of subsidiaries of
our Company since 2010.

Mr. Yang Fang (“Mr. Yang”), aged 42, joined the Group in March 2013
as party secretary of the Company. Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in accounting and statistics from Yunnan University of Finance
and Economics in July 1998 and further obtained an executive master’s
degree in business administration from Dalian University of Technology
in June 2008. Mr. Yang was qualified as a first class enterprise human
resources managing personnel in March 2009 certified by the Ministry
of Labor and Social Security. He was subsequently appointed as
deputy chief executive officer of the Company in November 2014. He is
mainly responsible for disciplinary inspection, supervision of the overall
operation, human resources, liaising and coordinating work of projects
in Xinjiang and Wenshan areas. Mr. Yang has more than 9 years of
senior management experience in water works related companies.
Mr. Yang has served in various positions in YMCI, including deputy
manager of personnel and organization department, manager of
personnel and organization department and manager of the human
resources department. Mr. Yang was the party secretary of Yunnan
Province Water from May 2012 to September 2014.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Wang Yong (“Mr. Wang”), aged 44, joined the Group in
January 2013 as manager of finance department of the Company,
subsequently he was promoted to financial controller in November
2013. Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics in July
1993 from Yunnan Finance and Trade College (now known as Yunnan
University of Finance and Economics) and a master’s degree in
business administration in January 2009 from the Yunnan University.
He was qualified as an accountant in the PRC in May 1996, and also
qualified as a registered tax agent in the PRC in October 2000, later he
was promoted to a senior accountant in October 2004. He is mainly
responsible for the Company’s financial management, liaising and
coordinating work of projects in Beijing area. Mr. Wang has more than
13 years of senior management experience in large-scale enterprises
and extensive experience in accounting. From April 2002 to January
2013, Mr. Wang was appointed as the manager of finance department
of Kunming Sino-Platinum Metals Catalyst Co., Ltd.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo (“Mr. Li”), aged 37, joined the Company in May 2013 as
company secretary of the Company and was appointed as Secretary to
the Board since August 2013. Mr. Li graduated from Capital University
of Economics and Business in Beijing with a bachelor’s degree in
economics in July 2001 and obtained a master’s degree in accounting
from Macquarie University in Australia in April 2006. Mr. Li is currently
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of the Certified Public Accountants of Australia. He is
mainly responsible for assisting the operation of our Company and
meetings of the Board. Mr. Li has more than 8 years of experience in
finance-related senior positions. Mr. Li was engaged by Audit Office
of New South Wales as a contract auditor since August 2007 and was
later promoted to senior auditor. From March 2011 to June 2013, Mr.
Li was appointed as the financial controller and the company secretary
of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 814).
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group (the “Financial Statements”) for the
year ended 31 December 2015 to the Shareholders.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING OF THE COMPANY

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange in May 2015, and
287,521,000 H Shares with nominal value of RMB1.00 each had been
issued by the Company at the price of HK$5.8 per Share, with a total
amount received from the issuance (before deduction of expenses) of
approximately HK$1,667,621,800. On 10 June 2015, the over-allotment
option was fully exercised and 43,128,000 H Shares with nominal value
of RMB1.00 each were issued at the price of HK$5.8 per Share, with a
total amount received from the issuance (before deduction of expenses)
of approximately HK$250,142,400. After completion of the IPO, the
total number of the Company’s H Shares was 363,713,900 (including
the H Shares converted from Domestic Shares on a one-for-one basis).

The Company issued a total of 1,193,213,457 Shares of which
829,499,557 Shares were Domestic Shares and 363,713,900 Shares
were H Shares.

SHARE CAPITAL

As of 31 December 2015, the total share capital of the Company was
RMB1,193,213,457, divided into 1,193,213,457 Shares of RMB1.00
each. Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 26 to the Financial Statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the period
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2015.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC,
the Company is not subject to any pre-emptive rights requiring it to
propose new issues to its existing Shareholders in proportion to their
shareholdings.
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PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is an integrated operator primarily engaged in urban
environmental services and the only urban environmental integrated
service provider in Yunnan Province. The Company is also one of the
few integrated operators in urban environmental services in China that
has expanded overseas successfully, and our overseas business is
mainly located in Southeast Asian regions. In addition, the Company
operates upstream and downstream development industries to
improve the Company’s profitability structure and broaden the sources
of income. The Company has good track records in projects such as
urban waste water treatment, tap water and raw water supply, river
management and solid waste treatment.

The major business segments of the Company include investment,
construction and management services for urban water supply, waste
water treatment, municipal solid waste treatment and environmental
management projects, sales of equipment and other environmental
protection related services. The corporate strategy of the Group is to
set our base of business in Yunnan, identify investment opportunities
continuously, and gradually expand our business to other regions, in
order to secure a stable source of income.

RESULTS

The audited results of operations of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 98 to 99. The financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2015 is set out in the consolidated balance
sheet on pages 100 to 101. The consolidated cash flow of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out in the consolidated
statement of cash flows on pages 103 to 104.

Discussion and analysis about the operating performance and
significant elements affecting the results of operations and financial
condition of the Company during the Reporting Period are set out in the
chapter headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report from page 25 to 41.
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DISTRIBUTIONS AND DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved to declare the final dividend of RMBO0.1 per
Share (tax included) for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
proposed final dividend is subject to the consideration and approval
by the Shareholders at the AGM. The final dividend is payable to the
Shareholders whose names are listed in the register of members of the
Company on 19 June 2016, in an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB119.3 million. The final dividend will be denominated and declared
in RMB. The final dividend on Domestic Share will be paid in RMB and
on H Share will be paid in Hong Kong dollars. The relevant exchange
rate for conversion shall be calculated by the average median exchange
rate for converting RMB into Hong Kong dollar as quoted by the China
Foreign Exchange Trading Centre for the week immediately before the
date on which the dividend was declared (i.e. Tuesday, 7 June 2016).
The final dividend is expected to be distributed on or before 28 July
2016.

The Company has established a sound decision making process and
profit distribution mechanism. Emphasis is placed on Shareholder
returns and cash dividends are distributed to Shareholders regularly. In
formulating the profit distribution plan, the Board has fully considered
the opinions and demands of Shareholders to, after taking into account
the statutory interests of minority Shareholders, and has submitted
the profit distribution plan at the general meeting for approval. Also,
the independent non-executive Directors have properly carried out
their duties in regards to the decision making process of the profit
distribution plan.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Articles of Association, dividend is
denominated and declared in RMB. Dividend for Domestic Shares will
be paid in RMB, while dividend for H Shares will be paid in Hong Kong
dollar. The relevant exchange rate for conversion shall be calculated by
the average median exchange rate for converting RMB into Hong Kong
dollar as quoted by the China Foreign Exchange Trading Center for the
week immediately before the date on which the dividend is declared (i.e.
Tuesday, 7 June 2016).

Under the relevant tax rules and regulations of the PRC (collectively
the “PRC Tax Law”), the Company is required to withhold corporate
income tax at the rate of 10% when distributing the final dividend to
non-resident enterprises (such term shall have the meaning as defined
under the PRC Tax Law) whose names appear on the H Shares register
of members of the Company.
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In accordance with the PRC Tax Law, the Company is also required
to withhold individual income tax when distributing the final dividend
to individual shareholders whose names appeared on the H Shares
register of members of the Company. The Company will determine the
country of domicile of the individual holders of H Shares based on the
registered addresses as recorded in the H Shares register of members
of the Company on the record date with details as follows:

®  Forindividual holders of H Shares who are Hong Kong and Macau
residents and those whose country of domicile is a country which
has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend
tax rate of 10%, the Company will withhold and pay individual
income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of them.

e  For individual holders of H Shares whose country of domicile
is a country which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of less than 10%, the Company
will withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10%
on behalf of them. The Company would make applications on
their behalf to seek entitlement of the relevant agreed preferential
treatments pursuant to the Notice of the State Administration of
Taxation in relation to the Administrative Measures on Preferential
Treatment Entitled by Non-residents under Tax Treaties (Tentative)
(Guo Shui Fa [2009] No.124) (BEIRBI B BENNE <EERER
FRBESFBEEWE (F17) > B EF % [2009]124 5%)).

e  For individual holders of H Shares whose country of domicile
is a country which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of higher than 10% but lower than
20%, the Company would withhold and pay the individual income
tax at the agreed-upon effective tax rate on behalf of them.

®*  For individual holders of H Shares who are residents of those
countries without any tax treaties with the PRC or having tax
treaties with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of 20% or
more, and other situations, the Company would withhold and pay
the individual income tax at a tax rate of 20% on behalf of them.

If individual shareholders of H Shares have any queries on the above
arrangement, they may consult their tax advisers for advice on the
taxation effects involving the ownership and disposal of H Shares in
PRC, Hong Kong and other countries (regions).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the list of Shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM, the register of holders of H Shares of the
Company will be closed from 8 May 2016 to 7 June 2016 (both dates
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.
Holders of H Shares whose names appear on the register of holders of
H Shares of the Company at the close of business on 6 June 2016 are
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM.

In order to attend and vote at the AGM, any holder of H Shares whose
transfer has not been registered shall lodge the transfer documents
together with the relevant share certificates with the Company’s H
Share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, by no later than
4:30 p.m. on 6 May 2016.

For the purpose of determining entitlement for the final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2015, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 14 June 2016 to Sunday, 19
June 2016 (both dates inclusive) during which registration of transfer of
Shares will be suspended.

To be eligible to receive the final dividend, all transfer documents must
be lodged with the Company’s H Share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at 22nd Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong (for holders of H Shares), or the secretariat of
the Board, located at 16th Floor, Block A, He Cheng International, 1088
Haiyuan Zhong Road, Gaoxin District, Kunming, Yunnan Province, the
PRC (for holders of Domestic Shares), by no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 13 June 2016.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 17 to the Financial
Statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity, of which details of reserves available for distribution to
Shareholders are set out in Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made external donations
of approximately RMB2.1 million (excluding personal donations of
employees).

BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2015 are set out in note 29 to the Financial Statements of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Certain information concerning the Directors and the Supervisors and
senior management of the Company during the Reporting Period and
as at the date of this annual report is set out below.

Directors

S

Title in the Company
R B BB

Executive Director
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Date of Appointment for the

Current Term

BRITEMMZERH

HITES
Mr. Yu Long Executive Director, 15 July 2014
Chief Executive Officer
TRESAE HITES - 1THER “E-mELA+EA
Mr. Liu Xujun Executive Director, 15 July 2014
Deputy Chief Executive Officer
ZINBE L HITES - BIRAR “EZ-mELA+EA

Executive Director,
Deputy Chief Executive Officer
WITES - 88

Mr. Huang Yunjian

15 July 2014
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Non-Executive Directors

FHITES

Title in the Company
R BB

Date of Appointment for the

Current Term

RITEMNRERN

Mr. Xu Lei Non-executive Director, Chairman 15 July 2014
FELEE FHITES - £F —E-NFELAt+EA
Mr. Wen Jianping Non-executive Director 15 July 2014

(resigned on 17 March 2016)
NBFRE(RZB—REF

FHTES

=A+tHBEME) “E-MNELA+EA
Mr. Jiao Jun Non-executive Director 15 July 2014
EEXLE FHITES “E-MELA+EA
Mr. He Yuanping Non-executive Director 15 July 2014
fAIREF B4 FHITES “E-mELA+EA
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi Non-executive Director 15 July 2014
BAEEE FHITES “E-mELA+EA
Independent Non-executive
Directors
BIAFHITES
Mr. Kwok For Chi Independent Non-executive Director 20 April 2015
FRERE BYFHITES “E-HFWAZ+H
Mr. Hu Song Independent Non-executive Director 18 August 2014
AL BYFHITES —ZE-mENATNE
Mr. Ma Shihao Independent Non-executive Director 18 August 2014
BHERELE BYFHITES —Z-mENATNE
Mr. Ren Gangfeng Independent Non-executive Director 18 August 2014
R RE BYFHTES —E-mOFENATNHB
Mr. Yao Yan Ping, Francis Independent Non-executive Director 18 August 2014

(resigned on 18 March 2015) BN EHITES —ZE-mENA+NA
BBFEE(R-Z—HRF

=ZATN\BEHI)

During the period from the Listing Date to the end of the Reporting
Period, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of
whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.
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CEEXERY ST REEY B EEE
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MRARTMAL -

The Company has received written annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent from the

Company.
YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Title in the Company
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Date of Appointment for the
Current Term

RITEMNRERN

Ms. Wang Shugin

Chairman and Shareholder
representative Supervisor

15 July 2014

IRELL IE - BRRAKRES —E-MFLA+EHEH
Ms. Li Bo Shareholder representative Supervisor 18 August 2014
TRZE RERARES —E-mOFNA+NH
Mr. Tan Hairui Independent Supervisor 7 January 2015

e EE BUES —E-hF—-AtH
Mr. Cao Jinwen Independent Supervisor 7 January 2015
BEEXERE BUES —E-hF—-AtH
Ms. Yang Chuanyun Employee representative Supervisor 15 July 2014
BIELZL BIRKRES —Z-mELA+EA
Ms. Tang Shuang Employee representative Supervisor 7 January 2015
FELt BIRKES —E-RF—-AtH
Senior Management

BREERE

Mr. Hu Shake Deputy chief executive officer 15 July 2014
HvERE IR “E-NOFLtA+HEH
Mr. Yang Fang Deputy chief executive officer 1 November 2014
BREE EESE —ZE-mE+—-A—H
Mr. Wang Yong Chief financial controller 20 November 2013
IEEE g3 —Z2-=f+—-A=+H
Mr. Li Bo Company secretary, secretary 15 August 2013
FEEE to the Board —E-=FN\A+aH

NRME - EBEUE

BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 42 to 55 of
this annual report. There are no relationships among the Directors,
Supervisors and senior management of the Company, including
financial, business, family or other material relationships as defined in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of the
Directors and Supervisors containing terms relating to, among other
things, compliance with relevant laws and regulations, observation
of the Articles of Association and provision on arbitration. The
service contracts may be renewed in accordance with the Articles of
Association and applicable rules.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into any service
contract with the Company during the Reporting Period which does
not expire or is not terminable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DETERMINATION OF AND BASIS FOR DETERMINATION OF
THE REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management

is subject to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and
determined by the Board.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for recommending
remuneration for Directors, Supervisors and senior management to
the Board with reference to, among other factors, salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Company.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors of the
Company are set out in note 39 to the Financial Statements.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, there were no transaction, arrangements
or contracts of significance subsisting in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party,
directly or indirectly, and in which any Director or Supervisor had a
material interest.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report and the Prospectus, at
no time during the Reporting Period had the Company or any of
its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance with any
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries, nor had any contract
of significance been entered into for the services provided by any
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

From the Listing Date to the date of this report, to the best knowledge
of the Board, none of the Directors and Supervisors and their respective
associates has any business or interest that competes or may compete
with the business of the Group or have or may have any conflict of
interest with the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the IPO, the Company has not entered into any equity-linked
agreement during the Reporting Period.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the Directors, Supervisors and chief
executives of the Company had the following interest in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise,
to be entered in the register maintained thereunder, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, or held interest in the Company as follows:
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Percentage  Percentage

of the of the

Domestic total number

Name of Director, Shares of Shares

Supervisor and inissue (%) in issue (%)
chief executive Number of  Nature of LB 21T LB T
EE, BEFES TypeofShares  Capacity Shares interest WER gy
TBABRZ B4 48R g BFERMEE EEEE # EL 151 (%) # EL 151 (%)

Mr. Huang Yunjian' Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner, 361,487,162  Long position 43.58 30.30
interest held jointly
with another person

BEERERL WER BREBA 361,487,162 & 43.58 30.30
B — ATHE
HEER

Mr. Liu Xujun? Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner, 361,487,162  Long position 43.58 30.30

interest held jointly
with another person

R RNER BEREEA 361,487,162 W& 43.58 30.30
HE - ATHE
HAER

Mr. Yu Long Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner 10,690,000  Long position 1.29 0.90

TeELE NER BEEERA 10,690,000 #A& 1.29 0.90

Notes: =T

(1) Huang Yunjian is the beneficial owner of 1,950,000 domestic shares. (1) HEZEHB1,950,000BAEKRHE =R
By virtue of the acting in concert agreement (the “Acting in Concert BA - BREMEKBEXRREFRD
Agreement”) dated 24 July 2014 entered into between Yunnan Province AIEMERE] - 2BE - BER
Water, Liu Xujun, Huang Yunjian and Wang Yong, each of Liu Xujun, BEIBHTH E';Hﬂj‘%zﬁ_qitﬁ
Huang Yunjian and Wang Yong agreed to act in concert with Yunnan ;‘HE] BE— TR ([ —HITBH
Province Water in exercising their voting rights in the Shareholders’ E?J) BIBE - EEREIBHRIEE
meeting of the Company. Mr. Huang is deemed to be interested in all the EJtEZF’L\\EHQij(%J:ﬁ{E&%‘JEEE%
domestic shares held by Yunnan Province Water, Liu Xujun, Wang Yong ﬁ"é\*%_‘ﬁﬁﬁj o RIBRH R E %
and Mr. Huang himself in aggregate pursuant to the SFO. B> FREWRBNEFE AT - 218

B IERESGHBENIERNERF
BHEER -

(2)  Liu Xujun is the beneficial owner of 195,000 domestic shares. By virtue of (2 BIRER 195’OPOH£W§H£E’9§§}$§
the Acting in Concert Agreement, he is deemed to be interested in all the A ZE%_?&?TEJWJ% » ARIERE 35 R
Domestic Shares held by Yunnan Province Water, Huang Yunjian, Wang BRP BERR/NEREAY BE
Yong and Liu Xujun himself in aggregate pursuant to the SFO. Eéé%&ﬁé%%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬂﬁqﬂ

F m °

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Company, PREJUMBES - BADTFFRRA - R
as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors, Supervisors and the —E-RFT-A=ZT A BIRE
chief executive of the Company had any interests and short positions B EERADFABRSTHAERER
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its =13k H A BB KA B - AHE AR
associated corporation which were recorded in the register required to REs+F  BEREESRBERHIE
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise 352 RAMAR R R B & MA R R

required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange %%*ﬁﬂg %ﬁgqgﬂ?ﬁ%ﬁiﬂ%zﬁ@ﬁ&
pursuant to the Model Code. R PTHRER o

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES

To the Company’s best knowledge, as at 31 December 2015, the
following persons (other than Directors or Supervisors whose interests
are disclosed in the section headed “Interests and Short Positions
of Directors, Supervisors and Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above) had interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company which were
required to be notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or had interests or short positions in 5% or more of the
respective type of share capital in issue of the Company which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder

B3 AR

Yunnan Province Water'

EmEk

Wang Yong?

IE?2

YMCI'

ERpREE"

Beijing OriginWater

I REKIR
CNPC Assets

Management Co., Ltd.

FHEEEEERAT

Capacity
i 5

Beneficial owner,

interests held jointly

with another person
BEREEA HE-—F
AT HERE#ER
Beneficial owner,

interests held jointly with
another person
BERBEAA BE—-F
AT HERE#ER
Interests in controlled
corporation, interests held
jointly with another person
REEEENER
HE-FATHEEEE
oy

Interests in controlled
corporation
REELENER

Beneficial owner

EREBA
Interests in controlled
corporation

REEZEOER

Type of
Shares
gl

Domestic
Shares

nER

Domestic
Shares

WER

Domestic
Shares

RER

Domestic
Shares
RER

Domestic
Shares

RER

Directors’ Report

EEEHE

FTERERRGPRHERR KA

BARQXBRAN  R=ZFE—HE+=A
=t+—B: THAL(KATNESRE
BRI BEZRBZREES B
FERETHRAEERSD. HBROKRE
SeRERRARI-HHEE)IREAQAR
7. HERORESTHEERBEFR SR
HEGRPIEXVEFE2REIDIBAMA
REREREIARHAREZSFRPE
1&BIZE 336 IR AR BEEARQ A LMF
HENERSAR  BEEARATER
BEITIRAS% U EWERSSIRAE -

Percentage of Percentage of

the respective the total
type of Shares number of
in issue (%) Shares in
Number of 1H B 81T issue (%)
Shares BRI LEETHE
BRHER PEBI (%) B BT EE A (%)
361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
286,650,000 (L) 34.56 24.02
286,650,000 (L) 34.56 24.02
137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
EEARBRERDERAA
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Percentage
Percentage of the
of the total number
domestic Shares of Shares
Type of Number of in issue (%) in issue (%)
Name of Shareholder ~ Capacity Shares  Shares HERTHER (HERTERK
BRE &8 iR &6 B ER ROHE #9 EL 151 (%) # EE 151 (%)
China National Petroleum Interests in controlled Domestic 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
Corporation® corporation Shares
HEABRAREB LR RIELEMNES RER 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
Kunlun Trust Co. Ltd.} Interests in controlled Domestic 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
corporation Shares
EREXAREEILR? RITLENER RER 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
Finergy Development Beneficial owner Domestic 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
(Tianjin) Equity Shares
Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership) 2
MRRE (RE)RERE BRBEBA RER 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
BREE(BRER)
the National Council Beneficial owner H Shares 30,454,900 (L) 8.37 2.55
for Social Security
Fund of the PRC
ZEITEREES BEREEA HAx 30,454,900 (L) 8.37 2.55
BEe
Value Partners Group Interests in controlled H Shares 36,866,000 (L) 10.14 3.09
Limited* corporation
Value Partners Group ~ AFIEAE MR HEz 36,866,000 (L) 10.14 3.09
Limited*
Value Partners Beneficial owner H Shares 25,774,000 (L) 7.09 2.16
Classic Fund
Value Partners EREBA HAE 25,774,000 (L) 7.09 2.16
Classic Fund
Rays Capital Partners  Investment Manager H Shares 25,545,000 (L) 7.02 2.14
Limited?®
Rays Capital Partners REKE HEE 25,545,000 (L) 7.02 2.14
Limited®
Ruan David Ching-chi® Interests in controlled H Shares 25,545,000 (L) 7.02 2.14
corporation
B & ° REZEEENER HRZ 25,545,000 (L) 7.02 2.14
Yip Yok Tak Amy?® Interests in controlled H Shares 25,545,000 (L) 7.02 2.14
corporation
BEHEs REZEENER HEX 25,545,000 (L) 7.02 2.14
Caiyun International Beneficial owner H Shares 2,189,000 (L) 0.60 0.18
Investment Limited™!
FEBBRKRERRLE BREEA HEZ 2,189,000 (L) 0.60 0.18

68 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes:

L
(1)

refers to Long position

Yunnan Province Water is wholly owned by YMCI and is the beneficial
owner of 361,487,162 Domestic Shares. Caiyun International Investment
Limited is wholly owned by YMCI and is the beneficial owner of
2,189,000 H Shares. YMCI is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic
Shares held by Yunnan Province Water and H Shares held by Caiyun
International Investment Limited pursuant to the SFO which representing
approximately 30.48% of total issued Shares. By virtue of the Acting in
Concert Agreement, each of Yunnan Province Water and YMCI is deemed
to be interested in all the Domestic Shares held by Huang Yunijian, Liu
Xujin, Wang Yong and each of Yunnan Province Water and YMCI in
aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Wang Yong is the beneficial owner of 585,000 domestic shares. By virtue
of the Acting in Concert Agreement, he is deemed to be interested in
all the domestic shares held by himself, Yunnan Province Water, Huang
Yunjian and Liu Xujun in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Finergy Development (Tianjin) Equity Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership) is controlled as to 84.86% by Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd., its
general partner, and the beneficial owner of 137,880,000 domestic
shares; Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd. is owned as to 82.18% by CNPC Assets
Management Co., Ltd., which in turn is wholly-owned by China National
Petroleum Corporation. Under the SFO, each of Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd.,
CNPC Assets Management Co., Ltd. and China National Petroleum
Corporation is deemed to be interested in all the domestic shares held
by Finergy Development (Tianjin) Equity Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership).

Value Partners Group Limited holds interests in the Company indirectly
through two wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely Value Partners Hong
Kong Limited and Value Partners Limited.

RAYS Capital Partners Limited is the beneficial owner of 25,545,000 H
shares. RAYS Capital Partners Limited is beneficially owned as to 50% by
Yip Yok Tak Amy and 50% by Ruan David Ching-chi respectively. Each of
Yip Yok Tak Amy and Ruan David Ching-chi is deemed to be interested
in all the H shares held by RAYS Capital Partners Limited pursuant to the
SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Company, as
at 31 December 2015, no person (other than the Directors, Supervisors
and chief executives) had informed the Company that he had interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of equity
derivatives of the Company which were required to be notified to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or held any interests or short positions in 5%
or more of the respective types of capital in issue of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the Company’s business were entered into or existed during the year.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

From the Listing Date to 31 December 2015, the Group has conducted
certain non-exempt continuing connected transactions. The Company
has obtained approval from the Stock Exchange in respect of the non-
exempt continuing connected transactions upon the IPO and such
transactions were exempted from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement. The table below shows the annual caps and
actual transaction value of such continuing connected transactions
during the period between the Listing Date and 31 December 2015:

Directors’ Report

EEEHE

FERAER 5

HETHEMEE_ZT-—FF+=A
=t—Hik AEEBETSHEIER
%%%@ﬁﬁ%°$ﬂﬂﬂ%%ﬁﬁm
BEERAOHBRERTERRIGEBRER
SNFELR UTERRETHIRR
HENRE - TREIZFHEBER
ZRETEHHEE—_ZE—RFF_-A
=t—HIEHBARNFELRREBRR

Annual cap transaction
for2015  amount in 2015
(from The (from The

Listing Date) ~ Listing Date)

Nature and description Basis for determining the Z3-1%E _3-1%
Name, date and term of the agreement Connected Persons of the transaction consideration tR(BLH  EBRSEE
h#e® - BHRER REAL LAHERIR ERER AfE) (ALHAMHE)
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
BT Construction Agreement Yunnan New Century Dianchi
International Cuttural Toursm ~ Offer BT construction senvice for -~ Onanam’s length basis and on
Convention Investment Co.,Ltd*  Yunnan New Century Dianchi normal commercial terms. 64,600 —
BTIRRR = ERtLRRARILE  EEABAZENEEERHT
ERRERRAT EEREH AYRAR-REZH 64,600 -
Entered into a BT construction agreement on 20
August 2014, with two supplementary agreements
signed on 3 December 2014 and 25 March 2015
respectively to ascertain the proposed annual cap
for the years ending 31 December 2015, 2016 and
2017.
[RBT IR0 20148 A 20 RET L, Wh2014
F1283BR201553 25 RETHABEUET
0152017 E=FEERH LR -
Membrane Ancillary Material Procurement Beijing OriginWater and Purchase membrane ancillary  On an arm’s length basis and
Master Agreement its subsidiaries materials from Beijing on normal commercial terms.
OriginWater Group 10,000 4195
L i IREARRHRABRAT  ERkBROLREARREREN ATRAR-REEHER
REMBEAT 10,000 4,195

Entered into a membrane ancillary material master

agreement on 14 October 2015 to set the proposed

annual cap for the years ending 31 December 2015,

2016 and 2017.

R2015E10 B14RETY » MR 20155220175

ZEERRG LR

Master Sale and Purchase Agreement YMCl and its subsidiaries Provide Engineering Services
for Engineering Services to YMCI Group

TERBAGS ERENTRRREEEERAA EREAZEHASE

LEWEBAR RHTERE

Entered into a master sale and purchase agreement

for engineering services on 6 November 2015 to set

the proposed annual cap for the years ending 31

December 2015, 2016 and 2017.

2015511 BB AT » Bk 2015 6520175

ZEEERGLR-

Onan arm’s length basis and
on normal commercial terms. 48,000 18,455
AYRAIR-REFH
48,000 18,455

EEABRERODBERAA
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Several related party transactions as disclosed in Note 36 to the
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS fall under
the definition of “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Review by and confirmation of independent non-executive
Directors of the Company

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that such transactions were:

(1) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2) carried out in normal commercial terms or better;

(38) carried out according to the relevant transaction agreements, the
terms of which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Auditor’s Confirmation

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Company’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (revised) “Assurance
Engagement Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing the conclusions
in respect of the above-mentioned continuing connected transactions
in accordance with the HKEx Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with regard to the
above continuing connected transactions.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of the Acting in Concert Parties signed a non-competition
undertaking on 6 May 2015, in favor of the Company (the “Non-
competition Undertaking”). Pursuant to the Non-competition
Undertaking, each of the Acting in Concert Parties has irrevocably
undertaken that it will not, and will procure that its associates (except
the Company) will not, directly or indirectly, whether as principal or
agent, either on its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf
of any person, firm or company, whether inside or outside the PRC,
among other things, carry on, engage, participate or hold any right or
interest in or render any services to or otherwise be involved in any
business which is in competition with the business of the Company
from time to time (the “Restricted Business®). Each of the Acting in
Concert Parties has also undertaken to the Company that, if there is
any new business opportunity in the Restricted Business, it shall within
a reasonable period of time refer such new business opportunities to
our Company on a pre-emptive basis.

The Acting in Concert Parties have confirmed in writing to the
Company of their compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking for
disclosure in this report during the Listing Date to 31 December 2015.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the information
provided by the Acting in Concert Parties regarding compliance with
the Non-competition Undertaking and had determined that the Acting
in Concert Parties have fully complied with and are not in breach of the
Non-competition Undertaking from 6 May 2015 to 31 December 2015.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENTS

The Undertaking Shareholders signed non-competition agreements
(the “Non-Competition Agreements”) on 6 May 2015, in favour of the
Company. Pursuant to the Non-competition Agreements, each of the
Undertaking Shareholder has irrevocably undertaken that it will not and
will procure that its associates (except the Company) will not, directly or
indirectly, whether as principal or agent, either on its own account or in
conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or company, whether
inside or outside the PRC, among other things, carry on, engage,
participate or hold any right or interest in or render any services to or
otherwise be involved in any business which is in competition with the
business of the Company from time to time. Each of the Undertaking
Shareholders has also undertaken to the Company that, if there is any
new business opportunity in the Restricted Business, it shall within a
reasonable period of time refer such new business opportunities to our
Company on a pre-emptive basis.
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The Undertaking Shareholders have confirmed in writing to the
Company of their compliance with the Non-competition Agreements for
disclosure in this report during the Listing Date to 31 December 2015.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the information
provided by the Undertaking Shareholders regarding compliance with
the Non-competition Agreements and confirmed that all Undertaking
Shareholders have fully complied with and are not in breach of the
Non-competition Agreements from 6 May 2015 to 31 December 2015.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period the total amount of procurement from the
five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 65.0% of the total
amount of procurement for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
purchase from the largest supplier accounted for 47.7% of the total
amount of procurement for the year ended 31 December 2015.

During the Reporting Period, the total amount of sales for the year
ended 31 December 2015 to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for 46.6% of the total amount of revenue, and the total
amount of sales to the largest customer accounted for 12% of the total
amount of revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Directors and the Supervisors of the Company, and their respective
close associates, or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the issued Shares of the Company) do
not hold any interest in the top five customers and top five suppliers of
the Group.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Please refer to the note 2.26 to the Financial Statements for detailed
information on the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the
Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company’s business review and the discussion and analysis of the
Group’s performance for the year and material factors relating to its
results and financial conditions are respectively set out in the chapter
headed “Chief Executive Officer’s Report” on pages 12 to 24 and the
chapter headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 25
to 41 in this annual report. Such discussions constitute an integral part
of this report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

As one of the leading integrated urban environmental treatment
services providers in the PRC, the Company is committed to operating
its various business segments in an environmentally-friendly manner.
The Board believes that compliance with the relevant environmental
protection rules and regulations is crucial to the long term development
and success of the Group’s businesses. In order to maintain a high
standard of staff awareness of the relevant rules and regulations, the
Company offers periodical trainings to the key technical personnel at
the various water treatment plants and solid waste treatment plants.
As a result of the Company’s commitment to environmental protection
and through the implementation of advanced technologies, the Group
has achieved safe and environmentally-friendly production during the
Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Board believes the compliance with laws and regulations as the
cornerstone of a business and attaches considerable importance to it.
To the best knowledge of the Board, during the Reporting Period, the
Company has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Company. Furthermore, as the H Shares of
the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange, the Company shall be
bound by the Listing Rules and the SFO.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s business, future results of operations and prospects
could be affected by certain risks and uncertainties. Please refer to
the chapter headed “Chief Executive Officer’s Report” on pages 12
to 24 of this annual report for detail analysis of the relevant risks and
uncertainties.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report,
the Company has undertaken and maintained a collective liability
insurance policy covering, among others, all directors of the Company
and its “associated companies” (as such term is defined under the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong)).
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time since from the Listing Date to 31 December 2015 were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director and Supervisor
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights
in any other body corporate.

BOND ISSUE

During the Reporting Period, the Company issued the following bonds
for purposes of meeting the daily business operation needs, adjusting
the debt structure, replenishing working capital and project investment.

RMB400 million bonds due on 2018 with an interest rate for the issue
of 5.23% and the par value of RMB100 were issued on 7 December
2015. The net proceeds were approximately RMB396.4 million.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with a view to safeguarding the interest of shareholders
and enhancing corporate value. The Board believes that good
corporate governance is one of the factors leading to the success of
the Company and balancing the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees.

From the Listing Date to the end of the Reporting Period, the Company
has complied with all code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. Details of the corporate governance
practice of the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 79 to 95 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved by the Stock
Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules during the period from
the Listing Date to the date of this annual report.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FORM THE IPO

The proceeds from the IPO of the Company were used, among other
things, to expand the assets portfolio of the Group so as to support
the sustainable growth of the Company’s businesses, which was in line
with the usage and purposes disclosed in the Prospectus.

As of 31 December 2015, the Group has utilized approximately
HK$1,438 million from proceeds from the IPO, and unutilized proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$301 million. Details are set out in
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 25 to 41 of this annual
report.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had not been
involved in any material litigation nor arbitration and the Directors are
not aware of any litigation or claims of material importance pending or
threatened against the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the Reporting Period of the Company are set
out in the chapter headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 25 to 41 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the annual results
and the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2015.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as auditor of the Company for
the financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS for the
year ended 31 December 2015. The Company’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015 prepared in accordance with
HKFRS have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The Company
has retained the services of PricewaterhouseCoopers since 2013.
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A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of
the Company for the year of 2016 will be proposed at the AGM.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of results of operation and the position of assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last four financial years is set out on page
230 in this annual report.

For and on behalf of the Board
Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited*

Xu Lei
Chairman

Kunming, the PRC
30 March 2016

*

For identification purposes only

* EREE
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report as
set out in the Company’s annual report from the Listing Date to 31
December 2015.

The Group strive to maintain high standards of corporate governance to
enhance Shareholders value and safeguard Shareholders’ interests. The
Company’s corporate governance principles emphasize the importance
of a quality Board, effective internal control and accountability to the
Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with a view to safeguarding the interest of shareholders
and enhancing corporate value. The Board believes that good
corporate governance is one of the factors leading to the success of
the Company and balancing the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees.

From the Listing Date to the end of the Reporting Period, the Company
has complied with all code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Group has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors and Supervisors.
The Group has made specific enquiries with all of its Directors and
Supervisors, and all Directors and Supervisors have confirmed that
they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the period from the Listing Date to the end of the
Reporting Period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Directors who held office during the Listing Date up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Long (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Xujun (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Huang Yunjian (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xu Lei (Chairman)

Mr. Wen Jianping (resigned on 17 March 2016)
Mr. Jao Jun

Mr. He Yuanping

Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwok For Chi
Mr. Hu Song

Mr. Ma Shihao
Mr. Ren Gangfeng

To the best knowledge of the Company, none of the Directors has any
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other. In particular, there is no such relationship between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. The roles of Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer are separated and assumed by Mr. Xu Lei
and Mr. Yu Long, respectively. For details, please refer to the section
headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the chapter headed
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of the
Directors containing terms relating to, among other things, compliance
with relevant laws and regulations, observation of the Articles of
Association and provision on arbitration. Pursuant to the Articles of
Association, the Directors (including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) shall serve a term of three years
from the date of he/she takes up the appointment.
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Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this report, the Board at all
times complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
(at least one-third of the Board) with at least one independent non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his independence from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2015 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive Directors
to be independent from the Listing Date to 31 December 2015 in
accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing
Rules.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board’s fundamental responsibility is to exercise its best judgment
and to act in the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders.
The Board oversees management’s efforts to promote the Company’s
success while operating in an effective and responsible manner. The
Board also formulates the Company’s overall business strategies and
monitors management’s execution of such strategies.

By discharging its responsibilities, the Board has defined the business
and governance issues for which it needs to be responsible, and these
matters reserved for the Board have been separately defined, and are
reviewed periodically, to ensure that the Company maintains the proper
level of corporate governance and to ensure they are up to date. In this
regard, the Board discharges, among others, the following duties:

(1) to be responsible for convening general meetings, to propose at a
general meeting to pass the relevant matters and to report on its
work to the general meeting and to implement the resolutions of
the general meetings;

(2) to decide on the Company’s business plans and investment
plans;

(8) to formulate the Company’s proposed annual preliminary and final
financial budgets and profit distribution plan and plan for recovery
of losses;
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(4) to draw up plans for the material asset acquisition or disposal,
repurchase of shares of the Company or merger, division,
dissolution and alteration of corporate form of the Company;

(5) to decide on the proposals for salaries, incentives and
punishments of the Company’s staff;

(6) to decide on the establishment of special committees under the
Board and to appoint or remove its person-in-charge;

(7) to propose at general meetings for the appointment, renewal
or remove of accountants’ firm conducting auditing for the
Company; and

(8) to review and supervise the policies and practices of the Company
in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

The Board delegates the responsibility of day-to-day business and
operations to the Company’s senior management team, which
includes its chief administration officers, the chief executive officer
and deputy chief executive officers. The senior management team
meets regularly or as frequent as necessary to formulate policies and
make recommendations to the Board. The senior management team
administers, enforces, interprets and supervises compliance with the
internal rules and operational procedures of the Company as well
as its subsidiaries and conducts regular reviews, recommends and
advises on appropriate amendments to such rules and procedures. The
senior management team reports to the Board on a regular basis and
communicates with the Board whenever required.
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Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is responsible for formulating the corporate governance
policies and performing the corporate governance duties, which
include, among others:

(1) to develop and review the policies and practices of the Company
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

(2) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and Senior management;

(38) to review and monitor the policies and practices of the Company
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) to review and supervise the compliance of the Directors and
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code; and

(5) to review the compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report in the annual
report of the Company.

Operation of the Board

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at least four times a
year. Meetings shall be convened by the Chairman and notice of
and documents for such meetings shall be sent to all Directors and
Supervisors 14 days before the meeting is held. The Chairman, any
Shareholder(s) representing more than one-tenth voting rights, more
than one-third of the Directors, or the Supervisory committee or more
than one-half of independent non-executive Directors or the Chief
Executive Officer may propose the holding of an extraordinary meeting
of the Board. The Chairman shall convene and preside over the
extraordinary meeting of the Board within ten days upon receipt of the
proposal, and shall give written notice to all Directors and Supervisors
five days before the meeting is held. During the Reporting Period, the
Board held 15 Board meetings, one annual general meeting and three
extraordinary general meetings.

In case of urgency, the extraordinary Board meeting may be held upon
approval by the Chairman, not subject to the requirement of meeting
notice as set out in the Articles of Association, provided that reasonable
notice shall be given to Directors, Supervisors and the Chief Executive
Officer.
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Nomination, Appointment and Removal of Directors

The Company has formulated formal and transparent procedures for
the appointment of new directors to the Board. The nominations of
new directors are considered first by the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee, then they will make recommendations
to the Board for consideration. All nominees of new directors must be
approved by the shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.
Dismissal of members of the Board must also obtain approval of the
shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.

Attendance of Board Meetings and General Meetings

During the Reporting Period, the Board held 15 meetings. All Directors
duly performed their duties and attended the meetings in person or
by electronic communication means. They made informed decisions
to safeguard the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole. The attendance of Directors is as follows:

Name of Director

Mr. Xu Lei AELE
Mr. Yu Long TRELRAE
Mr. Liu Xujun 2BELE
Mr. Huang Yunjian BEEREYE
Mr. Wen Jianping 8l A
(resigned on 17 March 2016) (R=Z—R"F=ZA+tHBIE)
Mr. Jiao Jun EEERE
Mr. He Yuanping fAIRESE S
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi BATE L
Mr. Kwok For Chi HRETLE
(appointed on 20 April 2015) (R=Z—AFMNA=+HEZE)
Mr. Hu Song AR K&
Mr. Ma Shihao BtREE
Mr. Ren Gangfeng %
Mr. Yao Yan Ping, Francis PR Kk

(resigned on 18 March 2015) (R=ZE2E—RF=F T+ N\BEHM)

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
executive Directors during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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During this Reporting Period, the Board has considered and approved
important proposals, mainly including:

Proposal in respect of the amendment to the Articles of
Association

Proposal in respect of the approval the public offering of H Shares
of the Company in Hong Kong

Proposal in respect of the approval the 2014 annual report of the
Company

Proposal in respect of the approval the 2014 profit distribution
plan of the Company

Proposal in respect of the approval the 2015 financial budget
report of the Company

Proposal in respect of the 2015 financial budget report of the
Company

Proposal in respect of preparation of 2015 proposed investment
project plan of the Company

Proposal in respect of the approval of issuance of debt financing
of the Company

Proposal in respect of the approval the 2015 interim result report
of the Company

Proposal in respect of the amendment to rules of procedure for
the Audit Committee of the Company

Corporate Governance Report
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Pursuant to the Articles of Association, general meetings comprise ~ HRIB(ATEZER) - RRAE S AREKE
annual general meetings and extraordinary general meetings. Annual EAEHEEREAE - RRAF RS
general meetings are held once every year and within six months after SFZH—X X YEAL—EAHBEEE
the conclusion of the previous financial year. During the Reporting ~ & R#&RNE B AEIT - RBEHR -
Period, the Company held a total of four general meetings, including  HMEBETHXAREAE  HFE=
three extraordinary general meetings. The attendance of Directors is as X BREREAE - ESMWHEZRNT
follows:

Attendance/
Attendance/ Number of
Number of annual extraordinary

general meeting general meeting
BRRBFERE MR IRRAE
R/ R/

Name of Director =N =N

Mr. Xu Lei HFEERE 11 2/3
Mr. Yu Long FiEEE 11 3/3
Mr. Liu Xujun ZIfBE St 1/1 3/3
Mr. Huang Yunjian BEERELE 1/1 3/3
Mr. Wen Jianping XBIF k4% 1/1 3/3
(resigned on 17 March 2016) (R=ZE—RE=ZA+tHEM)
Mr. Jiao Jun EEAE 1/1 3/3
Mr. He Yuanping {AIFEF %4 1/1 3/3
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi BAEEE 11 3/3
Mr. Kwok For Chi SPRIE AL 1/1 2/2
(appointed on 20 April 2015) (R=ZZE—HEFWA =+ BHEZMT)
Mr. Hu Song A A 11 3/3
Mr. Ma Shihao BHELE 11 3/3
Mr. Ren Gangfeng e L 11 3/3
Mr. Yao Yan Ping, Francis BB K% N/A 1/1
(resigned on 18 March 2015) (R=Z2—RHFE=A+N\BEF)
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors and
Supervisors

Directors shall from time to time understand their responsibilities
as Directors of the Company, and the mode of operation, business
activities and development of the Company.

All newly appointed Directors will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to
ensure that newly appointed Directors have appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and are fully aware
of their responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements. Directors of the Company have
participated in the training about “Obligations of Directors of Listing
Companies”.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company constantly arrange internal seminars and
provide reading materials on relevant topics to Directors where
appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, apart from provision of
general introduction for newly appointed Directors, the Company
has also arranged the Directors, Supervisors and relevant senior
management members to participate in a seminar on “Corporate
Governance and Equity Merger and Acquisition” hosted by lawyers
with a view to enhancing the awareness of the management of the
Company towards the Listing Rules.

Mr. Xu Lei, Mr. Jiao Jun, Mr. Yu Long, Mr. He Yuanping, Mr. Feng
Zhuangzhi, Mr. Liu Xujun, Mr. Huang Yunjian, Mr. Ma Shihao, Mr. Ren
Gangfeng and Mr. Hu Song have participated in relevant trainings and
have provided the relevant records to the Company. The Directors
developed and updated their knowledge and skills through participation
in the training programmers, which in turn ensures that they could
make suitable contribution to the Board.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are separate and held by different persons and have been clearly
defined in the Articles of Association. Mr. Xu Lei serves as Chairman
of the Board and Mr. Yu Long serves as Chief Executive Officer. The
Chairman of the Board is elected by a majority vote of all Directors, and
the Chief Executive Officer is nominated and appointed by the Board.

The Chairman of the Board places great emphasis on communication
with the independent non-executive Directors. The Chairman holds
meetings with the independent non-executive Directors at least once
every year, in respect of development strategy, corporate governance,
operational management, at which no executive director is present.

The Chairman encourages open and active discussions. Directors
may speak freely at the Board meetings and actively participate in the
discussions of significant decision-makings in the Board meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board had delegated certain responsibilities to various committees.
The Company had established four Board committees, being the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee, Compliance
Committee and the Audit Committee.

(1). Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of one non-executive
Director, Mr. Xu Lei, and two independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Hu Song and Mr. Ren Gangfeng. Mr. Xu Lei is the
chairman of the Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include reviews and monitors the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board in light of the Company’s strategy; identifies
suitably qualified individuals and makes recommendations
to the Board to be new Board members; reviews and makes
recommendations to the Board on individuals nominated to
be Directors by Shareholders; assesses the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; reviews and monitors the
implementation of the board diversity policy of the Company.
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(2).

The Company had adopted a Board diversity policy aims to
set out the approach to achieve the diversity of the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. It
endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. All Board appointments
will continue to be made on a merit basis with due regard for the
benefits of diversity of the Board members.

The Nomination Committee will follow a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
made upon the possible contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee of the
Company has held the meeting once, to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors. The attendance record of
the committee members are as follows:

Name of Director

Mr. Xu Lei SFESE
Mr. Hu Song A&
Mr. Ren Gangfeng e EE
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of one executive Director,
Mr. Yu Long, and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Hu Song and Mr. Ren Gangfeng. Mr. Hu Song is the chairman of
the committee.

(2).
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, among
others, to make recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy; to review and
approve the management’s remuneration proposals; to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management; and to
advise shareholders of the Company with respect to any service
contracts of Directors that require shareholders’ approval under
the Listing Rules.

In 2015, the Remuneration Committee provided recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration and performance management
policy and framework for the Directors and senior management.
Meanwhile, it inspected and assessed the performance of
duties by the Directors and senior management and the annual
performance.

During the Reporting Report, the Remuneration Committee of the
Company has held the meeting once, the attendance record of
the committee members are as follows:

Name of Director

Mr. Hu Song M.
Mr. Yu Long TREXE
Mr. Ren Gangfeng B
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(3). Compliance Committee

The Compliance Committee consists of one executive Director,
Mr. Yu Long, and three independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Kwok For Chi, Mr. Hu Song and Mr. Ren Gangfeng and one
Supervisor, Ms. Yang Chuanyun. Mr. Yu Long is the chairman of
the committee.

The principle responsibilities of the Compliance Committee are
to conduct independent investigation and make decisions on
compliance matters with respect to our business operations by
authorization from the Board. The Company has established the
Compliance Committee to ensure the operation of any projects
acquired and operated by us are in compliance with our internal
control standards and the relevant PRC laws and regulations.
During the Reporting Period, the Compliance Committee of the
Company has held the meeting once, all the members were
attended.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of four independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Kwok For Chi, Mr. Hu Song, Mr. Ma Shihao and
Mr. Ren Gangfeng. Mr. Kwok For Chi is the chairman of the
committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include
reviewing and supervising the financial reporting procedures,
including making proposals on appointing or changing the external
auditors; supervising the Company’s internal audit system and
its implementation; communication between the internal auditors
and external auditors; auditing the financial information and its
disclosure; reviewing the Company’s internal control system
and auditing the significant connected transactions; oversight
of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control system; other matters that the Board has
authorized it to deal with.

In 2015, the Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s
interim report for 2015 and conducted discussions and made
recommendations on internal control and the internal audit
procedure, etc.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee of the
Company has held the meeting twice, the attendance record of
the committee members are as follows:
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Mr. Ma Shihao BE=E4E 2/2
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
for formulating policies on remuneration of senior management of the
Group. Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2015 are set out in Note 39 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
remuneration paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors)
by bands for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out below:

HMER(ARE)

£ £ 500,000 7T

Remuneration bands (RMB)

Nil to 500,000
500,001 - 800,000

500,001 £ 800,000 7t

EERRREEANSHFHM

RAABRERHTAEESREREAEN
FBRELSEXARAEZHENER -
BE-_Z—HF+-A=+—HLFE
BESHFHNWEBRNE KRR
39

RIBLEEARAIEBASER » TREY
BE-_Z—AHF+-A=+—HLEE
ZEEIIZNFSHREBAE(FEE
EE)NEH

Number of

individuals

A%

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2015. The Directors consider that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future
and are not aware of material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue its operation as a going
concern.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk management
and internal control system to safeguard the Shareholder’s investments
and the Company’s assets and with the support of the Audit
Committee, reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an annual
basis.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted a review of
internal audit system and the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries including
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget.

During the Reporting Period, the Board, through a review, considered
that the risk management and internal control system of the Company
and its subsidiaries was effective and adequate.

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements is set out
in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on page 96 to 97 of this annual
report.

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out below:
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Total fees =ik ak 6,750

The Group also appointed other external auditors in respect of audit
services and non-audit services during the Reporting Period.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS/
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information, which will enable
Shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions.
The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for face-to-face
communication between the Board and the Shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDER’S RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholder(s) holding more
than 10% (individually or together with others) of Shares of the
Company shall be entitled to request for an extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting according to the following procedures:

Q)

Upon signing one or several written requests with the same
content and format, and stating the subject of the meeting, the
aforesaid Shareholders may request the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting or class meeting. Concerning
the above request, the Board shall, in accordance with the law,
administrative regulations and the Articles of Association, reply
with a written opinion to state whether it agrees or disagrees to
convene an extraordinary general meeting within ten days upon
receipt of the proposal. Shares held by the above Shareholders
who made the requests shall be calculated as at the date of
submitting the written request.

If the Board agrees to convene an extraordinary general meeting
or class meeting, it shall issue a notice of general meeting within
five days upon making the Board decision. Any changes made to
the original request in the notice shall be agreed by the relevant
Shareholders.

If the Board disagrees to convene the extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting, or does not reply within 10 days upon
receipt of the proposal, Shareholders individually or together
holding more than 10% of the Shares are entitled to request the
Supervisory Committee in writing to hold an extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting.

If the Supervisory Committee agrees to convene the extraordinary
general meeting or class meeting, it shall issue a notice of
general meeting within five days upon receiving the requests. Any
changes made to the original request in the notice shall be agreed
by the relevant Shareholders.

If the Supervisory Committee does not issue the notice of general
meeting within the prescribed period, it shall be deemed as the
Supervisory Committee not convening and not holding the general
meeting. Then the Shareholders who individually or together hold
more than 10% of the Shares for more than 90 consecutive days
may convene and hold the meeting themselves. Before publicly
announcing the resolution(s) of the general meeting, the convening
Shareholders shall hold no less than 10% of the Shares. When
the convening Shareholder issues the notice for general meeting
and publicly announces the resolution(s) of the general meeting,
they shall submit the relevant proof materials to the securities
regulatory authority where the Company is located and relevant
stock exchange.
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Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholders who individually
or together holding more than 3% of the Shares may submit ad hoc
proposals in writing to the convener of the general meeting ten days
before the holding of the general meeting. The convener shall issue
a supplementary notice of the general meeting within two days upon
receipt of the proposals and announce the contents of the ad hoc
proposals.

The Company sets out the following contact details for the
Shareholders to communicate with the Company:

Telephone number: +86 871 6720-9716
Company website: www.yunnanwater.cn
E-mail address: ir@yunnanwater.com.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by the law.

AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

On 8 May 2015, the Company passed a resolution to approve the
amendments to Articles of Association, which was effective on the
Listing Date. The updated Articles of Association was published on the
website of the Stock Exchange.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo had been the company secretary of the Company. Pursuant
to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary must take
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in each financial
year. Mr. Li provided his training records to the Company indicating
more than 15 hours of relevant professional development by attending
courses on company secretary functions, accounting system and
Listing Rules, etc. offered by qualified professional training institutions.

Corporate Governance Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B

i
pwec

To the shareholders of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yunnan
Water Investment Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
set out on pages 98 to 229, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

B R A E

BERKBRERVARLFARRE
(RPEARANBEEMRLINBERA
)

R B Em (LT R RE[ 3 AP 1) 2 5 5 &
REWBE229HEFMABIRERNER
RAATEHBEAT DREMBELQTF
MEHHBERE  LEHUBBRREE
REZZB-RAF+ZA=+-BMNEHE
EREREREZALFENEHERS
Wk SHEZRSBRMNSHEER
ER URTESHEEBER AN
AREER -

EEHEHMBRRARBENER

BEARESARERETBEETMLE
ERNERYBHREZENREB(Q AR
PN ERERBEEM DS HS G
BT UHARABESHYBIRE
MEE T FERRKTFERERMERN
ERERPULFTAFENATEHEE -

BB EE

BMNEERBRBERMNESEZRES
HUBBRERZR  EABETUES
ER)RES  RUZIIEHRERNERME
B BMAERARENATEEME
b A+ & ESAEEMELE

: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

STl K A O R T 0 B IR R A
B : +852 2289 8888 * K : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BHfEElRER

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HL&E

Notes 2015 2014
g —E-1f —E—-MF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARET T
Revenue U&= 5 1,558,394 1,100,761
Cost of sales SHERA 8 (1,050,772) (767,124)
Gross profit EF 507,622 333,637
Other income HA 6 97,552 49,059
Other gains - net Hi s $58 7 12,402 3,273
Selling expenses HEMX 8 (17,187) (13,456)
Administrative expenses THAX 8 (181,220) (125,816)
Operating profit R T 419,169 246,697
Finance income mE WS 10 25,553 3,551
Finance expenses g3 10 (66,749) (35,033)
Finance costs — net BE AN F R 10 (41,196) (31,482)
Share of profit of investments LARE SR E A BRAV RS
accounted for using the equity method BRERF 15 4,896 10,942
Profit before income tax Ff 45 %t BT 7 382,869 226,157
Income tax expenses FrSHipx 11 (65,426) (38,261)
Profit for the year FEWiEH 317,443 187,896
Other comprehensive income Hit 2w s
ltems that may be reclassified to ARREH S BEBREN
profit or loss Y=
Currency translation differences EMIREERE 976 (92)
Total comprehensive income for the year $£HN2EZEHAEE 318,419 187,804
Profit attributable to: T ALEMLER :
Owners of the Company RATEBA 285,853 166,587
Non-controlling interests JEIE R 31,590 21,309
317,443 187,896

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BHfEElRER

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HL&EE

Notes 2015 2014
Bt EE —E-If —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT AR®T T
Total comprehensive income UTATELAZEKE
attributable to: A
Owners of the Company ViN/NCTEZ Z =N 286,829 166,495
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R 31,590 21,309
318,419 187,804
Earnings per share for profit attributable 7/ A#& AE L FIAY
to owners of the Company (expressed BREN(USHRARK
in RMB per share) JLRT)
- Basic and diluted —EARREE 12 0.270 0.206

The notes on pages 105 to 229 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 98 to 229 were approved by the
Board of Directors on 30 March 2016 and were signed on its behalf

Yu Long
FiE
Name of Director

EEHA

105 HEE 220 BB ZE S5
B HRR 2 AHREBD ©

FBEHEF29ENIBRRENR =
—RNEZA=t+RAK=ESESHE I H
THATREREE

Liu Xujun
ZIeE
Name of Director

EEHA
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

As at 31 December

R+ZA=+—H
Notes 2015 2014
MIEE ZE—FHEF —E—FE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARBT T
ASSETS B
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERRE 17 1,617,329 1,378,952
Investment properties REME 18 17,764 5,042
Land use rights I b A 16 121,311 97,870
Receivables under service RIS R E T HET 1Y
concession arrangements FEWFRIE 19 1,941,739 1,444,600
Amounts due from customers BRIREREFRE
for contract works 22 404,142 193,924
Intangible assets BEEE 20 1,711,249 182,641
Investments accounted for using DRESREANRNIRE
the equity method 15 34,925 45,178
Trade and other receivables B R EMEWRFIE 23 773,236 138,186
Deferred income tax assets EIEEHEE 31 56,173 39,335
6,677,868 3,525,728
Current assets REEE
Receivables under service PRSI R E R HET HY
concession arrangements FEURERIE 19 11,540 9,662
Non-current assets held-for-sale EEFENERBEE = 7,500
Inventories FE 21 20,595 12,459
Amounts due from customers for EHIREEREFRE
contract works 22 3,477 6,455
Trade and other receivables B R EMEWFIE 23 1,197,087 845,486
Restricted cash ZRENERES 24 19,603 —
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEESEEY 25 1,672,121 612,649
2,924,423 1,494,211
Total assets BB E 9,602,291 5,019,939

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
BEHEEAER
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

As at 31 December

m+=ZHA=+—H
Notes 2015 2014
I EE —E—1f —F—gF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBET T AR®T T
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners AN EIHEE ANEIL#E S
of the Company
Share capital %N 26 1,193,213 862,564
Other reserves Hoth 27 2,264,254 1,155,140
Retained earnings REBER 600,956 366,542
4,058,423 2,384,246
Non-controlling interests JEdERRE S 884,189 337,078
Total equity HEVE 2R 4,942,612 2,721,324
LIABILITIES afg
Non-current liabilities EREERE
Borrowings e 29 2,025,960 868,992
Trade and other payables B R EMENFIE 28 54,514 =
Deferred income EIEU 30 164,876 144,749
Deferred income tax liabilities EILEFEHREE 31 198,116 52,796
Provision e 32 25,791 14,408
2,469,257 1,080,945
Current liabilities REaE
Trade and other payables B R HMEMAKIE 28 1,074,341 876,698
Borrowings (=N 29 1,038,355 270,323
Amounts due to customers for contract works & # L2 fEN B FE 22 4,552 3,727
Current income tax liabilities REFIEHERE 73,174 66,922
2,190,422 1,217,670
Total liabilities wmasE 4,659,679 2,298,615
Total equity and liabilities ESNafEn 9,602,291 5,019,939

The notes on pages 105 to 229 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

IRk 2 EARER D -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SO ERBEHR

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

Attributable to owners of the Company

KONAHE AL
Paid-in Non-
capital/ Other Retained controlling
share capital reserves earnings Total interests  Total equity
BWELS/RA Hitfte REEF oy FERES miEs
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETR AR®FR ARETRT  ARETR
(note 26) (note 27)
(M=t 26) (Mzkar)
Balance at 1 January 2014 RIE-ME-R—AMES 787,880 940,384 339,987 2,068,251 208,153 2,276,404
Total comprehensive income for the year &N 2EK =45
Profit for the year ERFE = = 166,587 166,587 21,309 187,896
Currency translation differences EHREER = 92) = 92) = 92)
— (92) 166,587 166,495 21,309 187,804
Total transactions with owners, BREANETNR HEE
recognised directly in equity (ERNERTRERD)
Capital injection (note 26(b)) EE(MFE26(b) 74,684 185,316 — 260,000 — 260,000
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBLAR = = = = 73,616 73,616
Capital contribution by non-controlling FERERLE
interests — — — — 34,000 34,000
Transfer to statutory reserve ERLERE = 29,532 (29,532) = = =
Dividends RE — — (110,500) (110,500) — (110,500)
74,684 214,848 (140,032) 149,500 107,616 257,116
Balance at 31 December 2014 RIE-ME+-F=+—-AM4EH 862,564 1,155,140 366,542 2,384,246 337,078 2,721,324
Balance at 1 January 2015 RIE-15-F—-Bi&H 862,564 1,155,140 366,542 2,384,246 337,078 2,721,324
Total comprehensive income for the year N2 EH 45
Profit for the year ERFE = = 285,853 285,853 31,500 317,443
Currency translation differences EEREER = 976 = 976 = 976
— 976 285,853 286,829 31,590 318,419
Total transactions with owners, BREANETRNRHEE
recognised directly in equity (ERNERTRED)
Issue of ordinary shares BILER 330,649 1,183,137 — 1,513,786 — 1,513,786
Shares issuance costs RABTHA = (126,438) = (126,438) = (126,438)
Acaquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) BB 2 ] (5 35) = = = = 500,888 500,388
Capital contribution by non-controlling FRRERLE
interests — — — — 14,633 14,633
Transfer to statutory reserve HBRETHE = 51,439 (51,439) — — —
330,649 1,108,138 (51,439) 1,387,348 515,521 1,902,869
Balance at 31 December 2015 RIF-LE+ZA=+-AMAH 1193213 2,264,254 600,956 4,058,423 884,180 4,942,612

The notes on pages 105 to 229 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHEERER
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HL&EE

Notes 2015 2014
g —E-1f —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®FT ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities REFBMEERE
Cash used in operations KEFARS 33 (681,970) (434,454)
Income tax paid 2R (80,304) (53,796)
Interest paid 2FE (91,665) (54,109)
Net cash used in operating activities K EREFTAR ST (853,939) (542,359)
Cash flows from investing activities BEFHNHRERE
Acquisition of subsidiaries, WEEKHE AR - kR
net of cash acquired BENHRE (661,915) (136,935)
Prepayments for acquisition of subsidiaries U BB B A BIRITEN FRE (523,658) =
Capital injection to an associate OEENTEE (35,000) =
BEYE - RENZ®E -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment, T ih{F AR Hb
land use rights and other intangible assets ~ EF&E (152,480) (305,380)
Government grants relating to purchase BEHEEYX  BER
of property, plant and equipment RERBLEE
and intangible assets BENBUSREED 25,000 54,219
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEVE - MENSKE
plant and equipment and land use rights AR it fF FARERRTS
;IE 33 6,834 25,778
Interest received 2R FE 9,352 4,888
Cash flows of other investing activities, net ~ EAiR&ZEH
ReEREFHE — 53,638
Net cash used in investing activities KREFRBMARESEE (1,331,867) (303,792)

EEABREROBERDA 103
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHRERER
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HL&E

Notes 2015 2014
g ZE-RfF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®FT ARET T
Cash flows from financing activities MERBMEERE
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 1T @RI FTSFIE 1,513,786 —
Capital injections by non-controlling interests 3% B JE¥ IR EZS I E 14,633 —
Proceeds from borrowings EEIVTESE YO 2,642,635 895,302
Capital injections from equity holders ERBEAEE — 294,000
Repayments of borrowings BEEBXN (807,560) (353,553)
Payments for listing expenses Xt ETER (126,438) (31,525)
Funds from related parties BB LRtES — 6,940
Dividends paid 2’RE = (110,500)
Net cash generated from financing activites BEEE TSR & F4E 3,237,056 700,664
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RERREEEY
and cash equivalents an, GR ) B 1,051,250 (145,487)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNRERREZEEY
beginning of year 612,649 758,146
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash ReRBRELEEYER
and cash equivalents Wi, (&) 8,222 (10)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FERRERBEEEY 1,672,121 612,649

The notes on pages 105 to 229 are an integral part of these E105 B2 F 220 EWMI TR ZESH
consolidated financial statements. B S sRR 2 AR I D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

1.1 General information

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Yunnan Province of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) on 21 June 2011. On 22 July 2014, the
Company was converted from a limited liability company
into a joint stock limited liability company with registered
capital of RMB787,880,000. The address of its registered
office is 16th Floor, Block A Hecheng International, 1088
Haiyuan Zhong Road, Gaoxin District, Kunming, Yunnan
Province, the PRC. The Company is an investment holding
company, the Company and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the development, design,
construction, operation and maintenance of municipal water
supply and wastewater treatment facilities in the PRC.

The Company’s H shares were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 27 May 2015.

These financial statements are presented in thousands of
Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years and
periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

1.

2.

(BFEEHY » BAFFELFIRNREFTET)
—RERRETNEE

1.1 —RER

EEABEBRERGERAA
(AEARNR=ZE——FXA
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—E-mMELAZ+ZH K
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BAR (GBI AEE D) EER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-
for-sale financial assets and investment properties, which
are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

(@) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following new amendments to standards have
been adopted by the Group for the first time for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2015:

HKAS19 (Amendment)
HEGTHERAE 1957 (BT A)
HKFRSs (Amendment)

BB IR EER (EFTA)
HKFRSs (Amendment)

BB IR EER (EFTA)

The adoption of these hew amendments to standards
does not have significant impact to the results or
financial position of the Group.

Employee Benefits

BERER

=

(b) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and
Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) come into operation during the financial
year, as a result, there are changes to presentation and
disclosures of certain information in the consolidated
financial statements.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FTEEHEREBEE)
(Cont’d)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d) 21 REBEEE)
(c) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (©) KRR BIFTETE R R
PEFE

ZHEFTENRENH
BITURZRER_-Z

A number of new standards and amendments to

standards and interpretations are effective for annual

periods beginning after 1 January 2015 and have not —EF—-A—BAZEH

been applied in preparing these consolidated financial MW EERBEN M

statements. MEZESMTBHRE
el KRBT

HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts'

BB ELERE 1458
HKFRS 11 (Amendment)
EBYBRELERE 1158

EEIEIERS
Accounting for acquisition of interests in joint operations'

WEERH R XB RN SRR

(BRI A)
HKAS 16 and HKAS

38 (Amendment)
HHEGTHEAE 167K

EBETTERIZE 38 5% (87T A)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS

28 (Amendment)
EBYBHREERFE 105 R

ERETHERIE 28 5% (15T A)
HKAS 27 (Amendment)
BERGTHERIE 27 5% (1BFTA)
HKRFS 10, HKFRS 12 and

HKAS 28 (Amendment)
EBYBHEERFE 105 -

ERVBRERENE 125K

EBSTHERIZE 28 5% (1EFTA)
HKAS1 (Amendment)
BERGTTERIZE 1R (BT A)

Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation
and amortisation'

AEZ T EMBHET AR

Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor
and lts Associate or Joint Venture?®

REERHBENASGELE 2HNHEERTE?
Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements'

B B ERE

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception’

REBE  TMAGHHER"

Disclosure initiative'
WEFE

HKFRSs (Amendment) Annual improvement to 2012 — 2014 cycle!
BEBBEHREER (BFTA) —E-CEFE_E-NFRENFERGE"
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with consumers?
BERMBREERE 155 BEEPFII &Mk ?

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?

BBMBREERE IR EMIA?

ZHABRERBEREA 107
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(c)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Cont’d)

i Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on 1

January 2016.

2 Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on 1
January 2018.

= Effective date to be determined by the International

Accounting Standards Board.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of the new standards, amendments
to the standards and interpretations but is not yet
in a position to state whether these new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations would
have a significant impact to the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont’d)

(@)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations other than
those which are under common control. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont’d)

(@

Business combinations (Cont’d)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont’d)

(@)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

The excess of the consideration transferred the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont’d)

(b)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions - that is, as transactions
with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FTEEHEREBEE)
(Cont’d)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d) 2.2 MELQT(E)

222 BRI E

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the
carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership
interest in an associate, any difference between the cost of
the associate and the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted
for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with
a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to “share of profit/(loss)
of investment accounted for using the equity method” in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. IEESBRBESE)
(Cont’d)
2.4 Joint arrangements 24 EE¥TH

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements
are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. The Group’s investments in joint
ventures include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon
the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture,
any difference between the cost of the joint venture and
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures),
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

24

2.5

2.6

Joint arrangements (Cont’d)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions of the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional currency and the Group’s
presentation currency.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

®)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation when items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statements, except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated income statement within
“finance costs - net”. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the income statement
within “other gains - net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

()

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

i assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

ii. income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

iii. all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEFBURBIE(HE)
(Cont’d)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 2.7 Y% BERSRE

Plants and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
All property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may
also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Construction in progress represents plant under
construction, which is stated at actual construction cost less
any impairment loss. Construction in progress is transferred
to fixed assets when completed and ready for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.13).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “other gains - net” in the consolidated income
statements.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Investment properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of investment properties to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
useful life is as follows:

Plant and buildings 30-50 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.9 Intangible assets

(@

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored
at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.9 Intangible assets (Cont’d)

®)

()

@

Development expenditure

When the future economic benefits become apparent
as a project progresses into the development stage
the costs incurred on development projects (relating to
the design and testing of new or improved products)
are capitalised as intangible assets when recognition
criteria are fulfilled and tests for impairment are
performed annually. Other development expenditures
that do not meet those criteria are recognised as
expenses as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as expenses are not recognised as assets
in subsequent periods. Capitalised development costs
are amortised from the point at which the assets
are ready for use on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives.

Operating concessions

The detail accounting policy of operating concessions
please refer to note 2.12.

Operating contract rights

Operating contract rights represent the fair value of
water treatment plants’ operating rights acquired
through business combination. These intangible
assets are amortised on the straight-line basis over the
remaining period of the operating contract rights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

29

Intangible assets (Cont’d)

(e) Licenses

Licenses represent the fair value of solid waste
treatment plants’ operating permits acquired through
business combination. These intangible assets
are amortised on the straight-line basis over the
concession period.

()  Technical know-how and software

Technical know-how represent the fair value of solid
waste treatment plants’ technique acquired through
business combination. Acquired computer software
licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs
incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. Technical know-how and software has a
finite useful life and is carried at cost less accumulated
amortization. Amortization is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of technical
know-how and software over their useful lives.

2.10 Land use rights

2.11

Land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments
for land less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the prepaid operating lease payments for
land over the remaining lease term or the operating license
period, whichever is shorter.

Land use rights 40-50 years

Non-current assets (or disposal Groups) held-for-sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as
held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction and a sale is
considered highly probable. The non-current assets (except
for certain assets as explained below) or disposal groups
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. Deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets (other than investments
in subsidiaries and associates) and investment properties,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.12 Service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with certain governmental authorities or
their designees (the “Grantors”). The service concession
arrangements consist of Build-Operate-Transfer (the
“BOT”) arrangements and Transfer-Operate-Transfer (the
“TOT”) arrangements. Under the BOT arrangements, the
Group carries out construction work of the sewage and
reclaimed water treatment or water distribution service for
the Grantors and receives in return a right to operate the
service project concerned for a specified period of time (the
“operation period”) in accordance with the pre-established
conditions set by the Grantors, the service project should be
transferred to the Grantors with nil consideration at the end
of the operation period. A TOT arrangement is similar to a
BOT arrangement, except that the Group pays consideration
for the right to operate the sewage and reclaimed water
treatment or water distribution service that has been built.

(@) Consideration given by the Grantor

A financial asset (receivable under a service concession
arrangement) is recognised to the extent that the Group
has an unconditional right to receive cash or another
financial asset from the Grantor for the construction
services rendered and/or the consideration paid and
payable by the Group to the Grantor. The Group has
an unconditional right to receive cash if the Grantor
contractually guarantees to pay the Group specified
or determinable amounts or the shortfall, if any,
between amounts received from the users of the public
service and specified or determinable amounts. The
financial asset (receivable under a service concession
arrangement) is accounted for in accordance with the
policy set out for loans and receivables under “financial
assets” below.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

2.

EEFBERME(#)

212 REFTFREZHE

ANEBEE T BUFHESEE
EATERT A DT ZERE
BRFEEREE - RBEFEE
ZHEEER-KE-BX
(TBOT) ZHRBR - K& -
BR(TTOT)) % - RIEBOT
ZH - ARERET AETS
KR BEKEERHKRER
BRIRE  EMRERTAE
ERENREESRBEER
EEHBNSER(KEED
Bl - lRFEEAREEHE
FREUZREBXTRT
A > TOTZ $F L RBOTZ
B HAREARKECER
9557k R B A K R IR SR A 7K BR
RN ARE -

@ BFALTHE

FrigR & mE E (R4S
AEE BT HERWR
H)UTHERR : A%
BB EREF TR
HEERBERT AW
BREHEMEMEE
R/SAEEZNRIE
HRFAHRME - i R
FAUEHGRERD
FEEXNEERFE
EEIACHLHRBEA
FRREREENFE
THEME BN E B
B/)  AEBENEEER
HREFMBERE - &8/
BE(RBISTFEERH
THERURIE)RETX
[ERMEE INERRE
WKIE P B BUR B8R

Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.12 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)

(@

®)

()

Consideration given by the Grantor (Cont’d)

An intangible asset (operating concession) is
recognised to the extent that the Group receives a
right to charge users of public service, which is not
an unconditional right to receive cash because the
amounts are contingent on the extent that the public
uses and service. The intangible asset (operating
concession) is accounted for in accordance with the
policy set out for “intangible assets” above, which is
amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of
operation ranging from 25 to 30 years.

If the Group is paid for the construction services
partly by a financial asset and partly by an intangible
asset, then each component of the consideration is
accounted for separately and is recognised initially at
the fair value of the consideration.

Construction and upgrade services

Revenue and costs relating to construction or upgrade
services are accounted for in accordance with the
policy for “construction contracts” below.

Operating service

Revenue relating to operating service are accounted for
in accordance with the policy for “revenue recognition”
below. Costs for operating services are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.12 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)

(d) Contractual obligations to restore the infrastructure to
a specified level of serviceability

The Group has contractual obligations which it
must fulfil as a condition of its licences, than is (i) to
maintain the sewage and reclaimed water treatment
and water distribution plants it operates to a specified
level of serviceability and/or (ii) to restore the plants
to a specified condition before they are handed over
to the Grantor at the end of the service concession
arrangements. These contractual obligations to
maintain or restore the sewage and reclaimed water
treatment and water distribution plants, except for
upgrade element, are recognised and measured in
accordance with the policy set out for “provision”
below.

2.13 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (CGU). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.14 Financial assets

2.14.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables and available for
sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
“trade and other receivables”, “receivables under
service concession arrangements” and “cash and
cash equivalents” in the consolidated balance
sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.14 Financial assets (Cont’d)

2.14.1 Classification (Cont’d)

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

2.142 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FTEEHEREBEE)
(Cont’d)
2.14 Financial assets (Cont’d) 214 SREE(F)

2.142 Recognition and measurement (Cont’d) 2142 BERRE (A

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income
statement as “other gains - net”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the
income statement as part of other income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.15 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

2.16 Impairment of financial assets

(@

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as construction delays due to
fire, earthquake or other natural disasters, changes
in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FTEEFHRMEE)

(Cont’d)
216 SREERME(E)

2.16 Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d) (a)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s
fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.16 Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

®)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses the
criteria referred to in (a) above. In the case of equity
investments classified as available for sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is also evidence that the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income statement.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available for sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through
the consolidated income statement.

2.17 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises design costs, raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. IEESBRBESE)
(Cont’d)

2.18 Construction contracts 2.18 BREYN

A construction contract is defined by HKAS 11,
“Construction contracts”, as a contract specifically
negotiated for the construction of an asset.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will be
profitable, contract revenue is recognised over the period
of the contract by reference to the stage of completion.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of
the reporting period. When it is probable that total contract
costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
is recognised as an expense immediately.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to
the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments
are included in contract revenue to the extent that may have
been agreed with the customer and are capable of being
reliably measured.

The Group uses the “percentage-of-completion” method to
determine the appropriate amount to recognise in a given
period. The stage of completion is measured by reference
to the contract costs incurred up to the end of the reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs for each
contract. Costs incurred in the year in connection with future
activity on a contract are excluded from contract costs in
determining the stage of completion.

On the balance sheet, the Group reports the net contract
position for each contract as either an asset or a liability.
A contract represents an asset where costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress
billings; a contract represents a liability where the opposite
is the case.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits held at call
with banks.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Cont’d)

FEEHBRBER)

2.23 Borrowings 2.23 f&X

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statements
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the report
period.

2.24 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

2.24
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

@

®)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FTEEFHRMEE)

(Cont’d)

2.25 BV RIESEFR1SHL(4F)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

(b) Deferred income tax (Cont’d) (b) EALFTSH(E)
Inside basis differences (Cont’d) AIEEZE (F
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the ELEfESHEEERRM
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will B REEEARKRERD

be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is an
agreement in place that gives the Group the ability
to control the reversal of the temporary difference in
the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation
to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

A AT AR K 85 B
P2 R T LURERD ©

INEREEER

iE FIE i 15 50 B & B R B
BRrd BEQXARSE
ERHNREELENE
AT ERME
B ERRNELEFREHR
BEMS MAKEHA
USSR = R R
Bl > mEFEER
AR RS HRA AR
SERERIBR - —R1E
MT o NEEEEES
g N B Y E B 14 £ FE
Mo - EEFHES
REBRNAERRKEE
M TR AR
B8 - 75 2 e R B
& QAR IRER P E
ERRNERMEERES
BHIELESIREE -

EERSHEETLRR
MEAR - BEQXAR
RERHREELENT
MR EREER TR
o RN AREAE R
BEOERMEEZRARFR
ZERRBEABAAR
IR EERE -

EEABREROBERDA

2015 £ 3§

3.



138

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

2.26 Employee benefits

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC based employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by
the relevant municipal and provincial governments in the
PRC under which the Group and the PRC based employees
are required to make monthly contributions to these plans
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired PRC based employees’ payable under
the plans described above. Other than the monthly
contributions, the Group has no further obligation for the
payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of
its employees. The assets of these plans are held separately
from those of the Group in independently administrated
funds managed by the PRC government.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TEESHBREMESE)
(Cont’d)
2.27 Provisions 2.27 &E&

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

2.28 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to purchase of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and are
credited to the consolidated income statement on a straight-
line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.28
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

' BRIFEZBEUA REF m2eT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.29 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.

(@) Sales of water and goods

Sales of water and goods are recognised when a Group
entity has delivered products to the customer; the
customer has accepted the products and collectability
of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(b) Sales from construction contracts

Income from construction service is recognised on the
percentage-of-completion method, as further explained
in the accounting policy for “construction contract”
above (note 2.18).

(c) Sales of service

Revenue from wastewater treatment operation and
other services is recognised when service is rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.29 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

(d) Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised
in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.

(e) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired
loans and receivables is recognised using the original
effective interest rate.

2.30 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk and fair value interest
rate risk and cash flow interest rate), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(@) Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in the PRC with most
of the transactions being settled in Renminbi
(“RMB”) which is the functional currency of most
of the group companies. In December 2015, the
Group has also acquired a subsidiary in Thailand
of which the currency is THB. Foreign exchange
risk of the Group arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments in foreign operations,
primarily with respect to US dollars (“USD”), Euro
("EUR”) and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”). The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy.

The foreign currency translation risk arising from
the net assets of the subsidiary in Thailand is not
material to the Group as at 31 December 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(@) Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

The following table shows the sensitivity analysis
of a 5% change in RMB against USD, EUR and
HKD. The sensitivity analysis includes USD,
EUR and HKD denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year-end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates with all other
variables held constant. If USD, EUR and HKD
had strengthened/weakened by 5% against RMB,
the effect in the profit for the year of the Group is
as follows:
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Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk iy AFERBEESRE
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The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long- RNEBEWR ZEE
term borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable REREHMER -
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest risk BT E R EEE
which is partially offset by cash held at variable WERFERERRR

rates. Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(@) Market risk (Cont’d)

(i

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix
of fixed and floating interest rate borrowings in
order to manage its interest rate risk. The Group’s
interest-bearing bank borrowings, pledged
deposits and cash and cash equivalents are
stated at amortised cost and not revalued on a
periodic basis. Floating rate interest income and
expenses are credited/charged to profit or loss as
earned/incurred.

If there would be a general increase/decrease
in the market interest rates by one percentage,
with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s interest expenses would have increased/
decreased by approximately RMB9,790,000
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB1,070,000). The sensitivity analysis above
has been determined assuming that the change
in market interest rates had occurred as at the 31
December 2015 and 2014 and had applied the
exposure to interest rate risk to those financial
instruments in existence at those dates. The
estimated one percentage point increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in market interest
rates over the period until the next annual year
end.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

®)

(©

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on group basis. The Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets is the carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and
receivables under service concession arrangements.

For deposit with banks, the Group has limited its credit
exposure by restricting their selection of banks on the
reputable local listed commercial banks or state-owned
banks. Management believes these financial institutions
are reputable and there is no significant credit risk of
loss on such assets.

For trade receivables (note 23) and service concession
receivables (note 19), the customers are primarily
local governments and PRC state-owned entities and
management considers the credit risk is not high.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating
entities of the Group in and aggregated by Group
financial department. Group financial department
monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash and
cash equivalents to meet operational needs while
maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn
committed borrowing facilities (note 29) at all times
so that the Group does not breach borrowing limits or
covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing
facilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(B#ZEHD

BRI EE TN RE FU&T)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1
()

3. MBEKREEE)

Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 31 B¥EREEE)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) (c) HEELER(HE)
Each subsidiary of the Group is responsible for cash rEEEWNBLARESE
flow forecast itself. The Group financial department HEXEBEBWREERERE
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash B o AN 5= B B 7 B0 B 5T
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to BeRBRESEEY X
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects FoUgREREEE
of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group expects to BYMEREEEERA
fund its future cash flow needs through internally EUBREBNEER
generated cash flows from operations and borrowings HESRHBREARE
from financial institutions. RE S ENKFE - KE
EFEHERKETER
HBFEE’JIﬁé/)ILE&%
BErEBNEREN
HARRBEREERK
The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative TROMEAEBHEST
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings e ed HER
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet MR EAR - RIE
date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts HEBZEHNIHMAM
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted FIGREABET DM - &
cash flows, including interest payments computed NI ENESERSE
using contractual rates, or, if floating, based on the NARUBRRERE &
current rates as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 FERE SO R E(F
respectively. RFE %'J Z, B EA
BE-ZE—-HE+=A
=t+t—HERZZ—NF
+-—A=+—HBRHE
Z)FENFIELRK
Between  Between
Less than 1and 2and Over
1 year 2 years 5years 5 years Total
1E)R 1225  2%5%  5&NE st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR AR%TrT ARETRT ARETR
As at 31 December 2015 R-Z-1§+°A=+—-H
Financial liabilities SHER
Borrowings EE 1,183,517 656,083 1,272,105 409415 3,521,120
Trade and other payables () EZKEMENFE() 947,368 8,728 22,388 22,899 1,001,883
2,130,885 664,811 1,294,993 432,314 4,523,003
As at 31 December 2014 ~ WZF-ME+-A=+-H
Financial liabilities FC L
Borrowings B 749,994 113,860 624,858 319,714 1,808,426
Trade and other payables () E5REENFE® 805,116 - - — 805,116
1,555,110 113,860 624,858 319,714 2,613,542

*

Excluding staff welfare benefit payable, other taxes
payable and advances.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.2 Capital management

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFEEHY » BAFFELFIRNREFTET)
3. MEBEREEM)

32 EBEFXEH

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including “current
and non-current borrowings” as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
is calculated as “total equity” as shown in the financial
statements plus net borrowings.

REBNEXAEENENAR
EAREEEHFELE - B
IRER R EHR K B E AR 548
BERMRNE  URERRE
NEARRBLURDEARRA

AREIABRELRERE  £&
B A g AR T IRER AR
E28  ARFEBREEARRH
EEEURDER -

AEERBEERBLRER
BA - R RBFEHERUA
EAXGHE - FERRETRE
(BEEHEERGERITHN
[ENEA R SEEN AR )RR &
RAEEEYAE - BEDTE
BARE ¥R PR 91 RE 2R 40 28 1 b0
EFRRERTE -

As at 31 December

R+=-A=+—8H

2015 2014

—2-5& —T-mF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARET T

Total borrowings (note 29) &R AAEE (MI5EE29) 3,064,315 1,139,315
Less: cash and cash equivalents B RERREEEY

(note 25) (Mg5E25) (1,672,121) (612,649)

Net borrowings EFOFER 1,392,194 526,666

Total equity B 4,942,612 2,721,324

Total capital BEARYEEE 6,334,806 3,247,990

Gearing ratio EEAEL=R 21.98% 16.22%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3.

3.3 Financial instruments by category

AR EE (F)

33 BRERESNEMTA

As at 31 December

R+-ZA=+—H
2015 2014
—E-1fF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBEFT ARETT
Assets BE
Trade and other receivables - excluding B 5 R HMERKIE
non-financial assets (TEREFEmMEE) 1,101,786 751,224
Receivables under service PRASIS ST HET Y
concession arrangements FEURFRIE 1,953,279 1,454,262
Amounts due from customers BHIRE
for contract works EWEFFIE 407,619 200,379
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEY 1,672,121 612,649
Restricted cash ZRERE 19,603 =
Liabilities afg
Borrowings EEN 3,064,315 1,139,315
Trade and other payables (*) B R EME[FIE () 1,001,883 805,116

*

Excluding staff welfare benefit payable, other taxes payable
and advances.

3.4 Fair value estimation

The Group’s financial instruments recognized in the
consolidated balance sheet are mainly receivables and
financial liabilities carried at amortized cost. The fair values
of these financial instruments approximate their carrying
amounts.

Financial instruments carried at fair value are disclosed by
levels of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.4 Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group does not have any other
financial instruments that are measured at fair value (2014:
nil).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments used in preparing these financial
statements are evaluated and based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Impairment of trade and other receivables and receivables
under service concession arrangements

The Group records impairment of receivables based on an
assessment made by management on the recoverability
of trade and other receivables, and receivables under
service concession arrangements. Provisions are applied
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. Impairment assessment
requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact both the carrying value of trade and
other receivables and the impairment charge in the period in
which such estimate has been changed.

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)
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RZEBE-HF+=ZB=+—
B ANEBEYERQAFER
ENTAEMERIAE(ZS

— Y& - ) -
FEEEHE R FIET

RG2S VRSP A ET R
HE TR BEEREHAMRE(E
EREREBBRERESHELN
RRBSENEY) ML L EET
aFE -

FEBSHRAREL G REBRER
RIBESE - FItMAEHOSHEE
B EREEERAERER - RATEE
EZHTREMNBEFENEEREE
A RREEAF H E A BT RR
REmAAT

(a) EZRHMEURKEURRE
B EE R T NERBGRIRR
=]

FEERBEEEHEZRH
b FE WK IR LA K BRI 45 RS &
ZHET BB YRR AT W [ 72 B2
1 HH B9 RF 1l A BR B WL SRR R
B —BSfFREERAE
BUREREA T BRI E R - B
SFHEE - BEMERER
FE K M5t - BRI SRR
FREMETEEER  BIZRER
HEEMATREHEANES
R EL At B WURR TR Y BiR TE 1B B2 0L
E5

EEABREROBERDA

2015 £ 3§

149



150

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is primarily subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such difference will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provision in the year in which
such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers to be probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.

Percentage of completion of construction and service
contracts

The Group recognises revenue for construction work
and services contracts according to the percentage of
completion of the individual contract of construction or
service work. Management estimates the percentage of
completion of construction or service work based on the
actual cost incurred over the total budgeted cost, where
the corresponding contract revenue is also estimated
by management. Because of the nature of the activity
undertaken in construction and service contracts, the date
at which the activity is entered into and the date when the
activity is completed usually fall into different accounting
periods. The Group reviews and revises the estimation of
both contract revenue and contract costs in the budget
prepared for each construction contract and services
contract as the contract progresses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(Cont’d)

(d)

Service concession arrangements

The fair value of the construction and upgrade service under
the concession arrangement is calculated as the estimated
total construction cost plus a profit margin of 3.93% to
5.47%. The profit margins are valued by an independent
qualified valuer, based on prevailing market rate applicable
to similar construction services rendered in similar location
at date of agreement.

The Group is paid for the construction and upgrade services
by a financial asset and/or an intangible asset, and each
component of the operator’s consideration is accounted for
separately. Significant judgment is exercised in determine
the fair values of the financial receivable at initial recognition.
Discount rates, estimates of future cash flows and other
factors are used in the valuation process. Any change in
the expected cash flows will result in change in the carrying
value of the financial receivable.

When the Group receives a payment during the concession
period, it will apportion such payment between (i) a
repayment of the financial receivable (if any), which will be
used to reduce the carrying amount of financial receivables
on the consolidated balance sheet, (ii) interest income, will
be recognised as revenue in profit or loss and (iii) revenue
from operating the water treatment plants in the profit or
loss. Revenue from operating and maintaining service is
calculated based on cost plus a profit margin.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible asset is
measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
The estimated useful life of an intangible asset in a service
concession arrangement is the period from when the Group
is able to charge the public for the use of the infrastructure
to the end of the concession period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(Cont’d)

(d)

Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)

The carrying amounts of the operation concession carried
as intangible assets in the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2015 were RMB1,447,977,000 (2014:
RMB146,406,000), while the receivables under service
concession arrangements were RMB1,953,279,000 (2014:
RMB1,454,262,000).

The operator may have contractual obligations it must fulfil
as a condition of its licence (a) to maintain the infrastructure
to a specified level of serviceability or (b) to restore the
infrastructure to a specified condition before it is handed
over to the Grantor at the end of the service arrangement.
These contractual obligations to maintain or restore
infrastructure, except for any upgrade element, shall be
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 37 at
the best estimate of the expenditure that would be required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period in the consolidated balance sheet.

According to the service concession arrangements signed
with the Grantors, the service fee unit price would be
periodic adjusted to compensated operating cost increase,
including labour costs, material costs, taxation, through a
pricing mechanism which still subject to regulation by local
government authorities.

Judgement is required in assessing whether these increase
costs can be compensate through unit price adjustment
and the timing. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates the pricing mechanism in the service concession
arrangements, the extent of development of the project,
status of negotiation with the government authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(Cont’d)

(e)

U]

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation/amortisation
charges for its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets, and reviews the useful lives and residual
values periodically to ensure that the method and rates
of depreciation are consistent with expected pattern of
realisation of economic benefits from property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual residual values and useful lives of
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to server industry cycles.
If there are significant changes from previous estimated
useful lives and residual values, the amount of depreciation/
amortisation expenses may changes.

Estimated impairment of goodwiill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet
date or whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amounts of goodwill has been determined
based on value-in-use calculations, taking into account
latest market information and past experience. These
calculation require the use of judgements and estimates.

Key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations are
disclosed in Note 20.

A sensitivity analysis on key assumptions used in the
calculation has been carried out. If the gross margin or
growth rate had been lower than management estimates
by 5% or discount rate had been higher than management
estimates by 5% with other variables held constant, the
Group would not have suffered any impairment of goodwill
as at 31 December 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(Cont’d)

(9)

Purchase accounting

Accounting for acquisitions require the Group to allocate
the cost of acquisition to specific assets acquired and
liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values at
the date of acquisition. In connection with the acquisitions in
note 35, the Group has undertaken a process to identify all
assets and liabilities acquired, including acquired intangible
assets. Judgements made in identifying all acquired assets,
determining the estimated fair value assigned to each
class of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as well as
asset’s useful lives, could materially impact the calculation
of goodwill and depreciation and amortisation charges
in subsequent periods. Estimated fair values are based
on information available near the acquisition date and on
expectations and assumptions that have been deemed
reasonable by management. Determining the estimated
useful lives of tangible and intangible assets acquired also
requires judgement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company are the chief operating
decision-maker of the Group. Management has determined the
operating segments based on reports reviewed by the executive
directors of the Company for the purpose of allocating resources
and assessing performance.

The executive directors of the Company consider the business
from product and service perspective.

During the year, the Group has invested in new business and new
region. The Group is reorganised into the business segments as
below:

(@ Wastewater treatment;

(b) Water supply;

(¢) Construction services and equipment sales;
(d) Solid waste treatment *;

(e) The “Others”, involves operation & maintenance services
and other businesses.

With the acquisition of several companies in the PRC and Thailand,
solid waste treatment business became significant to the Group,
it has been disclosed as a separate segment in the consolidated
financial statements.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment results,
which is a measure of revenue and gross profit of each operating
segment.

The amounts provided to the executive directors of the Company
with respect to total assets and total liabilities are measured in
a manner consistent with that of the financial statements. These
assets are allocated based on the operations of the segment and
the physical location of the asset. These liabilities are allocated
based on the operations of the segment.

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

S ERE B

RRABHTESRAEENEREL
ERRE  BEEHERE 27
TESRERIERRRFIMEEN
FrERNRSEELE D0 -

RRABYUTESRERRRBEE
ZRER

REERFRNCRENEZ LA
o REBEBABUTEB DI

(a) EKER;

(b) fitK;

) BEERBRBEHE
() EEERE*;

() [EAfbl FREENUEZERS
SEEIE S

O OEBRBFBERZENSZ R
A BREEREEBRCHAANEE
MERXYE  HERSHIBR
RNERBLDEIRE -

EEEIHERARELEED BN
RE - DBERIERRRAMEE
HIRE - DER|IBATZBERE
1TRHE - HAREE I MBARE
M —EtE -

RRARHTESERHNEBEER
BABESHIUEYBRRATEA
E-BWNAAGE - ZZEERE
DREERBEREEFTEER R
ETOE - ZRERERBESHEE
ERETOR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHY  BRAIFFEZFIUARETF T ET)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. SERERI(#E)
()  Segment results and capital expenditure for the years ended iy BEZZE—AHRFR-_ZF—NF
31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows: +-—B=+—HIEFEMNDZ
HEEREARBAIZOT :
Year ended 31 December 2015: BE_F-AF+-HA=1+—
HIEFE :
Construction
and Solid
Wastewater Water  equipment waste
treatment supply sales  treatment Others  Unallocated Total
BER
FRRE #k  RERE  EERE Kt AR @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR  ARETn ARETT AREFn ARETr ARETR ARETR

(Gross segment revenue PPNREE 420,009 454571 644,183 8,220 78,594 — 1,605,583
Inter-segment revenue gl = = (47,189) = = = (47,189)
Revenue s 420,009 454571 596,994 8,220 78,594 — 1,558,394
Gross prof EZ ] WTgT2 108507 144384 121 45788 )
Other income EfgA 97,552
Other gains - net Ly 12,402
Selling expenses HERY (17,187)
Administrative expenses THEx (181,220)
Finance costs - et HERRFE (41,19)
Share of proft/ (loss) of R E N RAEL

investments accounted RERN/ (FB)

for using equity method 4971 — — — (79) — 4,89
Profit before income tax FrstiaaR 382,869
Income tax expenses FrEmm (65,426)
Profit for the year ERigF 317,443
Depreciation and amortisation HENEH (31376) (21,449 (9,181) (3,841) (2.279) (6019  (14,137)
Segment assets PHEE 2,756,951 815567  1,192471 2,168,355 393268  2,275679 9,602,291
Segment asses include: AHEERSE
Investments accounted for using

equity method NERENRNRE = = = = 34,025 = 34,025
Segment liabilities THER 610,785 97,156 559,553 584,371 287,984 2519830 4,659,679
Addtions to non-current assets FRBERNAE

(other than financial instruments (SRIAMELSE

and deferred tax assets) EERM 302,014 67,965 54801 1,419,503 11,970 144207 2,000,460

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R =E
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. DEER(E)
()  Segment results and capital expenditure for the years ended 0] E_E-RAER_ZE—NEF
31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows: (Cont’d) +-B=1+—HILFENSH
FERBARAZAT : (&)
Year ended 31 December 2014 (Restated)*: BE_F—NE+-RA=+—
Bt EE(KE)*:
Construction
and
equipment
Wastewater Water sales  Solid waste
treatment supply BER  treatment Others  Unallocated Total

BRER ik HREEE  EERE At #nl aif
RMBOO0  RMB'OOD  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMTR  ARMTR ARRTR ARNTR ARRTR ARBTR ARBTR

Gross segment revenue PHREEE 383608 216,043 551,862 = 31,034 — 1182547
Inter-segment revenue ABEkE = = (81,786) = = = (81,786)
Revenue s 383,608 216,043 470,076 - 31,034 — 1,100,761
Gross profit S 128,358 75,600 120,073 - 9,606 — 333,637
Other income EgA 49,059
Other gains - net BtohEFE 3213
Selling expenses HERY (13,456)
Administrative expenses THEx (125,816)
Finance costs - et HERRFE (31,489)
Share of proft of investments R E N RAEL

accounted for using equity method RERA 10942 = = = = = 10942
Profit before income tax FrsttanaR 226,157
Income tax expenses FrEmmEx (38,261)
Profit for the year iyl 187,896
Depreciation and amortisation EREH (22,447) (24,546) (3871) = (317) (3911) (57,946)
Segment assets PHEE 2,715,338 769,595 743972 11,000 95,480 684,554 5,019,939
Segment assets include: PHERES:
Investments accounted for

using equity method NEREARNRE 45,178 = = = = = 45,178
Segment liabilities PHEE 536,586 107,179 463,640 - 36,107 1,155,108 2,298,615
Addtions to non-current assets FREEENFE

(other than financial instruments (SRIANELHE

and deferred tax assets) BERN) 171,130 259830 34,504 11,000 1871 200299 678,74
* The segment information is applied retrospectively for the k o EB ﬁﬂ%i_,y)ﬂ%ﬁﬁ s LA

comparison to the year ended 31 December 2015. HBE_ZETZ-HF+ A

=t —HIEFEELE -

ERABRRRBAERAEA |57
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHY  BRAIFFEZFIUARETF T ET)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(i) For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the
Group’s business were primarily carried out in the PRC,
thus, geographical segment information on operational
performance has not been prepared. The table of segment

assets/liabilities by region is as follows:

5.

DERVE R (E)

iy BE-E-HER-Z—NF
+-A=+—HIFE  T&
BXrEZEHERARES  #8E
& R IE MY it iF 5 S E R R 4R
B o TREI IR MBI DD
nEE BE:

Year ended 31 December

HE+_-_A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—_E—hfF —ZE-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARTT ARBT T

Segment assets TEEE
-PRC —HE 8,886,724 5,019,939
— Other countries —HAE=x 715,567 =
9,602,291 5,019,939

Segment liabilities TEEE
-PRC — FRE 4,397,197 2,298,615
— Other countries —HtEx 262,482 —
4,659,679 2,298,615

Inter-segment transfers or transactions are entered into at terms
and conditions agreed upon by respective parties. Eliminations
comprise inter-segment trade and non-trade balances. Pricing
policy for inter-segment transactions is determined by reference
to market price.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

DEBERERZ HEEHTHERN
RRRARFEST - HIEBED AE
BENFEZER  DMEEZH
EEBRESEMERERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Breakdown of the revenue from all services is as follows:

5.

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

DERVE R (E)

B 2R AR TS & £ AVt 2 B AR EL 5
wr

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+-ALER

2015 2014

—E-1fF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR¥ET T ARET T

Operating services BERK 360,232 289,959
Construction services BIER 648,908 460,483
Finance income BE WA 107,979 55,744
EPC and equipment sales EPC KRB E 362,681 263,541
Others Hith 78,594 31,034
1,558,394 1,100,761

Revenue of approximately RMB181,271,000, RMB162,763,000
and RMB155,867,000 are derived from the three largest single
customers for the year ended 31 December 2015, representing
12%, 10% and 10% of the Group’s total revenue, which are
attributable to revenue from construction and equipment sales.
Revenue of approximately RMB202,162,000 is derived from the
largest single customer for the year ended 31 December 2014,
representing 18% of the Group’s total revenue and is attributable
to revenue from construction and equipment sales.

BE-Z—HFt+-A=+—HL1
FE > RE=FBHRKE—-FFMN
W= o B4 A AR 181,271,000
7T AR#162,763,0007T & AR
#% 155,867,000 7T @ {h AN EE A UK
= A12% - 10% K 10% ° 25 K
HmRERERREHE BE-Z
—NE+=ZA=+—HLEFE R
BERAE—ZFZEFNRENABARYE
202,162,000 7t » 15 A< & B # W &=
#118% - ZE W RBERERRE

EEABREROBERDA

2015 £ 3§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHY  BRAIFFEZFIUARETF T ET)

6. OTHER INCOME

6. HitbigA

Year ended

31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—F-I1F —E-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARTT ARBT T
Interest income FEUgA
- Bank deposits and others —RITERRE A 10,325 8,370
— Other receivables from third parties - REE=FHEAM
FEWFRIA 10,318 —
— Other receivables from related parties —REEEH A N HEAM
(note 36(b) (v)) FEWFRIE
(Fff3E 36(b)(v)) 4,552 1,634
Rental income - net (note 18) AW AFRE(MIEE18) 3,680 3,480
Government grants (note a) BB (FizEa) 68,565 34,880
Miscellaneous income HEIFUA 112 695
97,552 49,059
(@ Amounts represented the subsidies granted by certain () FZREIEE TS BEMAE
local governments to the Group in respect of the Group’s BIRMESAKRBEKEE - 5
provision of sewage and reclaimed water treatments, ERHERRKRERTKE

distribution and sale of piped water or construction of
sewage and reclaimed water treatment plants.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

Bh o

BAKEERMEERHAH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

7.

H iy 23 8

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
“F-41f —E-mEF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
Negative goodwill arising from acquisition of g —XMB LN R EEN
a subsidiary (note 35(d)) B8 (MFE35(d)) 12,472 —
(Loss)/profit on disposal of property, HEW  MENRRZE
plant and equipment and land use rights AR £ tth {5 FARERY
(B#]), (70) 3,273
12,402 3,273

EXPENSES BY NATURE

8. HEUBHIHRAX

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HL&EE

2015 2014
—E—5fF —F—-UF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥EF T ARETT
Employee benefit expenses (note 9) BERAB X (FEE9)
— Cost of sales —HERA 62,728 35,345
- Administrative expenses —1THBX 76,300 58,884
- Selling expenses —HEMX 9,242 7,371
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BRERREITE
equipment (note 17) (BFEE17) 59,530 46,054
Amortisation of land use right (note 16) T i f5E AR 8 (FdRT 16) 3,470 2,932
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 20) S E S (MEE 20) 11,137 8,631
Legal and professional fee EEREEEH 22,967 4,397
Auditor’s remuneration % 24 B 7 B 5,967 1,701
- Audit services — B RE 5,236 1,008
- Non-audit services — BRI 731 693
Allowance for doubtful debts REIREE 2,412 8,345
Cost of solid waste treatment ] BE IR 1 R AN 6,642 —
Costs of sewage and water distribution services 57k & {7k iR #E A 4 65,410 72,516
Costs of construction services BE R A 553,799 431,134
Costs of EPC and equipment sales EPC R fEtHE R A 265,080 156,558
Others Hi 104,495 72,528
Total cost of sales, selling expenses HEMAK - HEMXZR
and administrative expenses TR 4258 1,249,179 906,396

EEABREROBERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHY  BRAIFFEZFIUARETF T ET)

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES-INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

EMOLUMENTS

9.

EEEFRAX-SEREEME

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HL&EE

2015 2014

—E—5fF —E—-F

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR®TT FR¥ET

Wages and salaries TERF® 112,710 82,525
Social Security benefits HEREER 18,730 10,242
Housing benefits FERF 5,442 2,768
Staff welfare ETITRHN 7,570 2,739
Other allowances and benefits HiZRE R EF 3,818 3,326
148,270 101,600

(a) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include three (2014: two) directors,
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in
note 39. The emoluments payable to the remaining two (2014:
three) individuals during the year are as follows:

(@ IEEHESFAL

FEERAFENDTERSH
ALTBE=R(Z2—NF:
ME)ESE  HME KRR
AE39F 53 AT - MANFE @)
BTRME(ZE—NF : =)
ATEAMEMT AR

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—E-I1F —E-IF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T FTRE®T

Basic salaries, housing allowances, EXEHe - FRE=2A -
other benefits in kind HitbBY1EF 931 717
Bonuses TEAT 280 366
1,211 1,083

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES-INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 9.
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)
(a) Five highest paid individuals (Cont’d)

The emoluments of these remaining individuals of the Group
fell within the following bands:

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

EEEMHAX-SHREEME
(4
(@) EEBEHAL(H)

REBEZEHT ALTHBMEN
FLAT S5 :

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
ZF—AF —ZE-mE
Emolument bands [ e
ZZ AKM¥ 838,000 T
Nil to RMB838,000 (equivalent (HEREZ
to nil to HKD1,000,000) 1,000,000 7t) 2 3

(b) No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the
above directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join, upon joining the Group, leave the Group
or as compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

b) BE-T-LFR=-F-D0OF
TZA=T—-HLEFE  &X&
B ED A AESR AR
REHFATIVEAME - 4F
REBEEMASER - RMA
AEBERNRE - UEDHEE
RSB HEE -

FINANCE COSTS - NET 10. BAE R AFHR
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2015 2014
ZE-RfF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥FT FTR¥®Tx
Borrowing costs (RPN 92,622 55,354
Less: amounts capitalised on B BEREEN
qualifying assets (note 17) BEXRMb 2R (MEE17) (27,785) (21,090)
64,837 34,264
Unwinding of provision (note 32) AR BRI A (P EE 32) 1,912 769
Foreign exchange gains on A& E B JNE Y i
financing activities (note a) (FEEa) (25,553) (3,551)
41,196 31,482

(@ Amounts mainly represented exchange gains on converting
HKD denominated cash proceeds of global offering to RMB.

@ ZEREERZLBTHEDN
ERBREMSREREHLRS
ARWREENER WS -

EEABREROBERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHY  BRAIFFEZFIUARETF T ET)

INCOME TAX EXPENSES 11. FiBHEAX
Year ended 31 December
BEZE+—_BA=+—HLEE
2015 2014
—F-I1F —E-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T TRETT
Current income tax IRy
- PRC corporate income tax — R FTEH 54,236 43,908
Deferred income tax (note 31) IEFE RSB (BIRE31) 11,190 (5,647)
65,426 38,261

Certain subsidiaries in certain industries operated in the western
region of Mainland China can enjoy a preferential corporate
income tax rate of 15%, provided their revenues from principal
activites amount to more than 70% of their total revenues in the
year.

Certain subsidiaries operated wastewater and solid waste
treatment projects in Mainland China were eligible for tax holiday
of a three-year full exemption followed by a three-year half
exemption commencing from their respective first year generating
operating revenue.

Under the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and respective
regulations, except for preferential treatments available to certain
subsidiaries as mentioned above, other subsidiaries within the
Group were subject to corporate income tax at the statutory rate
of 25%.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax and Thailand profits tax
was made as the Group did not have assessable profit in Hong
Kong and Thailand during the year.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

EHEAEAEREEEESE TT%
METHERRATEZZ15%NE
BREMEHBE  fIREAEE
EBELNUBREFREREN
70% KLk -

EHBEREE S KR EERER
BENETHEBLARANSERERHE
HEHBEEELELE REFERH
M=FRRRAR=FHRBURFH
BIBEE o

BE(PEARAMBEEMED
E)RABERA - Br EETHEB R
AEZMNEERGFEN  FEEEAM
Bt /B8 2 B 2R % 25% HYTETE B R BN
PSR
HRAEEFRATEETEREEH
EERRTER - I EFRER
NER R REFEHEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R =E
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Cont’d) 1. FEHEXZ(#E)
The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical REBE R AR ENBIES BIRE
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate RAERRSEEERNFENINEFE
applicable to profit of the Group entities as follows: B EMAENERESRE AL
T
Year ended 31 December
BE+ZHA=1+—HLEE
2015 2014
—g2-iF —2-ME
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT
Profit before tax FRA BRI 382,869 226,157
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable %A EIL 5F)EHE AR
to profits in the respective companies BRI RGTENFIE 64,172 40,005
Tax effects of: UT&ENHBEZE
- Associate and joint venture’s results — iR EMEE AT R
reported net of tax = UNCIES
(HRRBETE) (1,224) (2,735)
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes — A B 2,478 991
Income tax expenses PSR 65,426 38,261

EEABREROBERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to the owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares issued
or deemed to be issued during the year. The Company
was converted to a joint stock company on 22 July 2014,
787,880,000 ordinary shares with par value of RMB1 each
were issued and allotted to the respective shareholders of
the Company according to the paid-in capitals registered
under these shareholders as at 22 July 2014. This
capitalisation of share capital is applied retrospectively
during the year ended 31 December 2014 for the purpose of
computation of earnings per share.

On 27 May and 10 June 2015, 287,521,000 and 43,128,000
H shares with par value of RMB1 each were issued by the
Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, respectively.

12. SREF

(a)

-¥N

BRERBFIZAAGEEA
BEEERBRUFAC BHITHR
fEE BT E B INFEF 19
FTE  APFR-ZE—NEL
B+ ZHEAAERHERA
7 » 787,880,000 f% = R HE &
AREATHEBERIIREC
Z-NFELtAZ+ZBERZR
ZERRATNEMEARRTT
REEFARDNBERE - KX
BAERMEIITREBE=—Z—N
FE+-A=1+—HIEFEEEY
R UETESRER -

R-B-EFER-++tHR
AATA  ARTREEBE
R FERA LRSI
287,521,000 ix K 43,128,000
B R E AR 1T H
B% e

Year ended 31December
BEt+_-_HA=1+—HLEE

2015 2014
—g2-iF —B-ME
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T

Profit attributable to the owners AATER ABALREF]
of the Company (RMB’ 000) (ARMF ) 285,853 166,587

Weighted average number of ordinary EETHE BRI
shares in issue (thousands) FHE(TR) 1,059,181 806,551
Basic earnings per share (RMB per share) SREARZREF| 0.270 0.206
(BRARYT)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings
per share as there were no potential diluted ordinary shares
outstanding as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

(b)

wE

HR=-ZF-HFR-T-NF
T A=+ —HIAEEETHEIN
METHESER  BERE
ERANESRESENEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

13. DIVIDENDS 13. B8

At the board of directors meeting held on 30 March 2016, the
directors of the Company proposed a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2015 of RMBO0.1 per ordinary share
(tax included) amounting to approximately RMB119,321,000
out of retained earnings of the Company. These proposed
dividends have not been reflected as dividends payable in these
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 but will be reflected as dividends distribution for the year
ending 31 December 2016.

Pursuant to the resolution of the shareholder’s meeting of the
Company on 1 November 2014, the Company had declared and
paid cash dividends of RMB110,500,000 in 2014.

EZE-—RFZA=1THETHNE
BEE22E L ARAESEEMNE
F-E2-R&+=-—HA=+-—-81L
FERNTAERESRZERA
REOAT(ER) EHOARYE
119,321,000t B A D AR B B A
REMY ZEEEREVEREZE
—E-RFE+ZA=1+—HLEE
WEBE I EIRER P KA EN
RE - BERBE_S—~<F+=
B=+—HIFERBMBBREDIK
BREXAQATAR-T—NE+—H—
BRRAEHNRER  AQAFRKR=
Z-NEEERERKTREKREA
R# 110,500,000 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

14. SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2015, all of which are private limited liability companies:

14. HIBAF

UTA=-Z—HF+=-A=+—8H
FTENMBAREE  HYRF LH

BRAR :
Percentage
of equity
Percentage attributable to
Issued and fully of equity the non-
paid-up capital/ attributable to controlling
Place of incorporation Principal activities and registered capital  the Company (%) interest (%)
Name and kind of legal status place of operation BRITREY FAREE R RER
1 A B REERRER IZEHREENY BRRE/HREE BHEM (%) REANL (%)
Dali Water Industry Investment PRC, Limited liability company ~ Sewage treatment and RMB90,000,000 45° 55
Co., Ltd. (“Dali Water') HE BRERLT water distribution, PRC AR#90,000,000 7
REABEERERRAR(RBAE]) FKEERMK - E
Yunnan OriginWater Technology Company PRC, Limited liability company ~ Environmental protection equipment RMBA60,000,000 100 -
Limited(“OriginWater Technology”) B BREALT sales and Construction, PRC AEH60,000,0007T
EEREKRABAEERELLT RRAGHERER T8
(MEREKFRERE]
Yunnan OriginWater Membrane PRC, Limited liability company ~ Environmental protection RMB55,614,800 71.93 28.07
Technology Co., Ltd. PE  BREALT equipment sales, PRC AR 55,614,800 70
ERHREKERNREREALA BRRBHE » 1E
Jinghong Water Supply and PRC, Limited liability company ~ Sewage treatment and RMB80,000,000 51 49
Drainage Co., Ltd. 18 ERELLT water distribution, PRC AR 80,000,000
SATAHKERERLA FRERRAK T8
Honghe Water Industry PRC, Limited liability company ~ Sewage treatment, PRC RMB85,000,000 100 -
Investment Co., Ltd. PE BREALT FKER A% 85,000,000
LINKBERRERRAR
Emin Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd. ~ PRC, Limited liability company ~ Water distribution, PRC RMB50,000,000 100 —
BHEABERRERRAR HE - EREELA fik o HE ARH50,000,000 7T
Wuxi Zhongfa Water Investment Co., Ltd. ~ PRC, Limited liability company ~ Construction service, PRC RMB134,000,000 75 25
ESTEKBREERAT HE - EREELH ERRY - AR8134,0000007C
Yunnan Water Secondary PRC, Limited liability company ~ Construction service, PRC RMB10,000,000 60 40
Water Supply Co., Ltd. HE - BRERAT ERRE TE AR#10,000,000 7
EEKBoREKERAA
Yunnan Dianzhong Water Co., Ltd. PRC, Limited liability company ~ Investment in sewage treatment RMB600,000,000 80 20
EHETKHERAR HE  BRERLT and water distribution, PRC AR 600,000,000
REBKRERK » 1E
Yunnan Water (Hong Kong) HongKong, Limited Investment in sewage treatment HKD128,000,000 100 —
Company Limited liability company and water distribution, Hong Kong 128,000,000 7
EEkE (BR) ROERAR &8 ARERLT RESKRERfK &%
Yunnan Zhengxiao Environmental PRC, Limited liability company  Solid waste treatment, PRC RMB30,500,000 60 40
Protection Investment Co, Ltd. HE - EREELT EEEE P8 ARH30,500,0007C

(“Zhenxiao Environmental”)

EHIRRRREARLA(IRER)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 14. WIB LR (E)
Percentage
of equity
Percentage attributable to
Issued and fully of equity the non-
paid-up capital/ attributable to controlling
Place of incorporation Principal activities and registered capital  the Company (%) interest (%)
Name and kind of legal status place of operation BETREY y: )30 R
R EE B Rk ER IERPRERUE BRRE/HREE BHADIL(%) BHEADIL(%)
PJT Technology Co. Ltd. Thailand, Limited liability company Investment in sewage treatment THB740,000,000 100 —
(“PJT Technology”) 28 BREALH and water distribution, Thailand 740,000,000 %4
RESKRERMK  RE
Shandong Binzhou New Environment PRC, Limited liability company ~ Investment in sewage treatment RMB80,000,000 80 20
Investment Co.,Ltd. PE  BREALH and water distribution, PRC AR 80,000,000
WEENESTREREERAR RESKEERK - 4
Shandong Tengyue Chemical Hazardous ~ PRC, Limited liability company  Solid waste treatment, PRC RMB108,571,429 51 49
Waste Research & Treatment Co,, Ltd. ~ HE]» BREALT BERE & ARE
(“Shandong Tengyue”) 108,571,429 ¢
WRER( 2 RRERINFRERERAT
(7))
Wenshan Water Industry Investment PRC, Limited liability company ~ Investment in sewage treatment, PRC RMB50,000,000 100 -
Co., Ltd. (‘Wenshan Water’) T8 EREALT RESKER  hE AR%50,000,0007
TN BEERERRAR (Sl )
Mengla Water Supply and Drainage PRC, Limited liability company ~ Sewage treatment and water RMB 21,000,000 51 49
Co., Ltd. HE - BRERLT distribution, PRC ABR#21,000,0007
EEELTAERELLT FKEERAK T8
Shandong Environmental Industry PRC, Limited liability company ~ Environmental protection equipment RMB 120,000,000 80 20
Investment and Development Co., Lt~ HE ' BRELAT sales, PRC ARE
LRERREXRERRARAT RRAFHE  1E 120,000,000 7T
Yunnan Kongang Water Co., Ltd. PRC, Limited liability company ~ Investment in sewage treatment and RMB 50,000,000 80 20
EREAKEERAT PE  BREALH water distribution, PRC AR#50,000,000 7
RESKREREK » hE
Xiaoxian Yunshui Water PRC, Limited liability company  Investment in sewage treatment and RMBS50,850,000 100 -
Investment Co., Ltd. B BREALT water distribution, PRC AR# 50,850,000 7T

BREKKEREBRAR

REFKEER K »

The Group has substantially controlled Dali Water through an

agreement entered into with one of minority shareholders of Dali
Water pursuant to which the minority shareholder confirmed to
act consistently with the Group in business operation and finance

decision making of Dali

Water.

Y AREEB-EASR-FRE
KFED BIRRFTR] A B9 17 R T 42
FIREABORE D RE B
b DBRRER  EELHER
RIEKBEHEBEE R PBRE
FrEAAR B —BUTE -

EEABREROBERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

14. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

The names of these subsidiaries referred to in this report represent
management’s best effort at translating the Chinese names of
those companies, as no English names have been registered.

The total non-controlling interests in respect of the subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2015 are RMB884,189,000, and are considered
not material to the Group.

In 2015, increases in non-controlling interests of RMB500,888,000
were derived from acquisitions, and increase in non-controlling
interests of RMB14,633,000 represented capital injection.

15. INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE AND A JOINT VENTURE

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as
follows:

14.

15.

Ft 8 2> 7 (47)

AR EFTIRMNZEWE D T
NEBHNEEBRENPELP R
BWER REERAGSIMEME
X B -
—E-RF+-A=1+—BEBKH
BARFEHEZBEAARYE
884,189,000t ¢ W IR BE K&
EmMsSTREK -

R-ZE—LHF FEFEREM
A B #500,888,0007T X B Wt B
EERIEFEZEMARE
14,633,000 TAEE °

REERRAREGEARANKE

REMEEREXRBEIANESEN
T

As at 31 December

R+ZA=+—H
2015 2014
—g2-iF —2-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT FRETT
An associate AN 34,925 —
A joint venture BE AT — 45,178
34,925 45178

The amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement
are as follows:

REfREREINSENT ¢

As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+—H
2015 2014
—E—1F —E-OF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®BTT FRETT
An associate N (75) =
A joint venture NG| 4,971 10,942
4,896 10,942

1 70 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

15. INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE AND A JOINT VENTURE
(Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Investment in an associate

The Group has interests in an associate that are accounted
for using equity method during the year.

(BFSEHDB - BAFFELFIUNRYTFAET)
15. REEEARAREGEQAANRKRE
(%)
(a) RBEATNERE

REBFRRZBE A RHR
BTy DEREANR ©

Place of Percentage of ownership interest
business/country PR @ E 5t
of incorporation A? at 31 chember

Name of entity BB H M ®+ZA=+—H
EREE FR ALY B 3R 2015 2014 Note
—F-Hf —E-NF g3
Bazhou Keda Haorui Environmental PRC 43.75 N/A (i)

Investment Co., Ltd. (“Bazhou Keda”) e iEA

EMBEERREREFR DT ([BINREE]D)

() The Group and a third party set up Bazhou Keda in 2015,
which is principally engaged in construction of sewage and
reclaimed water treatment plants.

Bazhou Keda is a private company and there is no quoted
market price available for its shares.

Investment in a joint venture

The Group has interests in a joint venture that are accounted
for using equity method during the year.

iy AEEEE=FR=-Z=-1
FEREMBHE > TERSE
ERSKRBEKEIERR
EMREEA—FRIELHRA
AT BERHITET SR
Eo

(b) REEQANRE

FEBFARZEERRNR
B EREANR ©

Place of Percentage of ownership interest
business/country AR GE
of incorporation As at 31 December
4y AN+ — H=4—
Name of entity BB S n+=A=+—H
HESH B 3L A B 2R 2015 2014 Note
—F-Hf —F-NF Bt EE

Wenshan Water PRC N/A 51 (i)
ST P TER

The joint venture is principally engaged in construction of
sewage and reclaimed water treatment plants and provision
of sewage and reclaimed water treatment.

(i)  On 30 December 2015, the Company acquired the rest
49% equity interest in Wenshan Water and Wenshan Water
became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (note
35(d)).

ZEENRETERBERTK
RELEKEERR - WIRAT5K
RBEKERE -

iy MH=ZZB-—-HF+=A
=+A8 AATUKE
X K FK &R T 49%
HIBRAE » B STl kT
REARRTNEZEW
B2 (MfzE35(d)) °

EEABREROBERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

15. INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE AND A JOINT VENTURE
(Cont’d)

(b) Investment in a joint venture (Cont’d)

No individual joint venture or associate is considered to be
material to the Group.

No commitments and contingent liabilities relating to the
Group’s interest in the joint venture or associate as at 31
December 2015 and 2014.

16. LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease for lands located in the PRC with a lease term of
40-50 years, and their net book value are analysed as follows:

15.

16.

(b) REEQANRER)

B AR A AR B A
EEBEEE -

R-ZE-LAFR-ZF—NF
TZA=1+—H  BEEXE
BREEARRBE D RME
HEBNAERIAEE -

T b E R

AEBR T FERAENERSARH
N F40Z50F WP B = b Ay FEAS
KERE > HEREFEIWAOT -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HiL&E

2015 2014

—E—ALfF —E—-UF

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR¥EFT FR¥ET

As at 1 January w—HA—H 97,870 42,957
Additions nNE 4,379 29,882
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35(b)) W BB BT B8 2 B (B & 35(b)) 23,410 28,621

Amortisation: s

- Recognised as expenses (note 8) — R B (KEES) (3,470) (2,932)

Disposals HE (878) (658)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8 121,311 97,870

As at 31 December 2015, land use rights of RMB28,573,000
(2014: RMB21,060,000) were pledged as collateral for the Group’s
banking borrowings.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

A=
28573000 T(ZE—NFE: AR
21,060,000 7T ) 1 + th s FREE BN EE
RITERAVIRIFRFUER -

—AF+ZA=+t—-H' AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R =E
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥%  BERH
Electronic
equipment
Plants and Motor  and others Construction
buildings ~ Machinery vehicles ERa in progress Total
BEREF 3 RE REf kRIRg @3t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR AREfn AREfR

At 1 January 2014 R-F-ME-A—-AH
Cost R 188,384 592,222 13,425 8,546 410624 1,213,201
Accumulated depreciation Zithe G297 (132,211) (4,739) (3,515) = (193,436)
Net book amount RETFE 135,413 460,011 8,686 5,031 410624 1,019,765
Year ended 31 December 2014 BEZE-m%

+ZB=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount BOREFE 135,413 460,011 8,686 5,031 410624 1,019,765
Acquisitions I8 63,896 39,974 1,492 36,546 30,637 172,545
Additions AE 610 24,093 5,408 10,688 193,960 234,759
Transfer from construction in progress ~ EEEERIR 53,860 14,015 = = (67,875) =
Disposals k= (1,560) (82) (403) (18) = (2,063)
Depreciation (note 8) RE(MES) (10,840) (27,897) (3,899) (3,418) = (46,054)
Closing net book amount HAREFE 241,379 510,114 11,284 48,829 567,346 1,378,952
At 31 December 2014 RZF-ME+ZRA=+-H
Cost R 305,190 670,222 19,922 55,762 567,346 1618442
Accumulated depreciation Zithe (63,811)  (160,108) (8,638) (6,9393) = (239,490)
Net book amount REFE 241,379 510,114 11,284 48,829 567,346 12378952
Year ended 31 December 2015 HEZE-1%

+ZB=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount HOREFE 241,379 510,114 11,284 48,829 567,346 1,378,952
Acquisitions (note 35) I8 (Bt 35) 120,694 3,997 2,893 4,013 16,224 147,821
Additions HE 1,734 7,498 6,934 3,678 132,268 152,112
Transfer from construction in progress ~~ EREERIRE 115,381 98,543 = — (213,924) —
Disposals e (1,031) (949) (19) @7 — (2,026)
Depreciation (note 8) HiEGRT)) (15,183) (34,376) (4,199) (5,772) = (59,530)
Closing net book amount HRREFE 462,974 584,827 16,893 50,721 501,914 1,617,329
At 31 December 2015 RZF-1%+ZR=t+-H
Cost o 557,379 778,519 31,276 65,027 501,914 1,934,115
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (94,405) (193,692 (14,383) (14,306) = (316,786)
Net book amount REFE 462,974 584,827 16,893 50,721 501,914 1,617,329

ZRABREARBAREA 173
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHY  BRAIFFEZFIUARETF T ET)

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has capitalised borrowing
costs amounting to RMB27,785,000 (2014: RMB21,090,000)
on qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were capitalised at the

weighted average rate of 6.30% (2014: 7.06%) (note 10).

As at 31 December 2015, buildings of RMB18,890,000 (2014: nil)

were pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank borrowings.

Depreciation was charged to the following items:

17.

L/ E RN S )

RZTE—RF+ZA=+—H &K
EEEEREENERLEREA
A ANR#27,785000 (== —
F: AR®21,090,0007T) - &5
RS B3 hnfE F 15 F) %2 6.30% -
(=2 -4 : 7.06%) EAL (KtzE
10) °
RZEB-AF+ZA=+t—H ' A
R #18,890,000 T (=& — 4 4 :
TR FIEBAREBIRTERWIE
HRFLUER -

ETIR AT IE B 1Bk

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—F—AfF —ZE-mE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Cost of sales SHER A 51,773 40,641
Selling expenses HEMX 664 636
Administrative expenses 1THREX 7,093 4,777
Total wast 59,530 46,054
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. I EWE
Year ended 31 December
BEt+_-_HA=1+—HLEE
2015 2014
—E-HE —T-mE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®F T AR®ET T
As at 1 January m—HB—H 5,042 5,371
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35(b)) W B R B8 2 B (P & 35(b)) 13,051 —
Depreciation e (329) (329)
As at 31 December R+=—B=+—H 17,764 5,042

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d)

Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment properties:

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

18. BEWMHE(E)

REBEEVEFNBERBEEINNR
15

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+-ALER

2015 2014

ZF—AF —ZE-mE

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR¥T T ARBT T

Rental income HEWA 4,052 4,046
Direct operating expenses from REELEHESWAN

property that generated rental income MENBEELE (372) (566)

3,680 3,480

The Group had no contractual obligations for future repairs and
maintenance as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Independent valuations of the Group’s investment properties
were performed by the valuer, Zhongwei Zhengxin (Beijing) Assets
Appraisal Co., Ltd., and Kunheng (Shandong) Land and Properties
Appraisal Co.Ltd, to determine the fair value of the investment
properties as at 31 December 2015 and 2014. The fair value of
these investment properties as at 31 December 2015 as assessed
by open market value method or present value method were
approximately RMB27,476,700 (2014: RMB14,426,000).

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of investment
properties of RMB9,336,000 (2014: nil) were pledged as collateral
for the bank borrowings of non-controlling interests.

REZB-RAFERZZE-NF+ZA
=t+—H AEELEABEER
HESHNEE -

HEMFRES(ER)EETEE
PR ) B 1L BRHE + it B it 7 5FAL
BRAFRCHAEBNWRENEE
TEIFHE UEETREVER
—E-AFERZZE-NE+ZA
=t+—BHBREVELFE - ZE
BRABMSEELLZREE LT
EHREVER-_Z-HFE+=A
=t+—HHNAFEIAINAARE
27,476,700 t(=ZZE—MF : AR
#£14,426,000 7T) °

RZE—ARF+-A=+—H K
mEA AR ¥9,336,000T(=&
—OF  BYNREVMEERHEIEE
PRAERIRITIERAVIR IR FLAER -

EEABREROBERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHY  BRAIFFEZFIUARETF T ET)

19. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION

ARRANGEMENTS

The Group has entered into a number of services concession
arrangements with certain governmental authorities in the
PRC and Thailand under BOT or TOT models in respect of
its sewage and reclaimed water treatment, water distribution
services and solid waste treatment. These service concession
arrangements generally involve the Group as an operator (i)
constructing sewage and reclaimed water treatment plants and
water distribution facilities (collectively, the “Facilities”) for those
arrangements under BOT models; (ii) paying a specific amount
for those arrangements under TOT models; and (iii) operating and
maintaining the Facilities at a specified level of serviceability on
behalf of the relevant governmental authorities for the periods
from 20 to 30 years (the “Service Concession Periods”), and the
Group will be paid for its services over the Service Concession
Periods at prices stipulated through a pricing mechanism. The
Group is generally entitled to use all the property, plant and
equipment of the Facilities, however, the relevant governmental
authorities as grantors will control and regulate the scope of
service that the Group must provide with the Facilities, and retain
the beneficial entitlement to any residual interest in the Facilities
at the end of the Service Concession Periods. Each of these
service concession arrangements is governed by a contract
and, where applicable, supplementary agreements entered into
between the Group and the relevant governmental authority in the
PRC that set out, inter alia, performance standards, mechanisms
for adjusting prices for the services rendered by the Group, and
specific obligations levied on the Group to restore the Facilities
to a specified level of serviceability at the end of the Service
Concession Periods and arrangements for arbitrating disputes.

As further explained in the accounting policy for “Service
concession arrangements” set out in note 2.12 to the financial
statements, the consideration paid by the Group for a service
concession arrangement is accounted for as an intangible asset
(operating concession) (note 20) or a financial asset (receivable
under a service concession arrangement) or a combination of
both, as appropriate.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

19.

BRFBHFEERETHRBNEIE

AEBECRIEBOTHTOTHE = &2
ETHEREEBFEERIZMS
KRBAENKERE - HKRE R ERE
BIBRT N ZIEREISTLE R -
ZERBEBICERHE-—REER
EEELELE{(BBEBOTHER
MZERHERTKEELEKEE
o R (H KGR B (B RB 3R B ) 5 (i) 4R
BTOTEAMZEZH T ER
H ;R (i) R BT HEAE R 20
Z30FHM ([ RIS LEE ™)
BRI EREKPELE RYEERNE
mAKEF iR EBHEHRENER
MERRESHFLL HREEEOR
BEEAR - AEE-—REEER
RIENFTEME - BMERRZE A
m - HEEBFEE(EBRTA)E
EHREEAREEFERARBLER
HERISHWEE - W(REHRRE
45 R A A R A SR B A RR R Y AT
FIpERNERER - BEZSR
KEFRETHEISAEEEFSE
HEBUTHBITIUNEOR(INE
B axzHhENRE  EFHBEE
FERE)MITEE - REBEFTRMHR
B FAERE R AR E R RESE
KR EREEERIEREZR
R FmAENSESE U
R AT R HE -

B 7 SR 3k B RE 2.12 P EI AR 75 45 5T
RETH INSTBRE—DER
REERBRBIEFEERHINTN
REREVEE(GIHEERE) AR
(B &E20) S & B & & (RIS 45 R 48
LR THRERE) ARIWES
BEABR(ZIEA) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

19. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION

ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Among the above services concession arrangements with certain
governmental authorities, there are four services concession
arrangements that are recognised as intangible assets, as those
projects had rights to charge users for the public service, and
44 concession arrangements which are recognised as financial
assets as those projects had unconditional contractual right to
receive cash from local government.

The effective interest rate fell within the range from 4.71% to
8.06%.

The following is the summarised information of the financial asset
component (receivable under a service concession arrangement)
with respect to the Group’s service concession arrangements:

19.

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

BR 7545 FF R 2 R BT BB UL IR

(48)

R B3RS T BUFARPT B9 IR F 45 5
BEZHD - AP MIRRBIFFTE
ERPRABEBILEE  HRZ
15 B AR D H RSB @A F WEL
B MA4EBTEETHRID
EREE DHRZSREERE
RIE S K RERI 7] @) 75 BUT UERER

BEREAMEN F471% E8.06% 2
A e
HEAEERBISTEEREEEN
EREEMARID (RIEISHELE R
BET R FENEIE ) B R N T -

As at 31 December

R+ZHA=+—H
2015 2014
—F—AfF —ZE-mE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Receivables under service RIS EELZHETHY
concession arrangements FEURFRIE 1,953,279 1,454,262
Portion classified as current assets DEARBEENTSD (11,540) (9,662)
Non-current portion FERBE D 1,941,739 1,444,600

EEABREROBERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHY  BRAIFFEZFIUARETF T ET)

19. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 19. RBHHFRELZETHEWIRIE
ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) (%)

RAEBRBHGFELERHETH
BYHRENS - FERREAEE
RAPBETEBHELHNIREME -
AREEEURBERTENEMAREE
B RBEFFEERFTHREK
SRR 15 2 B B B o

In respect of the Group’s receivables under service concession
arrangements, credit risks varied amongst the Group’s projects
operated in different locations of the PRC. The collection of
receivables under services concession arrangements is closely
monitored in order to minimise any credit risk associated with the
receivables.

As at 31 December

W+ZHA=+—H
2015 2014
—E—5fF —E—-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®FT ARBT T
Yunnan Province EEE 1,067,164 884,053
Jiangsu Province TERE 238,552 236,780
Xinjiang Province HEE 472,339 248,495
Shandong Province WERE 175,224 84,934
1,953,279 1,454,262

The expected collection schedule of receivables under service

BRIFASFT A E ZHE T MR IRIR Y

concession arrangements is as follows:

FREWE R ERAT ¢

As at 31 December

178

R+=-A=+—H
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—MEF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR#ET T AR¥T T
Within one year —F LR 11,540 9,662
One to two years —EWF 20,639 9,494
Two to five years MERF 59,773 55,969
Over five years BBRE 1,861,327 1,379,137
1,953,279 1,454,262

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

The receivables under service arrangements were billable
receivables. They were mainly due from governmental authorities
in Mainland China, as grantors in respect of the Group’s service
concession arrangements. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are considered fully recoverable. As at 31 December 2015, the
receivables under service concession arrangements with net
carrying amount of RMB241,220,000 (2014: RMB238,800,000)
were pledged to certain banks as security of the Group’s bank
loans.

As at 31 December 2015, receivables under service concession
arrangements with net carrying amount of RMB85,836,000 (2014:
nil) were pledged as collateral for an external third party’s bank
borrowings.

19.

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

BR 7545 FF R 2 R BT BB UL IR

(48)

PRI ZBET FFE W FR 18 & mTBE A BR
BWEWZE EEERBEAR
EEREBIREZHERT ARG
B P tth B T M AE - ARIB B ER
EERHBEANZSERELRE
BfE REREEEZIEERE
B HABRNERABT2EWE - R
—E-HRF+ZA=+—H BR¥K
SR EZHTHEKRIE - BRE
BEA AR 241,220,000 T(==
— MO : AR#238,800,0007T)E
mE THRTER  UMEAEREERN
IRITEFIER -

R-ZE-HF+-A=+t—H &
KETREZHETREFEAAR
#%85,836,000 T(ZE—WF : &)
I EWFRIEE B INBE = HRITHE
REVIKIRY) T LUE 3 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHY  BRAIFFEZFIUARETF T ET)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. EREEE
Operating Technical
Development  Operating contract know-how
Goodwill ~expenditure concessions rights Licenses and software Total
ik REFRx  HESEE ELARER FF R SERHREH @3t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT  AREFR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR
At1 January 2014 RZF-m%E-A-A
Cost AR 1,035 155 41,360 7,742 — 622 50,914
Accumulated amortisation it = = (659) (806) = (130) (1,595)
Net book amount RERE 1,035 155 40,701 6,936 - 49 49,319
Year ended 31 December 2014 ~ HE-F-ME+-A=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount BIRAFE 1,035 155 40,701 6,936 — 492 49,319
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEREAR = = 10,999 25,804 = 5 36,898
Additions HE 880 5,588 98,395 - - 192 105,055
Amortisation (note 8) R - - (3,689 (4,776) - (166) (8,631)
Closing net book amount HREEFE 1,915 5,743 146,406 28,054 = 523 182,641
At 31 December 2014 RZF-RE+ZA=+-H
Cost R 1,915 5,743 150,754 33,636 - 819 192,867
Accumulated amortisation ZiH = = (4,348) (5,582) = (296) (10,226)
Net book amount REFE 1,915 5,743 146,406 28,054 - 523 182,641
Year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ-F—-AE+_R=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount BIEETE 1,915 5,743 146,406 28,054 — 523 182,641
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) EEMIE 2 21 (HizF35) 113,186 — 1,057,975 — 88,580 38,011 1,207,752
Additions HE = 177 241,290 — — 526 241,993
Amortisation (note 8) (i 8) = = (4,854) (5,233) (825) (225) (11,137)
Closing net book amount BRREFE 115,101 5920 1440817 22,821 87,755 38,835 1,711,249
At 31 December 2015 RZF-EF+ZR=t+-H
Cost R 115,101 5920 1,463,229 33,636 88,666 30377 1,745,929
Accumulated amortisation L5 = = (22,412) (10,815) (011) (542) (34,680)
Net book amount REFE 115,101 5920 1,440,817 22,821 87,755 38,835 1,711,249

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

Amortisation was charged to the following items:

20. EBEEEE)
HEC AT HIE B 0k :

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2015 2014

—_F—AfF —Z-mE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR¥ET T AR®T T

Cost of sales SHE KA 10,465 8,465

Administrative expenses TR 672 166

Total @t 11,137 8,631
(a) Impairment test for goodwill (a) BEERERE

The goodwill of the Group as at 31 December 2015 mainly
arose in the acquisition of Shandong Tengyue (note 35(b)).
For the purpose of impairment testing, the goodwill was
allocated to Shandong Tengyue which is a cash generating
unit (“CGU”). The recoverable amount of the CGU is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a
fifteen-year period. Management determined a projection
period of fifteen years based on their past experience and
expectation for the market development and is consistent
with their business plan. Cash flows beyond the fifteen-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates
stated below.

AEER-ZE-AF+=A
=t-BENEEIEEWBEL
BB B (MY =E35() E &£ ° Hh
RERNHAmNS  BEIEE WL
RERB(AREELBENUIRE
ELEEBN]) - REELEMN
AW E eI IREE R EERT
EEE - FEAXFABAER
TREFER - KIFEEE X
M+ AFHP AR - E2E
RANTLFRENREER
EEAESNBELRKREHN
SRENTEN - BEREMNE
EEtE - - BETLFHE
MR ESRETIEA T 5HE
REEH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHY  BRAIFFEZFIUARETF T ET)

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

(a) Impairment test for goodwill (Cont’d)

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

20. ‘E.EEHE)

(a) EERENRAE)

FHEEFEMANEEZER
%

Year ended 31 December
BEt+_-_HA=1+—HLEE

Average annual growth (i) T F LR 2R ()
Long-term growth rate (ji) RHEIZR 2 (ji)
Pre-tax discount rate (jii) B AT BE IR = (jii)

2015 2014

e Ll i —E—MEF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTRE  ARETR
15% N/A
TEA

3% N/A

TEA

14% N/A
TiEA

() Management determined average annual growth rate
based on past performance and its expectations for the
market development.

(i)  The long term growth rate used is consistent with the
management’s forecasts.

(i)  The discount rate used is pre-tax discount rate applied
to the cash flow projections which reflects specific
risks relating to the business.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

() BEABNREBAX
BREHTERRNE
HETTEREE -

(i) FFARMERREETE
FEFER— 2 -

(i) FAABRERSRSRE
ORI P BR B9 B AT B3R
R HRREXKHEE
BY4% T L o
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22,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

INVENTORIES 21. H&
As at 31 December

R+=-A=+—H
2015 2014
—F-I1F —E-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#ET T AR¥T T
Raw materials FExrR 12,895 7,101
Goods in transit FEEY — 813
Work in progress EEm 7,536 4,545
Finished Goods BURK 164 —
20,595 12,459

No provisions for inventories have been made for the year ended
31 December 2015 and 2014.

AMOUNTS FROM/(TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT

BE-E-AFR-ZT-—NFE+=
B=+—-BLEE  XTEFREFE

B -

22, MEHNITREEYR (B EPX

WORKS IH
Contracts in progress at the end of the reporting periods: WEHARETHESY -
As at 31 December
R+ZHB=+—H
2015 2014
—F-IF —E-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARTT ARBT T
Costs incurred to date plus recognised ESEEENEAME 'R
profits less recognised losses FERERRER 460,120 242,907
Less: Progress billings W EEIR (57,053) (46,255)
403,067 196,652
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TERRENDNE -
Amounts due from customers for MENIREREREFPFIE
contract works
- Non current —JEENER 404,142 193,924
— Current —BNHER 3,477 6,455
Amounts due to customers for contract works FhE X TIRENEFEFRIE (4,552) (3,727)
403,067 196,652
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHY  BRAIFFEZFIUARETF T ET)

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. BZREMEWSIE

As at 31 December

i | e |
2015 2014
—F-I1F —E-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARETT
Trade receivables g 5 EWIE
- Related parties (note 36(d)) — B8 (B EE 36(d)) 285,098 317,862
- Local governments — it 5 BT 239,831 163,386
— Others —Hfib 328,196 130,087
Less: provision for impairment L ORERE (13,271) (10,973)
Trade receivables — net B 5 ENFIE — FEE 839,854 600,362
Other receivables due from: FEWAT & 5 BAth FE UL FRIE -
- Related parties (note 36(d)) — EAHE 77 (Fff 5 36(d)) 6,111 63,158
— Third parties —$= 390,517 99,306
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (134,696) (11,602)
Other receivables — net H b e IE — F58 261,932 150,862
Prepayments FRTRRIE
— Related parties (note 36(d)) — BARg 75 (FfT5E 36(d)) 108,778 69,973
— Third parties —$5=5 759,759 162,475
868,537 232,448
Less: non-current portion B - IEENHAER o
- Prepayments — third parties —FENRE-E= (715,826) (100,000)
— Other receivables - third parties —HiEWFIE-8E=5 (57,410) (38,186)
Non-current portion FEBRNHAER (773,236) (138,186)
Current portion BNHRER 2 1,197,087 845,486

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximate
their fair values and are mainly denominated in RMB.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

B R EMBYFRNRMESRA
DNFERE  BEBRUAREE -

Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 23. B5RHEMEWKIEAE)
(a) Trade receivables (a) EBEZEWFIE
In general, the Group grant credit periods from 90 to AEE-REOEEFKEEW0
180 days to its customers. Aging analysis of gross trade RE1BORWNEAE - RB4E
receivables at the respective balance sheet dates, based on EHRBEARASNGRRE
the invoice dates or contractual terms, is as follows: HHE S W IEATRRER D
T
As at 31 December
Rt+ZHA=+—H

2015 2014

—E-IF —E-IF

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR¥ET T ARBT T

Within one year —F LR 662,501 423,832
One to two years —EME 107,948 121,497
Two to three years ME=F 50,621 56,086
Over three years =FLE 32,055 9,920
853,125 611,335

As of 31 December 2015, the Group’s trade receivables BE-E—A%F+=-A=+—8"
of RMB251,654,000 (2014: RMB225,624,000) were fully A EH B A R # 251,654,000 7T
performing, which mainly represented retention fees of (ZE—F : ARH#225,624,000
construction projects due from customers. TNEZEWFIECZHEET £

ERRWEFERBERARES -
As of 31 December 2015, the Group’s trade receivables of BE-E—A%F+=-A=+—8"
RMB518,620,000 (2014: RMB302,825,000) were past due NEBCAHAETHBENE S
but not impaired. EWFHIE A AR 518,620,000 7T
“E—-NF : AR 302,825,000
JT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHY  BRAIFFEZFIUARETF T ET)

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)
(a) Trade receivables (Cont’d)

These receivables relate to a number of independent
customers that there is no recent history of default. Based
on past experience and project status, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The aging of these
receivables is as follows:

23. B REMBIKIEE)
B RWRIA(E)

2L RUGRIRER S 23T 20 4
EBHRENBYEFEE - R
BRELRIEERNK - A2
RAEERRBANZEEHRE
HRERE  FERFEEER
WHEE RSB B ERDERE
AEHWE - ZFEEKIEN

(@)

BRERINT :

As at 31 December

wR+=-A=+—H
2015 2014
—E-I1F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR#ET T AR¥TF T
Within one year —F LR 382,061 180,237
One to two years —ERE 98,146 109,796
Two to three years ME=F 32,822 12,792
Over three years =FUE 5,591 =
518,620 302,825

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(a)

Trade receivables (Cont’d)

As of 31 December 2015, the Group’s trade receivables of
RMB82,851,000 (2014: RMB82,886,000) were impaired. The
provision for these trade receivables was RMB13,271,000
as of 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB10,973,000). The
individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in financial difficulties or customers that were in
default in payments. It was assessed that a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. The aging of these
trade receivables is as follows:

23. B REMEBEWRIEE)

(a)

B RWRIA(E)

BE-Z—HF+=-A=+—
H » REBAR® 82,851,000
T(ZE-—DNF: ARH
82,886,000 70 ) BV & 5 FE U X
BHeRE BE2=-Z—1F
+=ZA=1t—H ZZ5E5E
WARBEBHNRESBEEARY
13,271,000 T(= & — M £ :
A ER#10,973,0007T) ° &3l
ERENE S EWFIEEE R
S REBNEFRiE AT
EEEE - LKL HoEW
MIETEHETKRE - ZEE 5
FEWFIERNERER T -

As at 31 December

w+-A=+—H
2015 2014
—E-1F —F-mF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT AREFT
Within one year —F LR 41,874 20,005
One to two years —EWF 7,619 9,667
Two to three years ME=HF 6,894 43,294
Over three years =FtE 26,464 9,920
82,851 82,886
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHY  BRAIFFEZFIUARETF T ET)

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 23. ESRHEMEWKIEE)

(a) Trade receivables (Cont’d) (a) EZEWFIEE)
Movement of the Group’s provision for impairment of trade AEEE 5 IR R E R
receivables are as follows: BEBMT :

Year ended 31 December
BEt+_-_HA=1+—HLEE

2015 2014

—®-5iF —T-MF

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBEF T ARETT

As at 1 January m—HB—H 10,973 7,056
Acquisition of subsidiaries WS KB | 365 —
Impairment provision WERE 2,004 3,928
Unused amounts reversed B ERE AFIE (71) (11)
As at 31 December R+=—B=+—H 13,271 10,973

(b) Other receivables

As of 31 December 2015, the Group’s other receivables of
RMB243,722,000 (2014: RMB149,149,000) were past due

but not impaired.

(b) EFElR

BE-_Z—-—HZF5+=A
=+—-B  AEBARY
243,722,0007t(= & —
F: AR #149,149,000 7T )
Y EL fth FE Uk 5018 B S8 HA B 3 4

AE -
As at 31 December
R+=-A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-I1F —E-IF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR#ET T AR¥T T
Within one year —F LR 158,633 116,138
One to two years —ZEME 49,569 6,952
Two to three years ME=F 4,932 13,803
Over three years =FE 30,588 12,256
243,722 149,149

1 88 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(b)

Other receivables (Cont’d)

As of 31 December 2015, the Group’s other receivables of
RMB152,906,000 (2014: RMB13,315,000) were impaired. The
provision for these other receivables was RMB134,696,000
as of 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB11,602,000). The aging
of these other receivables is as follows:

23. B REMEBEWRIEE)

(b)

HitbfEWRIA ()

Bz-_Z2-#AF+=A
=t+—H XEBAR®
152,906,000 T(= & —
F: AKE#%13,315,000 7T ) #Y
HiEWFEERE - 2=
Z—HE+=-B=1+—H &
SHMWERRENRESES
A R #134,696,000T(= &
—mF AR %11,602,000
TC) o ZEH M EWRFIEN R
BT :

As at 31 December

R+ZA=+—H
2015 2014
—_F—5F —Z-mE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Within one year —FLHUR 97,688 1,493
One to two years —EME 3,370 4,655
Two to three years ME=F 7,741 828
Over three years =FLE 44,107 6,339
152,906 13,315

Movement of the Group’s provision for impairment of other

receivables are as follows:

7S 5% (55 L 1t R WA R IR O R 1

BEBOT :

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HL&E

2015 2014

—E—AF —ZE-mE

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARET T

As at 1 January n—A—H 11,602 5,432
Acquisition of subsidiaries Y B B /2 B 123,871 1,753
Impairment provision R ERE 1,256 4,417
Unused amounts reversed S E R E AR (777) —
Write off bad debts sE AR (1,256) —
As at 31 December R+=—B=+—H 134,696 11,602

EEABREROBERDA

2015 £ 3§



190

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHY  BRAIFFEZFIUARETF T ET)

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(c) Prepayments

The Group’s prepayments are mainly for purchase of goods,
prepayment for land use rights, construction works and

other services.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned

above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

24. RESTRICTED CASH

Amount represented current cash deposits held at bank as
guarantee for service concession arrangements, in relation
to waste and wastewater treatment facilities in the PRC and
Thailand, such as bidding, performance bond and construction

work.

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

23. B REMBIKIEE)

(c) FENKE

REENENRBEZTERBE
BY) - TibfEME - BETRE
R E AR A AN RRIR -

BERNEYNRSEERR
B LR EE WA AR E
B - NEBWESHE MK
YHERTER ©

24. ZRFRE

FEFEREFRRITHRBR
T UERAEPBERFENEDR
BIKEIER A R R RIS R AEE
ZHMBRE  BOREBREET
R REER -

25. RERBEEEY

As at 31 December

R+ZHA=+—H

2015 2014

—F—AfF —ZE-mE

RMB?’000 RMB’ 000

AR®F T ARET T

Cash at bank and on hand RITKRFHEERES 1,672,121 612,649
Denominated in: BT EREEHE -

- RMB — AR 1,487,510 609,736

- HKD -8B 162,924 2,913

-THB — ik 11,902 =

-USsD —-%7T 9,785 —

1,672,121 612,649

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. BA

Number of Paid-in
shares capital/
(thousand) Share capital
icdyiRq=| BHELXS
(FBz) B
RMB’ 000
AR®ETT
As at 1 January 2014 R-ZE—ME—RB—H TEA 787,880

Ordinary shares of RMB1.00 each issued and HA=Z—HNEtHA=+=H

allocated on 22 July 2014 (note a) EETREREREE
AR®1.00 T ER

GEE) 787,880 —
As at 22 July 2014 R-FE—MELAZ+ZH 787,880 787,880
Capital injection (note b) EE (fEEb) 74,684 74,684
As at 31 December 2014 R-F—MNE+"A=+—8 862,564 862,564
As at 1 January 2015 N-_E—HE—HA—H 862,564 862,564
Shares issued by share offer (note c) R ERITHRMD (FiEEc) 330,649 330,649
As at 31 December 2015 R-IE—A&E+ZA=+—H 1,193,213 1,193,213

(@)

On 22 July 2014, the Company was converted from a limited
liability company into a joint stock limited liability company
with a registered capital of RMB787,880,000. The Company
issued and allotted 787,880,000 ordinary shares with par
value of RMB1 each to the respective then shareholders
of the Company in accordance with the proportion of their
paid-in capital to the Company as at 22 July 2014.

(@)

—E-mMELBAZ+ZH K
AAREREELATEHER
BHBERAT - EMELRBA
R #5 787,880,000 7T ° &N T
RRENRRSEEN-_Z—N
FLtAZ+—BHEEAQIAEH
BRG] > B H TR B
787,880,000 R EREE AR
A TE B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHY  BRAIFFEZFIUARETF T ET)

26. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d)

(b)

On 15 September 2014, pursuant to a capital injection
agreement and revised articles of association, Yunnan
Province Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd. (“Yunnan
Province Water”), Hangzhou Qingyu Jianzai Venture Capital
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Hangzhou
Qingyu”) and Sichuan Rongchen Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Sichuan Rongchen”) injected cash with an aggregated
amount of RMB260,000,000 into the Company, of which
RMB74,684,000 was recognised as share capital and
RMB185,316,000 was recognised as capital reserves.
After this capital injection, Yunnan Province Water, Beijing
OriginWater Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing OriginWater”),
Finergy Development (Tianjin) Equity Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership) (“Finergy Development”), 30 key
management, Hangzhou Qingyu and Sichuan Rongchen
held 45.43%, 33.23%, 15.98%, 3.69%, 0.67% and 1.00%
equity interest of the Company, respectively.

On 27 May 2015, the Company issued 287,521,000 H
shares of RMB1 each at HKD5.8 per share as public and
international offers in connection with the Listing, and
raised gross proceeds of approximately HKD1,667,622,000.
Besides, on 10 June 2015, pursuant to the exercise of the
over-allotment option, additional 43,128,000 shares of RMB1
each were issued at HKD5.8 per share and raised gross
proceeds of HKD250,124,000.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

26. BA(4#)

(b)

“Z-NEAATEHEA  RE
FEMBERLEITEBERMA
Al EMEKKEERERR
AR(EEEKE]D - IME
HEERERESRLE(E
BREEB)HmmEE )R Ml
BB ERRAA(MEIIE
BREARQEEANRSHEIEA
R # 260,000,000 7T * H&F A
FE #574,684,000 c HE R A KR
70 i A R #185,316,000 7T
BRBELAREBE - RXITE
% BEEMEKE - EEEK
BRIERGAERAR(ILER
ZARRD - BEAR(KZE)R
BREERLE(BEREE)
BERR] -0BEXEEE
BAE - - miMNEFHKTEII R
BRoRFE AR E45.43%
33.23% - 15.98% - 3.69% *
0.67% &% 1.00% BRAE -

—_E-HEERABA=-t+tAH"
XD A KRS K588 TR
17287,521,0008% & KR ™ &
ARBITHHKR: FHHE
T EREN AR KEERR
B UWEEMSRELAEY
1,667,622,00078 JT ° Lt 4b -
—E-HFEXNATH AR
HmRERETE BER
5.878 JT % 1743,128,000 %
BREBARE1THES
R WEERMBREHALE
250,124,000 38 T °
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27. OTHER RESERVES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

27. Hibf#E
Capital Statutory Translation
reserve reserve reserve Total
BARE G E S BEr

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFRT AR®ETR AR®BTRT AR%TR

Balance at 1 January 2014

Contribution by Yunnan
Province Water, Hangzhou

R-IE—ME

—BA—HH&E& 893,292 47,092 — 940,384
EREKE - MMNFE

RO sEREE

Qingyu, and Sichuan (Ff&E 26(b))

Rongchen (note 26(b)) 185,316 — — 185,316
Currency translation differences [E i Z48 — = (92) (92)
Profit appropriation (note a) MBI (FizEa) — 29,532 — 29,532
Balance at 31 December 2014 WRZF—M4£

+Z-H=+—H

By &8 1,078,608 76,624 (92) 1,155,140
Balance at 1 January 2015 R-E—HE—H—H

R BR 1,078,608 76,624 (92) 1,155,140
Issue of ordinary shares BITE B (MiEE26(c)

(note 26(c)) 1,183,137 — — 1,183,137
Shares issuance costs B& 10 34T AR (126,438) S —  (126,438)
Currency translation differences [E 5 Z%8 — — 976 976
Profit appropriation (note a) R (FEE a) — 51,439 - 51,439
Balance at 31 December 2015 WZZE—R %

+ZHA=+—H
R BR 2,135,307 128,063 884 2,264,254
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHY  BRAIFFEZFIUARETF T ET)

27. OTHER RESERVES (Cont’d) 27. HinkE(4)
(a) Statutory reserve and enterprise expansion fund (a) ZERBRLEREES
In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in the RIEFEIMERER AR ER - BR
PRC, except for sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises, PIMEEREN  FIEFERQ
all PRC companies are required to transfer 10% of their B AR RETFESERA
profit after taxation calculated under PRC accounting RERFTENRBRIBEH
rules and regulations to the statutory reserve fund, until 10%BRELERES B
the accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of their REFTESREEZHAME
registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can only be KW50% B 1t - FERFEER
used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset ERBRKEANE  FORE
losses carried forward from previous years or to increase KHBEFEEENEBRIE
capital of the respective companies. MEBATMER -
28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. EHRHEMEMNKIE
As at 31 December
R+-HA=+—H
2015 2014
“F-4fF —E-MF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
Trade payables: B EAFIER ¢
- Related parties (note 36(d)) — B8 5 (it EE 36(d)) 129,638 145,401
— Third parties —-%= 568,567 376,656
Other payables: HibERIE -
— Related parties (note 36(d)) — EAHE 77 (B 36(d)) 15,037 37,894
— Third parties —%= 288,641 245,165
Advances from customers REFEFPHER 15,243 15,239
Staff welfare benefit payable ERETER 25,869 19,676
Other taxes payable HAith (I BiE 85,860 36,667
Less: non-current portion A SERNERER (54,514) =
Current portion BUEAER 1,074,341 876,698
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SO R =E
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d)

28.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the aging analysis of the trade

BEZREMEMFKIEGE)
R-ZE-—RFER-_Z-MNFE+=A

payables based on invoice date is as follows: =+—H BEZEAREERZEER
ARIRVERER D ATIN T -
As at 31 December
R+ZHA=+—H
2015 2014
—®-1f —T-NF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT AR¥T T
Within one year —F R 396,269 440,275
One to two years —ZRF 227,226 66,584
Two to three years ME=HF 63,523 13,363
Over three years =FE 11,187 1,835
698,205 522,057
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BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHY  BRAIFFEZFIUARETF T ET)

29. BORROWINGS 29. f&®
As at 31 December
n+aEEd—H
2015 2014
—F-IF —E-MF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
Non-current JEBIHA
Long-term bank borrowings REIRITER
— Secured —BiEH 774,500 489,332
- Unsecured — K 536,629 19,545
1,311,129 508,877
Other borrowings - unsecured H g5k — |IE A = 6,000
Corporate bonds - unsecured NEESH - EIKE 794,527 396,838
2,105,656 911,715
Less: current portion of long-term borrowings & : REAIEFRAIENEIZE D
Bank borrowings RITER
- Secured — B (74,500) (38,814)
- Unsecured — IR (5,196) (3,909)
(79,696) (42,723)
2,025,960 868,992
Current BIEA
Short-term bank borrowings FEERIRITIERK
- Secured —BEH 38,860 —
- Unsecured — IR 1 919,799 225,000
958,659 225,000
Other borrowings - unsecured HA gm0 — J|IK A — 2,600
Current portion of long-term bank borrowings & EisR1TEZXAIENEAZR 2 79,696 42,723
1,038,355 270,323
Total et 3,064,315 1,139,315
Denominated in: LTI EHEEHE !
~RMB — AR 2,432,723 1,112,271
_EUR BT 24,450 27,044
-USD —-%7T 607,142 —
3,064,315 1,139,315

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

29. BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

(a)

Borrowings

The Group’s borrowings carried weighted average interest
rates of 6.36% per annum for the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: 6.84%).

As at 31 December 2015, bank borrowings of
RMB813,360,000 (2014: RMB462,288,000) were secured
by pledge of the Group’s buildings and machinery and
concession rights.

As at 31 December 2015, bank borrowings of
RMB24,450,000 (2014: RMB27,044,000), RMB313,200,000
(2014: RMB225,000,000), and RMB55,000,000 (2014: nil)
were guaranteed by a PRC local government, related party
and third party, respectively.

a5k

(a)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

()

BN

BE-E-RAFT-A=1t—
AILFE - NEBNERD B
BN F1IF R E6.36% (=
Z—UF 1 6.84%)T R °

RZIE—EHFE+ZA=+—
H BRITHERARK
813,360,000 (= & —
£ AR #462,288,000 7T )
HRAEEET -« HEERIFITE
BIFEIRA -

R=-—ZE2-—HEF+ A
=+t—H RBTERARE
24,450,000 T (= & —
F: A K #27,044,000
7t ) A K #313,200,000
T(ZE—-OF: AR
225,000,0007%) ' UK AR
# 55,000,000t (= & —
F:2)E9BPEEK
- -BBMIRE=ZFER-

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group’s borrowings —EFER=-ZZE-NEF
were repayable as follows: ‘|‘ ﬁ +—B  REBEEK
HEZERNT :
As at 31 December
R+ZA=+—H
2015 2014
—E-I1F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBET T AR®ET T
Bank borrowings SRITIEX
Within one year —FLR 1,038,355 267,723
One to two years —EME 166,877 57,587
Two to five years —EHEF 738,040 228,284
Over five years HEFEHE 326,516 180,283
2,269,788 733,877
Corporate bonds and other borrowings 4 8{&% &k H it &5k
Within one year —F LR = 2,600
One to two years —ZWF 398,055 6,000
Two to five years —ZHEF 396,472 396,838
794,527 405,438
3,064,315 1,139,315
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BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHY  BRAIFFEZFIUARETF T ET)

29. BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

(a)

Borrowings (Cont’d)

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of
each of the year are as follows:

29. f&FK(4&)

(a)

CENE )

REFR » NEB B RE R
NEBBEBRESVEHNEE

BEAZIT :

As at 31 December

R+ZH=+—H
2015 2014
—F-1f —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARTT AREBT T
Within six months ~NEB LA 644,046 119,656
Six months to one year NMERE—F 1,436,670 439,165
One to five years —ZhE 928,083 561,560
Over five years BBAF 55,516 18,934
3,064,315 1,139,315

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
approximate their fair value.

(b) Corporate bonds

On 7 December 2015, the Company issued corporate bonds
with the principal of RMB400,000,000, maturity of three
years and bearing interest of 5.23% per annum.

On 18 June 2014, the Company issued corporate bonds with
the principal of RMB400,000,000, maturity of three years
and bearing interest of 7.7% per annum.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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(b)

AEEEROEAERLAT
A -

DREES

R=ZE-—HE+=HA+tAH"
ARABBITEAESAARE
400,000,000 St Y 2 A& % -
FHA=F  RFFER523%
TR -

RZE-—NEXA+NH"
ARABCBHTEAESAARE
400,000,000 St Y 2 A& % -
FHA=ZF > BEFEMNRT7%

.
TR o
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Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

30. DEFERRED INCOME 30. EEIN
Deferred income represented government grants received ELEWARERATEERESE TS
from governmental authorities with respects to Group’s certain K B B J% 1 ok 5% e DA T2 £R R 10K R
construction of waste water treatment and water supply facilities REBRFHERRNWEN®EE - &
as well as the provision of water distribution service. The EWARBENINT :

movement of deferred income is as below:

BOO BOT/TOT

projects projects Others Total
BOOEEH BOT/TOTER Hits a5t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR ARBTRT AR®TR AR%®Tx

At 1 January 2014 RZE-ME—A—H 67,433 50,236 454 118,123
Additions NE 38,890 1,059 15,329 55,278
Credit to income statement AR (1,752) (18,169) (8,731) (28,652)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-MNE+=ZB=+—H 104,571 33,126 7,052 144,749
At 1 January 2015 W_E-H1FE—HF—H 104,571 33,127 7,051 144,749
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35)  UxEB {2 & (HfzF 35) — 2,000 — 2,000
Additions NE 25,000 — 11,582 36,582
Credit to income statement FARER (1,824) (15,755) (876) (18,455)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE-H1F+ZR=+—H 127,747 19,372 17,757 164,876
31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 31. REMER
As at 31 December
R+ZHA=+—H
2015 2014
ZE—FEF —E-mE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARTT AR¥T T
Deferred tax assets: EERIEEE !

— Deferred tax asset to be recovered —12{8 A R
within 12 months HIERER B & = 26,436 11,547

— Deferred tax asset to be recovered —12{@ B B W
after 12 months HIEEMIEEE 29,737 27,788
56,173 39,335

Deferred tax liabilities: EERIESE !

— Deferred tax liability to be recovered —12{8 A &R E
after 12 months FIEERIEEE (198,116) (52,796)
Deferred tax liabilities, net REEHEAEFHE (141,943) (13,461)

EEABREROBERDA 199
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont’d) 31. IBEFTER ()
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities FRELEMESHEERABNEH
during the year, without taking into accounts for the offsetting of (TatRE—BIE R AR A AR
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: )T -
Staff

welfare

benefit Bad debt Government Accrued

payable provision grant  expenses  Tax losses Total
Deferred tax assets BERELE B IR BRI B4R EstR% HEBE by

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’'000  RMB’000
ARETR  ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2014 R-F-N%-A-H 1,535 2,547 9,791 188 5,905 19,966
Credit to income statement BRI 3,458 2,363 3471 2,432 13,147 24,871
At 31 December 2014 RZF-NE+ZA=+-H 4,993 4,910 13,262 2,620 19,052 44,837
At 1 January 2015 R-F-1%-F-H 4,993 4,910 13,262 2,620 19,052 44,837
(Charge)/credit to income statement RUER () /34 (3,836) 498 3,754 1,574 (3,825) (1,835)
Acaquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) WM A =) (FiraE 35) = 19,871 S 1,434 = 21,305
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1E+ZA=+-H 1,157 25,279 17,016 5,628 15,227 64,307

Service Accelerated

concession tax

receivables Fair value depreciation
PR 45er gains nig Total
Deferred tax liabilities BEREEE ElHE NEERE HIERE @
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR

At1 January 2014 RZF-M&E-F-A (7,604) (2,356) (651) (10,611)
(Charge)/credit to

income statement R (NRR), /3 A (17,689) 503 (2,044) (19,224)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEMB AT = (28,463) = (28,469)
At 31 December 2014 RZF-ME+ZR=+-H (25,287) (30,316) (2,695) (58,298)
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1%-F-H (25,287) (30,316) (2,695) (58,298)
(Charge)/credit to

income statement EER (NR) /5t A (8,933) 1,578 2,000) (9,355)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) IR BB B 2 7 (i3 35) = (138,597) = (138597)
At 31 December 2015 RZF-1%+ZR=+-H (34,220) (167,335) (4,695) (206,250)

200 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

32. PROVISIONS 32, 1#E
Maintenance Employee
costs benefit Total
HAE A EEREH st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARBTT AR®FT
(note a)
(MtzEa)
At 1 January 2014 N-FE—NFE—A—H 2,141 = 2,141
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wi BB ) B 3,971 3,971
Provision capitalised in REFEETH
intangible assets BEBIEER 7,570 - 7,570
Provision charged to N EE S ] 53:)
income statement (note 10) B (FizE10) 769 — 769
Paid during year FRABARIE — (43) (43)
At 31 December 2014 R-T—HE
+-B=+—H 10,480 3,928 14,408
At 1 January 2015 R-E—R&E—H—H 10,480 3,928 14,408
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB Bt X F)
(note 35(c)) (FfF3E 35(c)) 9,559 — 9,559
Provision charged to B s RINBREE
income statement (note 10) (FFzE10) 1,912 S 1,912
Paid during the year FRBENFIE — (88) (88)
At 31 December 2015 RIE—1F
+-B=+—H 21,951 3,840 25,791

@ BEAKRERLARBEHITE
i ARENESNEES
REHELNRE - BERFS
BENTRARBKIR, X
RIS ERERE - £

RXBETRTAZA  &H
EEEEERRE - ZERER
EERENENEEUEFNR
IR HRBERES
HEREI7TRIBFRBITER
BEEMEXHNREMHER

ke Al =
REETE o

(@) Pursuant to the service concession agreements entered into
by the Group, the Group has the contractual obligations
to maintain the facilities it operates to specified level of
serviceability and/or to restore the plants to a specified
condition before they are handed over to the Grantors at the
end of the service concession periods. These contractual
obligations to maintain or restore the facilities, except
for any upgrade elements, are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 37 at the best estimate of the
expenditure that would be required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the year.
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BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

33. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

33. ®RE(FA) FiBHR

&

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—E-If —E-MF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
Profit before income tax PS8 I A8 382,869 226,157
Adjustments for: MUATEBELAE :
— Bad debt provision —IRARIE 2,412 8,345
— Amortisation of investment property —REYEEH 329 329
— Amortisation of land use right — T AR 3,470 2,932
- Amortisation of intangible assets — B EE 11,137 8,631
- Depreciation of property, - - BER
plant and equipment RiBITE 59,530 46,054
— Share of profit from investments — LR EANERWY
accounted for using equity method LR ERE (4,896) (10,942)
- Dividend income on available-for-sale —AHEEESR
financial assets BEENKREWA = (453)
- Finance costs - net — B E R AR 50,962 26,593
- Disposal loss of investments - HEREEE — 536
- Disposal loss/(gain) of property, plant - HEVE - BER
and equipment, land use rights B - T E R
and other intangible assets REMBREERE
BB () 70 (3,273)
— Negative goodwill -ans (12,472) —
Changes in working capital (excluding the EEESEH(TERE
effects of acquisition and currency g & & OF A BREF
translation differences on consolidation) EHEENTE)
— Inventories -FE (2,238) (6,394)
— Amount due from customers —-MENIREEWR
for contract works BFMIEA (209,393) (181,386)
— Trade and other receivables - B S5 RHEMERRIE
and receivables under RS E 5
concession arrangements T B FEUR R IE (1,062,438) (682,370)
— Trade and other payables - B RHEMEMNRIE 105,561 158,380
— Deferred income —IEFEW A (6,873) (27,593)
Cash used in operations REMARE (681,970) (434,454)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

33. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (Cont’d) 33.

In the statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale of property,
plant and equipment, land use rights and other intangible assets

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

Be (A MBR&(4#E)

EAIﬁuﬁmbéi‘%W g fé%%% N Fﬁﬁ%
BB tHERAEREMERLE

comprise:

Eﬁﬁ?%?klﬁi@% :

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HL&EE

2015 2014
ZE—AfF —F—-UF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBFT ARET T
Net book amount BRMEFE 2,904 26,855
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE MEKZE -
and equipment, land use rights T b E AR R H A
and other intangible assets BE(518) & (70) 3,273
Disposal consideration not settled REEHERE — (4,350)
Cash received from prior year’s disposal BB FE HEWE
HIRE 4,000 —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME - BRERERE -
and equipment, land use rights and T b fF ARE R H A
other intangible assets BEENRERIE 6,834 25,778
34. COMMITMENTS 34, &if
(a) Capital commitments (@) EAEE
Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred as of BE-ZE—HFUR=Z
31 December 2015 and 2014, is as follows: F+=-RA=t—HEHFT ?.z’]{ﬂl"]
REENERZHUOT :
As at 31 December
w+ZA=+—H
2015 2014
—F-IF —E-MF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
Property, plant and equipment and %% BN P
concession projects ST IHE 898,701 323,779

EEABREROBERDA
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BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

34. COMMITMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

The Group has leased various offices and warehouses under
non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease
terms are between 1 and 10 years.

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease rental
payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

34. AiE(H)

(b)

REHERE - FEEERE
HA

AEBERBETIHELERE
WEREEZSEARAEREE -
HEHB1ZE10F -
AEERBEFIHBELERED
BEENRREEAESARERE
LI

As at 31 December

w+=ZA=+—H
2015 2014
—E—5fF —E—-UF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#T T AR¥TF T
Within one year —F LR 6,500 2,995
One to five years —Z2RF 6,074 1,477
Over five years HEELE 450 54
13,024 4,526

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION

(a)

PJT Technology

PJT Technology’s principal activities are investment in waste
incineration and power generation in Phuket, Thailand. On
30 December 2015, the Company acquired 100% equity
interest of PJT Technology from an independent third party.

The acquired business has contributed none of revenues
and net profit to the Group for the period from acquisition
date to 31 December 2015. Had PJT Technology been
consolidated from 1 January 2015, the consolidated income
statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 would show pro-forma revenue of RMB1,645,749,000
and net profit of RMB320,594,000.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for
PJT Technology, the fair value of net assets acquired and
goodwill at the acquisition date.

(a)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

35. EHaEH

PJT Technology

PJT Technology B = & % 7§
AEREEEERENKRE
MBE - R=ZZB—HF+=A
=t+H8 > APBE—BBEILE
= 7 W B8 PJT Technology B9
100% AR HE -

WEARZE—_Z—-—hF+_A
=+— B8 - kBRI
RYERNEF WA K 4R E
i & Bf o i PJT Technology
BE-Z—HF—-A—HESE
AR AIAEEEZE=-Z
—REE+ZA=+—HBLHE
ENEHKREREY ~NE
ZRARGFEDBAAR
#51,645,749,000 T & A R #
320,594,000 7T °

T &R # 4t 5 PJT Technology
EANRE - RUEE B H TR
BFEENATEREE -

RMB’ 000
ARBETT
Consideration: RE:
— Cash -R/e 452,587
- Unpaid consideration —RARE 1,678
Total consideration REHE 454,265
Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired FrR BRI AIF EERN A FE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRALSZEY 2,872
Restricted cash ZRERE 8,915
Trade and other receivables g R HMEWFIE 19,424
Inventory FE 2,920
Property, plant and equipment M - BERZE 181
Intangible assets B EE 465,560
Borrowings (EEN (8,912)
Trade and other payables B R HEMEMNFIE (5,894)
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFEHEE (34,465)
Total identifiable net assets AR FEELTE 450,601
Goodwill R 3,664

EEABREROBERDA
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BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Cont’d)

(b) Shandong Tengyue

Shandong Tengyue’s principal activities are chemical and
medical waste treatment in Shandong Province, the PRC.
On 2 November 2015, the Company injected capital of
RMB416,330,000 to Shandong Tengyue to acquire its 51%
equity interest.

The acquired business has contributed revenues of
RMB8,344,000 and net profit of RMB1,297,000 to the
Group for the period from acquisition date to 31 December
2015. Had Shandong Tengyue been consolidated from 1
January 2015, the consolidated income statement of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 would show
pro-forma revenue of RMB1,595,967,000 and net profit of
RMB312,842,000.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

35. XBEbHE)

(b)

W SRR B

IR T EEKEEPE
IWREETLERERREYE
B-RZE—HE+—AZ
H AAFELRERTEA
S # 416,330,000 Jt LLEEUHE
51% PRFE ©

WERHZE-_ZE—HF+=
B=+—BHHE  FIREX
BAXRXEEEHMBEAARYE
8,344,000 T & £ F) A B ¥
1,297,000t ° fisf 1L 3R B BB
BE-ZE-—-HF—H—HESE
AR AIXAEEBZE-Z
—AE+ZA=+—BLHE
EWEftlERiGHIRNE
ZWARARNED R BAR
#£1,595,967,000 T R A B #&
312,842,000 7T °
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(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFEEHY » BAFFELFIRNREFTET)
35. =BAG(H)

Shandong Tengyue (Cont’d) (b) LEREERE(E)

TREZU L RBRE A HR
8- FEENQFHERRIE

The following table summarises the consideration paid for
Shandong Tengyue, the fair value of net assets and acquired

goodwill at the acquisition date. B R FTWB AR 2 -
RMB’ 000
AR®ETT
Consideration: RE:
—Cash -B& 216,330
- Unpaid consideration —RIRE 200,000
Total consideration REHBZE 416,330
Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired PR BB s AR EEN N TE
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEZEEY 224,591
Restricted cash ZREES 689
Trade and other receivables B REMERKE 246,516
Investment properties REYE 13,051
Property, plant and equipment M - BMERZE 145,673
Intangible assets B EE 119,429
Land use rights I b {5 A 23,410
Deferred income tax assets ELEFEHERE 19,871
Borrowings EE (19,360)
Trade and other payables B R HEMENRIE (144,543)
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEHEE (24,742)
Total identifiable net assets Al REE A 604,585
Non-controlling interests IR ER (297,777)
306,808
Goodwill ME 109,522
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2015 £ 3§



208

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Cont’d)

(c) Zhengxiao Environmental

Zhengxiao Environmental’s principal activities are medical
waste treatment in Yunnan Province, the PRC. On 21
December 2015, the Company acquired 60% equity interest
of Zhengxiao Environmental from an independent third party.

The acquired business has contributed none of revenues and
net profit to the Group for the period from acquisition date
to 31 December 2015. Had Zhengxiao Environmental been
consolidated from 1 January 2015, the consolidated income
statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 would show pro-forma revenue of RMB1,629,126,000
and net profit of RMB354,873,000.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for
Zhengxiao Environmental, the fair value of net assets and
goodwill acquired at the acquisition date.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

35. XBEbHE)

(c)

IEBRRMR

FERENEIEERAETR
EFRETEEBEYERE - B
—E-HF+=A=+—8H"
AATE—BBILE=FWEE
IEBRIRIRAY 60% PRFE o

WEEHRE-—E-—RE+=A
=+— BB FRREERT
REREE AR A R A REH
Bif - MEBRRE-ZT—1
F—A—BRAEHMAR  BIK
SEEZE-_ZT-HEF+=A
=+—BILEEENEHKER
BHIROEZE AR ARG D
Bl A& A R#1,629,126,000 7T
R AR# 354,873,000 7T °

TREEHMEBRRRS AR

B FEENQIFERREE
AHAFTIB VA2 -
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Cont’d)

Zhengxiao Environmental (Cont’d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFEEHY » BAFFELFIRNREFTET)
35. =BAG(H)

(c) EBRERRE)

RMB’ 000
ARWT R
Consideration: K& :
— Cash —-R/e 210,000
— Unpaid consideration —RARE 90,000
Total consideration RIBHEZE 300,000
Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired FriR BRI AR EEN A FE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEESEEY 2,731
Trade and other receivables B o Rk HEMERRIE 77,077
Property, plant and equipment M - BE KRB 1,444
Intangible assets B EE 599,577
Deferred income tax assets EEFMEREE 1,434
Borrowings (EEN (74,500)
Trade and other payables B R HEMEMNFIE (18,814)
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEHEE (79,390)
Provision BiE (9,559)
Total identifiable net assets ARk RFEELEE 500,000
Non-controlling interests IR E R (200,000)
300,000

Goodwill

Gk —

EEABREROBERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Cont’d)

(d) Wenshan Water

Wenshan Water was a joint venture of the Group from 2010,
which was held 51% equity. Wenshan Water’s principal
activities are sewage treatment in Yunnan, the PRC. On 30
December 2015, Wenshan Urban and Rural Development
Company transferred its 49% equity interest in Wenshan
Water to the Group. Wenshan Water became the wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group.

The acquired business has contributed none of revenues
and net profit to the Group for the period from acquisition
date to 31 December 2015. Had Wenshan Water been
consolidated on 1 January 2015, the consolidated income
statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 would show pro-forma revenue of RMB1,583,590,000
and net profit of RMB327,190,000.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for
Wenshan Water, the fair value of net assets and acquired
goodwill at the acquisition date.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

35. ¥BEHE)

(d)

pdlipS 3

Xk BEZZE-SFBAR
EENEEDLE  AKERE
H51% KR o XLk B
TEEBAETREERETS
FRE R-T—RF+ZA
=-+H » Wenshan Urban and
Rural Development Company
mAEEEZELKBH
49% PR FE o 1L KT AL & A<
EEN2EWBLR -

WEBEHZE=—ZE—-RF+=A
=+—BH™ > T ERI
REARE AU A R ATFEH
BE - MXLAKBR=-ZZ—H
F—A—HEHAR B
EEEE=-ZE-HF+=AH
=t+—HILFENEGHKERE
B REEE WA R ER & D
Bl A& A K #1,583,590,000 T
R AR 327,190,000 7T °

TR SLAFE D ARIR

8 FEENDTER AU
I 50 AT U MO R R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R =E
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Cont’d)

(d)

35. XBEH#E)

Wenshan Water (Cont’d) (d) STk (&)
RMB’ 000
AR®TT
Consideration: K& :
— Fair value of 51% equity interest in — REBPTIFSOL KT
Wenshan Water held by the Group 51% IRFEN A FE 50,149
- Cash -BE 35,710
85,859
Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired E Y% B8 FT sk R E E E B FE
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEESEEY 22,518
Trade and other receivables B 5 R HMERKIE 9,833
Receivables under service concession arrangements BRF§ 45 8F 48 & 2 HE T WU FEURGRIE 110,437
Property, plant and equipment M - BRERZE 523
Trade and other payables B RHMEARIE (39,869)
Deferred income IEFEYA (2,000)
Total identifiable net assets AR EERRE 101,442
Non-controlling interests IR (3,111)
98,331
Negative goodwill amg (12,472)

EEABREROBERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Name and relationship with related parties

Name

=1

36. FABIARS

(a) FEBERTS B A8 I BRI 75 9 B8

Yunnan Province Water
ErEkH

Beijing OriginWater
EREKR

Finergy Development
AR &

Wenshan Water (note 15(b)(ii))

I Ak (B EE 15(b) i)

Bazhou Keda (note 15(a)(i))
B MABEE (BEE 15(a)())
Maguan Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd.

(“Maguan Water”)
FEBKBEXRREGRAE ([ FEKE]D
Yunnan Metropolitan Construction

Investment Co.,Ltd. (“YMCI”)
EEAETERREEEERAR

([EEHRER )
Jinghong Municipal Investment and

Development Co., Ltd. (“Jinghong Investment”)
AT REMBAERD T ([ RAHIR )
Yunnan Chengjiang Eagle Tourist

Resort Co., Ltd. (“Yunnan Chengjiang Eagle”)
ERRIEEREEBRNAERLR(EEmBIEEM )
Yunnan City Voted Erhai Real Estate Limited.

(“Yunnan Erhai Estate”)
ERERESEXERAT(EFEEEX]
Yunnan City Voted Longjiang Real Estate

Limited. (“Yunnan Longjiang Estate”)
EREREIFHERBEERAR(EEEIELE]D
ZTE Yunnan City Investment Information

Technology Co. Ltd. (“ZTE Yunnan City Investment”)
ERPEERESREMERA R EEH EER )

EA
Relationship
B &
Shareholder of the Company
AN &
Shareholder of the Company
EA/NGI S
Shareholder of the Company
2 NG| S

Joint venture of the Group before
30 December 2015
AEBR=Z-HEFE+=-A=1THAH
aEHE
Associate
NG|
Subsidiary of Wenshan Water

S K FE BB A F

Shareholder of Yunnan Province Water
ERBKEHRR
Subsidiary of YMCI

EREHRERNKBRE
Subsidiary of YMCI

R EENHE AR
Subsidiary of YMCI

EREHRERNHBRE
Subsidiary of YMCI

ERHRERNKEARE
Subsidiary of YMCI

EEHREENKE AR

21 2 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(a)

Name and relationship with related parties (Cont’d)

Name

36. EABEA X5 (4HE)

(a) FBBERTS B A8 I ER A 75 9 B8

®E

Relationship

Kunming University Of Science And Technology
Oxbridge College (“Kunming Oxbridge College”)
ERET REZFER ([ BRZEEZER )
Kunming NO.1 Construction Group Co.,Ltd.
(“Kunming NO.1 Construction”)
ER-—E2EREBERAR(ER—ZD
Yunnan City Voted Bana Investment and
Development Co.,Ltd(“Bana Investment”)
ErRPRIRAIRERBEAR QB ([ IRAIRE D
Yunnan Circular Economy Investment Co.,Ltd
(“Circular Economy”)
ERBAREEREERAR(RERLHE])
Yunnan Construction Engineering Group
Co., Ltd. (“Yunnan Construction”)
EMEISEARAR(TEREL]

The 14th metallurgical construction corporation Ltd.

(“The 14th metallurgical construction”)
TR EEREEAR AR ([ HaE:R])

Subsidiary of YMCI

EEHRERNHBARE
Subsidiary of YMCI

ERHRERNKEAE
Subsidiary of YMCI

EEHRERNHBLRRE
Subsidiary of YMCI

EEHREBNKE AR

State-owned enterprises

BB
State-owned enterprises

Bk =piaE 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 36. FAEA R (&)

(b) Transactions with related parties

(b) EEBTETHNIS

REBE-Z-—HFER=-Z—NO
F+-—A=+—HLFEE K
SEHEEHEREREFINE
BEKBRE DT WIEFGETT
TUTEARRS :

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the
Group had the following significant transactions with related
entities which are carried out on terms agreed with the
counter parties in the ordinary course of business:

()  Purchase of goods and construction services

() FEEEmDRERRE

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HL&EE

2015 2014
—E—5fF —E—-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT AR®T T
Yunnan Construction EMET 554,869 486,579
Beijing OriginWater EREKIR 5,018 3,414
The 14th Metallurgical Construction +I0aER = 4,381
ZTE Yunnan City Investment T IR 824 S
560,711 494,374
(i) Sales of goods (i) HEER

Year ended 31 December

BEt+-HA=+—HLEE
2015 2014
—2-5& —T-mF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARBT T
Yunnan Construction EMET 148,096 94,623
The 14th Metallurgical Construction +IaER 39,953 202,162
Yunnan Erhai Estate EEEEHE 300 3,110
Yunnan Chengjiang Eagle EREIEEM 313 2,222
Yunnan Longjiang Estate EFRELEE 3,195 =
Kunming NO.1 Construction B2 15,488 —
Kunming Oxbridge College EIEBER 1,080 .
208,425 302,117

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bt R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 36. BEARG (&)
(b) Transactions with related parties (Cont’d) (b) EEEEEAETHRE(E
(i) Sales of land use right and property, plant and (i) HELHEHERY
equipment ¥ BERZE

Year ended 31 December
BEt+_-_HA=1+—HLEE

2015 2014
e Ll i —E—MF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBTFT
Circular Economy BRI 2,959 —
(iv)  Transactions under business arrangement (iv) EBEZHTHIXS

Year ended 31 December

BE+_RA=+—HLHFE

2015 2014
ZE—ALfF —F—-MF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
Funds from related parties BELREES
- Yunnan Province Water —EmAEKE 235 389
— Beijing OriginWater —EREKR — 229
- Yunnan Construction —-EEET 300 —
- Jinghong Investment - SHHEER 1,173 6,322
- YMCI - EEHERER 658 —

2,366 6,940

ZRABRERBEREA 215
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 36. FAEA R (&)
(b) Transactions with related parties (Cont’d) (b) EEEEEESETHRS (&
(iv) Transactions under business arrangement (Cont’d) (iv) EBEZHTHIKSZ(E)

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HL&EE

2015 2014
ZE—AfF —E-mF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARET T

Funds to related parties g RMtES
- YMCI - EEHERER — 200,000
— Wenshan Water — kT 63,046
- Jinghong Investment —SHHER 1,173 2,169
— Beijing OriginWater —EREKR 229 —
1,402 265,215

The funding arrangement between the Group and NEBEHBE IR EZHUARYEST
related parties are denominated and settled in RMB BRESTEANRERIFEEZ BEFER
and repayable on demand. And certain loans bear BT XML () FTE & ST E »

interests are set out in note (d) below.

21 6 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R =E
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 36. FAMEA R (&)
(b) Transactions with related parties (Cont’d) (b) EEEEEAETHRE(E
(v)  Interest income and interest expense (v) FIEWARFE R

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HL&EE

2015 2014
—2-5& —T-mF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBFT ARET T
Interest income of B A RHESN
funds to related parties FEUA
- YMCI —EEEREE — 200
- Jinghong Investment —SHHEER — 1,232
— Wenshan Water — XLk 4,552 202
4,552 1,634
Interest expense of funds BELREEEN
from related parties FIERX
- Jinghong Investment —SHHEER — 1,232

EHABRERBERLA D17

2015 £ 3§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(b) Transactions with related parties (Cont’d)

(i)

(vii)

Key management compensation

Key management includes executive directors. The
compensation paid or payable to key management for

employee services is shown below:

36. FEABIAR 5 (&)
(b) BERBLETHRS (A

(iv) ETEEENSFHH

TEEEBEEYITE
E-BEERBC IR
ERTESEASNE
BT -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2015 2014

—F—AfF —ZE-mE

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBTT ARBET T

Salaries and other benefits Fre R HMEFR 5,735 3,637
Guarantee (vii) FER

Year ended 31 December

WE+-A=+—BLEE

2015 2014
—F-1f —E-mF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBF T ARBT T
Guarantee provided by related parties  BEE: S AN EBER
in respect of the borrowings
of the Group
- Jinghong Investment 15,000 22,500

The related parties have not charged the Group any fee
for providing above guarantee to the Group.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

B R 5 3 0 AN R
R EMEREEARE
EEMER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(c)

Transactions with other state-owned enterprises

In accordance with HKAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”,
state-owned enterprises and their subsidiaries, directly or
indirectly controlled by the PRC Government are regarded
as related parties of the Group.

The Group operates in an economic environment
predominated by state-owned enterprises. During the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had
transactions with state-owned enterprises including, but
not limited to, operating services, construction services and
equipment sales.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course
of the Group’s business on terms comparable to those
with other entities that are not state-owned. The Group
has established its pricing strategy and approval process
for purchase and sales of products and services. Such
pricing strategy approval processes are consistently applied
regardless of the counterparties are state-owned entities or
not. Having due regard to the substance of the relationships,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that none
of these transactions are material related party transactions
that require separate disclosure except for the transactions
with Yunnan Construction and The 14th Metallurgical
Construction as disclosed above.

36. EABEA X5 (4HE)

(c)

BEHMEERRETHNRS

REBEB RS ERISE 2455 B8
BAOEE BPEBRFER
S EEREHNERA R E R A
JB A B AR A 5 [ A B
7o

REBEHBEARFEEFMNE
BEREPEERE - REEC
Z-HAFR-FT-NF+=A
=t+—-BLFE  ~EELEH
BREETHRZEEETR
RI)ELRTE BRBHER
RIGIHE -

WERZNEAEENETEE
BRRPERIEAMFEEE
Be FTRT 3 F LE BRIV IR FRET o
rEECEVEEEMRRE
WEERERAERRE - BE
1?%315(%'3/&/)”4& %ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ

T FHREABERE
°M@M%Fﬁ@@%mﬁ
B RXQRESEIAA/MER
%ﬁ#ﬁﬁ TRVEENEXR
Bt A XS L FTiRER
E@R TR+ AL
BRI o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BESEHS  BAFELFIUNREFTER)
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 36. FAEA R (&)

(d) EREARE T HYAEER

As at 31 December

(d) Balance with related parties

R+ZA=+—H
2015 2014
—_F—AfF —Z-mE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARBT T

Trade receivables - current B 5 EWRIE — B

- Beijing OriginWater —EREKR — 4,127
— Yunnan Construction —EFET 233,406 185,606
— The 14th Metallurgical Construction —+IRER 38,906 122,426
- Yunnan Erhai Estate —-EmEREHE 2,260 3,110
- Yunnan Chengjiang Eagle - EERIERM 2,502 2,593
- Yunnan Longjiang Estate - EmEIRE 1,078 —
- Kunming NO.1 Construction -BE—# 6,946 =
285,098 317,862

The balances are denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand.

BEBUARBIHE - BEF -
RERARERBEE -

As at 31 December

R+ZA=+—H
2015 2014
—F-IF —E-MF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®FR ARETT

Prepayments for purchase of goods BEERBEMNK

- Beijing OriginWater —EREKR 24,560 19,778
— Yunnan Construction —-EFET 83,519 50,159
- ZTE Yunnan City Investment —EmP IR 699 —
108,778 69,937

The balances are denominated in RMB, current, unsecured

and interest free.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Balance with related parties (Cont’d)

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

36. EABEA X5 (4HE)

(d)

EARAR 5 AL ER ()
As at 31 December
wR+ZHA=+—H
2015 2014
—_F—AfF —Z-mE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR®BFT AR®ETT

Amounts due from related parties FEW R ARt 2
without interest bearing (i) I (i)
- Maguan Water — BEAK% — 133
— Wenshan Water — Xk = 25
— The 14th Metallurgical Construction —+IWRER 40 s
- Yunnan Construction —EFET 6,071 e
6,111 158
Amounts due from related FE U B Bk 77 B9 =1 2 FRIE (i)
parties with interest bearing (ii)
— Wenshan Water — XLk — 63,000

(i) The balances are denominated in RMB, unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

(i)  The balances are denominated in RMB, unsecured,
repayable on demand, with the interest rate 6.00% per

annum.

(i

FREBRUARBIE &
K#F RERARER
RFEIE o

HBHRUARBE &
EH ZAREREE

= HE R %6.00% 5T
%\ o

EEABREROBERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 36. FAEA R (&)
(d) Balance with related parties (Cont’d) (d) ERRAEETTAVAEER(E)
As at 31 December
®+ZHA=+—H
2015 2014
—_F—AfF —E-MF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®F T AR¥T T
Trade payables - current B S ETIE — B
— The 14th Metallurgical Construction —+RER 1,205 2,114
— Yunnan Construction —EFET 125,087 143,287
- Beijing OriginWater — b FEKIR 3,346 —
129,638 145,401
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2015 2014
—E-HfF —E—ME
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR#ET T AR¥T T
Advance from customer REEFHEK
- Banna Investment — R E 690 690
As at 31 December
m+=-RA=+—H
2015 2014
—E—hfF —E—OF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR#ET T AR¥TF T
Amounts due to related parties FE 1+ BR B A B 7R IR
- Yunnan Construction —EEET 14,413 37,276
- Yunnan Province Water —EE KIS 624 389
- Beijing OriginWater — b RBEKR — 229
15,037 37,894
The balances are denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest FTEEBRUARETHE - BIK
free and repayable on demand. BRANERIEE -

222 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

37. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

38.

(i)

On 11 January 2016, the Group has entered into the Equity
Transfer Agreement with Environmental Experts (China)
Development & Investment Company Limited and Hong
Kong Rich Investment Limited to acquire 100% equity
interest of Harbin Guo Huan Medical Solid Waste Harmless
Centralized Disposal Center Co., Ltd. (“Guo Huan”) at the
consideration of RMB290.6 million. Guo Huan’s principal
activities are solid waste treatment.

The Group acquired 65% of the share capital of Future
International Group Co., Limited, which holds water supply
projects in Qingzhou, Shandong Province, for a cash
consideration of RMB292.5 million on 8 January 2016.

BALANCE SHEET, RESERVE AND RETAINED EARNINGS
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

37. REABRKRAKSER

38.

(i)

R=ZF-—RF-A+t—H K
SEEEXRRRFR(PE)REFH
BRARQAREBFIEBRER
FRATIERE 7T RIEES R
BRRABARK290.6 BB T
BRRERREREREYE
EEPREREFPLBRAT
(B 1) =2 100% BR#EFT 32 IR
REEGE - BRNEERER

EEBREERE
REBRZ=ZZE-<"E-AN
ARAEREARK29257

BETUWBEEEEERLF
5% IRA - HEFEBLURES
M KIER -

FRREEARE  HERKE
BHEH

As at 31 December

R+ZHA=+—H
2015 2014
—E-HfF —E—MEF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT AR¥TF T
ASSETS =9:3
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BMERRE 38,302 33,104
Receivables under service concession RIS EELZHETHY
arrangements FEURFRIE 45,296 40,414
Investments in subsidiaries RHB R BNERE 2,642,425 1,145,361
Investments in an associate and R—FREEQAREE
a joint venture ENRE 34,925 25,594
Deferred income tax assets EIEEHEE 9,748 16,459
Trade and other receivables B R EMEWFIE 314,133 =
3,084,829 1,260,932
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 12 —
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWRIE 1,805,542 1,168,508
Cash and cash equivalents BHeRBEEEEY 786,465 132,089
Restricted cash ZRENEE 10,000 —
2,602,019 1,300,597
Total assets WEE 5,686,848 2,561,529
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

38. BALANCE SHEET, RESERVE AND RETAINED EARNINGS 38. ANFEE&AER HERRE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d) BREEN(E)
As at 31 December
m+=ZRA=+—H
2015 2014
—E—5fF —E—-F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT AR®ET T
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners ARRHEEAELES
of the Company
Share capital %N 1,193,213 862,564
Other reserves HibfEE 2,223,956 1,153,969
Retained earnings REBER 121,834 6,857
Total equity MBS 3,539,003 2,023,390
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities EREBAE
Borrowings &R 824,527 396,838
Deferred income IEFERA 3,283 1,149
Deferred income tax liabilities EREFTBHEE 1,577 —
829,387 397,987
Current liabilities REAE
Borrowings (EEN 751,600 100,000
Trade and other payables B R HMEMRIE 566,858 40,152
1,318,458 140,152
Total liabilities mafk 2,147,845 538,139
Total equity and liabilities EERaEEHE 5,686,848 2,561,529

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 30 March 2016 and was signed on its behalf

FAREEEERAEZEN -2
—ANFZAZTHMAEIHHERR
B5E

Yu Long Liu Xujun Fie IS
Name of Director Name of Director EENE EEHE

224 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

38. BALANCE SHEET, RESERVE AND RETAINED EARNINGS 38. ANGZEEAER HERRE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d) BREEN(E)
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (@) AARFHEEE
Capital Statutory
reserve reserve Total
A& EERE at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARBTT AR®TT
As at 1 January 2014 R-E—MNE—H—H 953,642 9,770 963,412
Contribution by Yunnan EREKE -
Province Water, mMEER
Hangzhou Qingyu, M) RER &
and Sichuan Rongchen 185,316 == 185,316
Transfer to statutory reserve EZEEEME — 5,241 5,241
As at 31 December 2014 WZFT—M4E
+Z-HA=+—H 1,138,958 15,011 1,153,969
As at 1 January 2015 R-_E—HE—H—H 1,138,958 15,011 1,153,969
Issue of ordinary shares BITEZER 1,183,137 — 1,183,137
Shares issuance costs B 170817 A AR (126,438) = (126,438)
Transfer to statutory reserve EZEEERE — 13,288 13,288
As at 31 December 2015 WZFE—HEF
+Z-H=+—H 2,195,657 28,299 2,223,956
(b) Retained Earnings of the Company (b) EAATRBEF
RMB’000
AR®TT
At 1 January 2014 R-FE—ME—H—H 70,189
Profit for the year FRFE 52,409
Transfer to statutory reserve BELERE (5,241)
Dividends BE (110,500)
At 31 December 2014 R-F—NE+"A=+—8 6,857
At 1 January 2015 R-E—HE—H—H 6,857
Profit for the year FAFIE 128,265
Transfer to statutory reserve BELTEEE (13,288)
At 31 December 2015 R-IE—RA&E+ZA=+—H 121,834
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 39. EEEMNRER
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (a) EEZ=REEHNME

The emoluments of individual directors and supervisors of AEBEN EFEALITEA
the Company paid/payable by the Group are presented as EERESHNME250T ¢
below:

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2015 () BE—_E—HFL+_-AH

=1 —HIEFE
House

Salaries, allowances
allowances and other
and bonus benefits

Fees BER 2% Pension Total
Name of directors - ok 4 EHiwEd BikE st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTR ARETRT ARBTR ARETR

Executive Directors WiTES
Mr. Yu Long THELE
(chief executive officer) (THAR) = 1,500 92 — 1,592
Mr. Liu Xujun st = 548 77 — 625
Mr. Huang Yunjian HERESE = 564 77 = 641
Non-executive Directors *  JEH{TEE*
Mr. Xu Lei FERE — — — — —
Mr. Wen Jianping NETEE = = = = =
Mr. He Yuanping R EE — — — — —
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi BAE A = = = = =
Mr. Jiao Jun EBEE = — — — —
Supervisors Ex
Ms. Yang Chuanyun BlIEzt = 258 30 = 288
Ms. Wang Shugin IRELt = = = = =
Ms. Li Bo *** TR L — — — — —
Mr. Tan Hairui ** FRE v — 36 = = 36
Mr. Cao Jinwen ** EEELE" — 36 = — 36
Ms. Tang Shuang ** BRgL™ — 141 24 — 165
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Cont’d)

(i)  For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Cont’d)

BB mRME

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

39. EEEAIRERE)

(a)

EEREENME(HF)

() BE-ZE-—HF+-AH
=t —HILEE(4E)

House
Salaries, allowances
allowances  and other
and bonus benefits
Eicol £
Fees 2R 2R  Pension Total
Name of directors ESHA ne 4 HiwEd RikE @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARETZ ARETR ARETR
Independent Non- Bi#TES
executive Directors
Mr. Yao Yan Ping **** PR gt v = = = = =
Mr. Ma Shihao BtEREE = 100 = — 100
Mr. Ren Gangfeng iz = 100 = = 100
Mr. Hu Song HREE — 100 — — 100
Mr. Kwok For Chi *** BNFELE = 17 = = 17
— 3,500 300 — 3,800
EPABRERBERL A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M
(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BHZEHDE  BAIFFEZFIUARETFZT)

39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d) 39. EEREAREZRE)
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Cont’d) (a) EEREENMES(E)
(i) For the year ended 31 December 2014 (i) BE=—ZFE-—HE+=H
=F—HIEFE
House

Salaries, allowances
allowances  and other
and bonus benefits

B B
Fees BER #Bi®  Pension Total
Name of directors EENE e g EtiER BiRE st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#ETT ARBTR ARETT AREBTR ARETR

Executive Directors wES
Mr. Yu Long TaLE
(chief executive officer) (THEE) - 1,306 87 — 1,393
Mr. Liu Xujun ELsE = 269 74 = 343
Mr. Huang Yunjian HEERLE = 294 75 = 369
Non-executive Directors ~ FEH{TES
Mr. Xu Lei FELE = = = = =
Mr. Wen Jianping XEFEE — — — — —
Mr. He Yuanping MR EE — — — — —
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi BAFEE — — — — —
Mr. Jiao Jun RERLE — — — — —
Supervisors Ex
Ms. Yang Chuanyun BIExL - 148 27 — 175
Ms. Wang Shugin IRELL — — — — —
Mr. Fang Bin EME — — — — —
Ms. Li Bo *** FREL™ — — — — —
Independent Non- Biu#mTES
executive Directors
Mr. Yao Yan Ping B %4 — — — — —
Mr. Ma Shihao BHRLE — — — — —
Mr. Ren Gangfeng L — — — — —
Mr. Hu Song HAEE = = = = =

- 2,017 263 - 2,280
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mRME

(All amounts expressed in thousands of RMB unless otherwise stated)

(BFZEHY  BRFBEZFIUAREFTET)

39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Cont’d)

*

There were no fees or other emoluments payable to non-
executive directors during the year.

*k

Appointed on 7 January 2015

***  Appointed on 20 April 2015

***  Appointed on 18 August 2014

=+ Resigned on 20 April 2015

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits or termination benefits for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group did not
pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

As at 31 December 2015, there is no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with such
directors.

39. EEEAIRERE)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

ESREENMS(#F)
YR BERNYTHRITE
ENREHHMME -

o RZE-RF-AtREZX
£

W NZE-RENA=-+HE
=T

o NZEB-—ENB+H\BE
£F

oo PA—B_FEIEP =+ HE
F

EENRAENRERER

BE-_Z-AFtZRA=1+-—
ALESFE  HEESCUKEN
5 U EE R AR AR RS BE AR
o

RENEERBEMAE=711E
HHRE

BE-Z2-EE+-A=1-
AR - A EE L AR
EBRI B EME=S LK

B o

FRNES EENZEHE
ErREAEEEAXZANE
;o EERRHARZNER

R-BE-AF+=-A=1+-—
B BELES EFHNZE
FEERBEAESRAZHEAN
BN ZEERRHMRE R
B

EEABREROBERDA
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Four-year Financial Summary

MOF M BHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group AEEBENEVHREFECEENREE
for the last four financial years, as extracted from the published audited FEBRE  DRHEBCTIR ZEEX

consolidated financial statements, is set out below. BOEI K  BEIAOT -
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF HRESHESWER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HIEE
2015 2014 2013 2012
—F-HE —T-OF =—T-=F ZE2-=fF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREFTR ARETrT AR®Trx AR%Tx

Revenue Uz 1,558,394 1,100,761 688,734 398,521
Gross profit EF 507,622 333,637 260,739 139,677
Profit before income tax BADEF 382,869 226,157 252,233 160,086
Profit for the year FRaEH 317,443 187,896 200,856 126,111
Profit for the year attributable to: AT A (LGSR :
Owners of the Company RABEE A 285,853 166,587 193,683 120,043
Total comprehensive income FREAEWZE
for the year 1 318,419 187,804 200,856 126,111
Total comprehensive income LT ALTEMAEZE
attributable to: Uzt -
Owners of the Company RABEEA 286,829 166,495 193,683 120,043
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET HREHEERRER
As at 31 December
R+=-H=+—H
2015 2014 2013 2012

—F—AF —FT-MNFE =F-=F =—T-=F
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTR ARBTR ARETR

Assets BEHE

Total non-current assets FRBEEHEE 6,677,868 3,525,728 2,233,718 1,709,725
Total current assets MENEEREE 2,924,423 1,494,211 1,323,691 1,057,503
Total assets EEBE 9,602,291 5,019,939 3,557,409 2,767,228
Equity and liabilities BERER

Equity attributable to: LT B R

Owners of the company ZN/NETEZS N 4,058,423 2,384,246 2,068,251 1,432,395
Non-controlling interests IR 884,189 337,078 208,153 152,004
Total equity FERBEE 4,942,612 2,721,324 2,276,404 1,584,399
Non-current liabilities FEREBERE 2,469,257 1,080,945 330,216 383,955
Current liabilities mENEE 2,190,422 1,217,670 950,789 798,874
Total liability =NEFCb 4,659,679 2,298,615 1,281,005 1,182,829
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 9,602,291 5,019,939 3,557,409 2,767,228
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